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ABOUT US

REC Transmission Projects Company Limited (RECTPCL) is a wholly owned
subsidiary of REC Limited, which is a Navratna Central Public Sector Undertaking
under Ministry of Power. RECTPCL has been appointed as Bid Process Coordinator
(BPC) for Inter State/Intra-State Transmission Systems/Projects across the Country
on Tariff Based Competitive Bidding Mode. The Company takes pride in its ability to
provide quality services and maintaining high degree of transparency in all biding
procedure and processes. RECTPCL is also engaged infer-alia in the business to
promote, organize or carry on the consultancy services and/or project implementation
in any field relating to transmission, distribution, and generation of electricity in India
or abroad.

OUR MISSION & VISION

e To facilitate smooth and rapid development of transmission and distribution
capacity in the country and for accelerated growth of power sector & enrichment of
quality of life of all segments of population.

e To act as a competitive, client-friendly and development-oriented organization for
promoting projects covering power generation, power conservation, power
transmission and power distribution network in the country.

OBJECTIVE

e To plan, promote, develop, design, engineer, construct, operate and maintain
"electricity system" as defined under Section 2(25) of the Electricity Act, 2003.

e To promote organize or carry on the business of consultancy services and/or
project implementation in any field of activity relating to generation &
transmission, distribution of electricity or other related activities thereto in India
and abroad.

e Procurement of transmission services, including all activities relating to survey, /
detailed project report formulation, arranging finance, project management,
obtaining right of way, necessary clearances, site identification, land compensation,
design, engineering, equipment, material, construction, erection, testing and
commissioning.

e To undertake transmission activities, to apply for requisite licences and to do all
things incidental to such activities which is, in the opinion of the Board of
Directors, necessary for fulfillment of the objects of the Company;

e To promote and undertake the formation of project specific company/ies, or the
formation of any institution, subsidiary company or companies for the purpose of
carrying out the aforesaid activities and for the furtherance of transmission services.

e To enter into Joint Ventures or merge any Company or any of the,
companies/subsidiaries formed by the Company in pursuance of its objects as
aforesaid;




CONTENT

1. Company Information

2. Board of Directors

3. Chairman’s Speech

4. Notice of AGM

5. Board's Report

6. Management Discussion & Analysis Report

7. Annual Report on CSR Activities

8. Extract of Annual Return

9. Particulars of Contracts or Arrangement with Related Parties

10. Certificate on Corporate Governance

11. Balance Sheet

12. Statement of Profit & Loss

13. Cash Flow Statement

14. Statement of Changes in Equity

15. Significant Accounting Policies & Notes to Accounts

16. Independent Auditors' Report on Standalone Financial Statements
17. Comments of C&AG of India on Standalone Financial Statements
18. Consolidated Financial Statements

19. Independent Auditors' Report on Consolidated Financial Statements
20. Comments of C&AG of India on Consolidated Financial Statements
21. Proxy Form

22. Attendance Slip

13

25

29

32

43

48

49

50

51

52

53

98

107

108

150

157

159

160




COMPANY INFORMATION

BOARD OF
DIRECTORS

Shri Ajeet Kumar Agarwal, Chairman
Shri Sanjeev Kumar Gupta, Director
Shri Vijay Kumar Singh, Director

CEO

Shri T.S.C. Bosh

KEY OFFICIALS

Shri Bhupender Gupta, Additional CEO

Shri B.K. Johar, Chief Financial Officer (CFO)

Shri M.L. Kumawat, Authorized Signatory-RECTPCL

Shri Pankaj Verma, DGM (Finance)

Shri Aniket Kulshreshtha, Authorized Signatory-RECTPCL

REGISTERED OFFICE

Core-4, SCOPE Complex,7, Lodhi Road, New Delhi-110003.

Tel. No.: 011-2436 2205

Fax No.: 011-2436 2027

E-mail: contactus@rectpcl.com

Website:www.rectpcl.com

CORPORATE OFFICE

ECE House, 3" Floor, Annexe - II, 28A, Kasturba Gandhi Marg, New
Delhi — 110001.

Tel. No.: 011-4796 4796

Fax No.: 011-47964747

E-mail: contactus@rectpcl.com

Website: www.rectpcl.com

CIN

U40101DL2007GOI157558

HOLDING COMPANY

REC Limited (formerly Rural Electrification Corporation Limited)
(A Navratna CPSE)
(CIN : L40101DL1969G0I1005095)

STATUTORY
AUDITORS

M/s P. Jain & Company,Chartered Accountants,

H.O. : 210, Arunachal Bhawan, 2™ Floor, 19, Barakhamba Road,
New Delhi-110001

B.O.: 6, Navyag Market, 1* Floor, Ghaziabad-201001

SUBSIDIARY
COMPANIES

Dinchang Transmission Limited
Chandil Transmission Limited
Koderma Transmission Limited
Dumka Transmission Limited
Mandar Transmission Limited
Bhind Guna Transmission Limited
Udupi Kasargode Transmission Limited
Jam Khambaliya Transco Limited

9. Khetri Transco Limited

10. Ajmer Phagi Transco Limited

11. Lakadia Banaskantha Transco Limited
12. WRSS XXI (A) Transco Limited

13. Rampur Sambhal Transco Limited

0 N O U W

BANKRS

State Bank of India | ICICI Bank Limited | Oriental Bank of

Commerce

Yes Bank Limited HDFC Bank Limited




BOARD OF DIRECTORS & CEO

(Shri Ajeet Kumar Agarwal)
Non-Executive Director & Chairman

(o]

‘9 :

3 2 ‘\.\ ‘
T

(Shri Sanjeev Kumar Gupta) (Shri Vijay Kumar Singh)
Non-Executive Director Non-Executive Director

(Shri T.S.C. Bosh)
CEO-RECTPCL




Chairman’s Message

Dear Shareholders,

It is my privilege to present to you the
12™ Annual Report of your Company.
Your Company managed to deliver
sustained operational performance during
the financial year 2018-19, despite a
challenging business environment. The
present scenario in the Transmission &
Distribution (T&D) sector is very dynamic.
Transmission, an important element in the
power delivery value chain, facilitates
evacuation of power from generating
stations and its delivery to the load centres.
For efficient dispersal of power to deficit
regions, strengthening the transmission

system network, enhancing the Inter-State power transmission system, augmentation of the
National Grid and enhancement of the transmission system network are required. An extensive
network of transmission lines has been developed over the years for evacuating power produced
by different electricity generating stations and distributing the same to the consumers. The
nominal Extra High Voltage lines in vogue are + 800 kV HVDC & 765 kV, 400 kV, 230/220 kV,
110 kV and 66 kV AC lines. The country’s power transmission sector has witnessed
unprecedented growth in the past five years, with line length and transformer capacity growing at
an average annual growth rate of 6.5% and 9.6%, respectively. Further, both operational and
financial performances of the transmission utilities have witnessed an improvement. Going
forward, an estimated 2.6 trillion investment is required in the transmission sector to meet future
peak load, which is expected to reach 234 GW by 2021-22. The private sector is expected to play
an important role in achieving the country’s grid expansion targets, as competitive bidding gains
momentum at both inter-state and intra-state levels.

Several grid expansion programmes such as the Green Energy Corridor and cross-border links are
underway to expand the physical grid infrastructure. Further, transmission utilities, at the central
and state level are expected to invest significantly in new technologies to make grids more
reliable, resilient, secure and smart. The sector is also expected to immensely benefit from major
policy reforms, including the Electricity Act amendments and the Tariff Policy amendments.

During the financial year 2018-19, a total of 22,437 cKm (circuit kilometers) of transmission lines
were added, as compared to about 23,119 cKm during the previous fiscal. Transformation
capacity of 72,705 MVA (Mega Volt Amp) was added during FY 2018-19 at 765 kV, 400 kV and
220 kV levels taken together.

Operational Performance

During the financial year 2018-19, Ministry of Power, Government of India and State
Governments have allocated 9 Inter-state/Intra-state Transmission Projects to RECTPCL to act




as the Bid Process Coordinator for selection of developer as Transmission Service Provider (TSP)
through Tariff Based Competitive Bidding Process.

In order to initiate development of each of transmission systems, RECTPCL incorporates a
project specific Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) as wholly owned Subsidiary Company. Further,
for each of the transmission system, a two stage Bidding process
featuring separate Request for Qualification (RfQ) and Request for Proposal (RfP) is adopted in
accordance with Tariff Based Competitive Bidding Guidelines of Ministry of Power, Government
of India for selection of developer as Transmission Service Provider. After the selection of
successful bidder through Tariff Based Competitive Bidding Process notified for transmission
projects, the respective project specific SPV along with all its assets and liabilities is transferred to
the successful bidder.

Your Company during the financial year 2018-19 successfully transferred two project specific
SPVs i.e. Ghatampur Transmission Limited & Jawaharpur Firozabad Transmission Limited to
M/s Adani Transmission Limited and M/s Power Grid Corporation of India Limited on 19"
June, 2018 & 21* December, 2018 respectively.

Financial Performance

During the financial year 2018-19, your company has recorded an income of Rs. 4,045.17 lakh as
compared to Rs. 5,313.05 lakh in previous financial year. The Profit before tax and Profit after
tax for the Financial Year 2018-19 was Rs. 3,221.23 lakh and Rs. 2,459.99 lakh respectively. The
Net worth of the company as on March 31, 2019 was Rs.11,843.99 lakh against initial Capital of
Rs. 5 lakh injected by REC Limited (holding company) in the year 2007.

The Board of Directors have declared an Interim dividend of Rs. 6,600/- per equity share i.e.
66,000% on the paid up equity share of Rs. 10/- each for the financial year ended
31* March, 2019. The total dividend pay-out for the financial year 2018-19 was amounted to Rs.
3,300 Lakh (excluding dividend distribution tax), which was paid in the month of March, 2019.
The Board of Directors has not recommended any final dividend for the financial year 2018-19.

Corporate Governance

As a good corporate entity, your Company is being managed in an ethical and responsible
manner. Your company is in compliance with Companies Act, 2013 and DPE Guidelines on
Corporate Governance, 2010 to the extent possible. Accordingly, your Company complied with
the provisions of Guidelines on Corporate Governance for Central Public Sector Enterprises,
2010, which are applicable to the Company, issued by Department of Public Enterprises. Your
Company has been submitting "Report on Corporate Governance" as required by guidelines on
Corporate Governance for CPSEs, 2010 issued by DPE, on quarterly and annual basis. Further,
as per Clause 8.2 of Guidelines on Corporate Governance for Central Public Sector Enterprises,
2010 1ssued by DPE, the Certificate for compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance for
the financial year ended March 31, 2019, obtained from Pranav Kumar & Associates, Practicing
Company Secretaries, is annexed to this Report.

The Company is not required to appoint any Independent Directors and also not required to
constitute Audit Committee of the Board vide MCA Notification dated July 5, 2018 read with
MCA Notification July 13, 2018, respectively.

Corporate Social Responsibility

Your Company is also complying with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 read with rules
thereunder and DPE Guidelines in respect of CSR. During the Financial Year 2018-19, your




Company has contributed the CSR fund of Rs. 27.65 Lakh out of Rs. 143.28 Lakh available fund
under CSR. Balance unspent amount of CSR Fund of Rs. 115.63 Lakh has been carried forward
to the next Financial Year 2019-20.

Gratitude

I would like to take this opportunity to express my sincere gratitude for the immense support and
guidance received by your company from Ministry of Power, State Governments, State Power
Utilities, Central Electricity Authority, Central Transmission Utility, Shareholders, the holding
company (REC Limited), Statutory Auditors and the Comptroller and Auditor General of India.

I acknowledge the passion and commitment of our employees, without whose efforts none of the
achievements would have been possible. I also convey my thanks and appreciation to my
esteemed colleagues on the Board for their unstinted support.

The path forward for your Company is challenging. I am confident that together, we shall
overcome any challenges and continue to scale greater heights in business performance.

Thank you for your continued support.

With warm wishes

oo™

Date: August 22, 2019 (Ajeet Kumar Agarwal)
Place: Delhi Chairman
(DIN: 02231613)




REC TRANSMISSION PROJECTS COMPANY LIMITED
Core-4, SCOPE Complex, 7, Lodhi Road, New Delhi-110003
CIN: U40101DL2007GOI157558
NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the Twelfth (12™) Annual General Meeting of REC Transmission
Projects Company Limited (RECTPCL) will be held on Tuesday, August 27, 2019 at
3:30 P.M. at shorter notice at Core 4, SCOPE Complex, 7, Lodhi Road, New Delhi —
110003 to transact the following businesses:-

ORDINARY BUSINESS:-

1) To receive, consider, approve and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company
for the financial year ended March 31, 2019 along with the Reports of the Board of Directors
and Auditors thereon.

2) To confirm the payment of Interim Dividend for the financial year 2018-19.

3) To appoint a Director in place of Shri Sanjeev Kumar Gupta (DIN: 03464342), who retires
by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

4) To fix the remuneration of Statutory Auditors for the Financial Year 2019-20.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:-
5) To appoint Shri Vijay Kumar Singh (DIN:02772733), as Director of the Company.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as
an Ordinary Resolution:-

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152, 160, 161 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder (including any statutory
modification or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and as per the Articles of
Association of the Company, Shri Vijay Kumar Singh (DIN: 02772733), who was appointed as
Additional Director of the Company with effect from March 18, 2019 and holds office upto the
date of this Annual General Meeting and who is eligible for appointment under the relevant
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and in respect of whom the Company has received a
notice in writing from a member under Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013, be and is hereby
appointed as a Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation."

By order of the Board of Directors
For REC Transmission Projects Company Limited
n
//
(Aniket Kulshreshtha)
Authorized Signatory

Place: Core-4, SCOPE Complex,
7, Lodhi Road, New Delhi-110003

Date : August 22, 2019




Notes:
1.

A Member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting (AGM) is
entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on a poll, if any, instead of
himself/herself and such proxy need not be a Member of the Company. The proxy form
duly completed and signed must be received at the Registered Office of the Company,
not less than forty eight (48) hours before the commencement of the AGM. Blank
proxy form is attached and also available on the Company’s website i.e.
www.rectpcl.com

A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty (50) and holding
in the aggregate not more than ten percent (10%) of the total share capital of the
Company. A member holding more than ten percent of the total share capital of the
Company may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy
for any other person or shareholder.

The Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, in respect of
Special Business, as set out above is annexed hereto.

The Dividend @ 6,600/- per equity share, was declared by the Board of Directors in its
Meeting held on March 25, 2019, subject to the provisions of Section 123 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and paid in the month of March, 2019.

Corporate Members are requested to send/attach a duly certified copy of the Board
Resolution/Authority Letter authorizing their representative to attend and vote on their
behalf at the Annual General Meeting, along with the Proxy Form/Attendance Slip.

Pursuant to Section 139(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Auditors of a Government
Company are appointed/re-appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General (C&AG)
of India and in terms of Section 142 of the Companies Act, 2013, their remuneration shall
be fixed by the company in a General Meeting or in such manner as the company in a
General Meeting may determine.

In the 11™ Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company held on September 17, 2018,
the Board of Directors were authorized by the Shareholders in pursuance of Section 142
read with Section 139(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 to fix and approve the remuneration
of Statutory Auditors of the Company for the financial year 2018-19. Accordingly, the
Board of Directors in its Meeting held on February 6, 2019 approved the payment of
remuneration of ¥1,70,000/- (Rupees One Lakh Seventy Thousand Only) plus applicable
GST inclusive of local travel expenses and other incidental out of pocket expenses to the
Statutory Auditors, M/s P. Jain & Co., Chartered Accountants, for the financial year
2018-19.

Pursuant to Section 139(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, M/s P.Jain & Company,
Chartered Accountants has been appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company for the
financial year 2019-20 by the C&AG of India. Therefore, it is proposed to obtain approval
of the Members of the Company in Annual General Meeting to fix the remuneration of
Statutory Auditors for the financial year 2019-20, on similar lines as done for the last
financial year. Accordingly, the Members are requested to authorize the Board of
Directors of the Company to fix the remuneration of the Statutory Auditors of the
Company, as it deems fit, for the financial year 2019-20.




6. Members desirous of getting any information on any item(s) of business of this meeting
are requested to address their queries to the Authorized Signatory at the Registered Office
of the Company at least five days prior to the date of the Annual General Meeting, so that
the information required can be made available at the time of the meeting.

7. The Register of Directors and their Shareholding maintained under Section 170 of the
Companies Act, 2013, Register of contracts and arrangements in which Directors are
interested maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 and all other
documents referred to, in the Notice will be available for inspection by the Members at the
Registered Office of the Company on all working days during business hours and at the
time of AGM of the Company at the venue of the Meeting.

8. The entire Annual Report is also available on the Company’s website i.e. www.rectpcl.in




STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

THE FOLLOWING STATEMENT SETS OUT ALL MATERIAL FACTS RELATING TO
THE SPECIAL BUSINESS SET OUT IN THE NOTICE

Item No. 5

Shri Vijay Kumar Singh (DIN:02772733) was appointed as an Additional Director on the Board
of the Company w.e.f March 18, 2019. Consequent to his appointment as Additional Director in
the Company in terms of provisions of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with rules
made thereunder and also in terms of Article 115 of Article of Association of the Company, he
holds office upto the date of next Annual General Meeting and be eligible for appointment/re-
appointment by the Company in next Annual General Meeting. Accordingly, as per the
provisions of Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has received a Notice in
writing from REC, being a member, along with requisite amount, signifying his candidature for
the office of Director of the Company and the same is available on the website of the Company.
Accordingly, appointment of Shri Vijay Kumar Singh as Director may be considered by the
shareholders at this AGM. Further, Shri Vijay Kumar Singh is not disqualified to be a Director of
the Company in terms of the provisions of Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to the Company.

Relevant documents in respect of the said item are open for inspection by the members at the
Registered Office of the Company on all working days during 2.30 p.m. to 4.30 p.m. up to the
date of the Meeting.

He holds 1 equity Share of I10/- of the Company as nominee of REC Limited (holding
company). Further, the brief resume of Shri Vijay Kumar Singh giving the nature of his expertise
in specific functional areas, remuneration paid, number of meetings attended during the year etc.
forms a part of this Notice.

None of the Directors of the Company or their relatives except Shri Vijay Kumar Singh is in any
way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in passing of the said resolution set out at
item No. 5 of the Notice.

In view of the above, you are requested to grant your consent to the Ordinary Resolution as set out
at item no. 5 of this Notice.




BRIEF RESUME OF THE DIRECTOR(S) SEEKING RE-APPOINTMENT AT THE
12™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING;

Name Shri Sanjeev Kumar Gupta (DIN: 03464342)

Date of Birth October 4, 1961

Date of Appointment October 26, 2015

Qualifications Bachelor’s Degree in Electrical Engineering from G.B. Pant
University of Agriculture & Technology, Pant Nagar, Uttarakhand.

Expertise in specific Shri Sanjeev Kumar Gupta is the Director on the Board of

Functional area RECTPCL since October 26, 2015. He holds a Bachelor’s Degree

in Electrical Engineering from G.B. Pant University of Agriculture
& Technology, Pant Nagar, Uttarakhand. He has 37 Years of
experience in Indian Power Sector across diverse functions i.e.
Planning, Design, Construction, O&M, Project Management of
large EHV & UHV Transmission projects, Financing of
Generation, Transmission, Distribution and Renewable Projects,
etc. in various power CPSU’s, REC, PGCIL and NHPC. He was
instrumental in induction of new technologies (765 kV AC/1200
kV & £ 800kV HVDC transmission, ROW optimization, uprating
of transmission lines, conductors etc.) in Indian transmission grid.
He was designated Project Manager for various prestigious
international consultancy projects in Bhutan, Nepal, Myanmar and
Bangladesh.

He has been working in REC i.e.Holding Company of RECTPCL
since March 16, 2010 at Senior Management positions. He also
served as the CEO of RECTPCL as well as the nodal officer for the
National Electricity Fund (NEF).

Directorship held in e REC Limited.

other Companies e REC Power Distribution Company Limited.
Membership/ REC Limited

Chairmanship of |e Audit Committee - Member

Committees across all e Stakeholders Relationship Committee - Member

Public Companies other |e Risk Management Committee - Member

than RECTPCL e Corporate Social Responsibility Committee - Member

Loan Committee — Member

Executive Committee - Member

Sub-Committee for Review of Lending Rates for Term Loans /

Short Term loans — Member

e Sub-Committee on investment /deployment of surplus funds —
Member.

REC Power Distribution Company Limited
e Corporate Social Responsibility Committee — Member




Number of equity shares
held in the Company

1 Equity Share of I10/- as nominee of REC Limited (holding
company).

Relationship with other
Directors

Shri Sanjeev Kumar Gupta does not have inter-se relationship with
any Director, Manager and other Personnel of the Company.

Details of
Remuneration paid

All the Non-Executive Directors on the Board of the Company are
nominated by the holding company; therefore, they are not entitled
to any remuneration from the Company.

Number of meetings of
the Board attended
during the year.

Shri Sanjeev Kumar Gupta has attended all the Nine (9) Board
Meetings held during the financial year 2018-19.




BRIEF RESUME OF THE

DIRECTOR(S) SEEKING APPOINTMENT AT THE

12™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING;

Name Vijay Kumar Singh
(DIN: 02772733)
Date of Birth June 3, 1965 (Age: 54 years)
Date of Appointment March 18, 2019
Qualifications Bachelor’s Degree in Electrical Engineering from IIT,

Roorkee, Uttarakhand.

Expertise in specific Functional
area

After acquiring Bachelor’s Degree in Electrical Engineering
from IIT, Roorkee, Uttarakhand, India, he started his career
in power sector premier organization namely NTPC Limited
(1989-91). Joined Power Grid Corporation of India Limited
in 1991 and worked till 2007 in transmission project
development and management, procurement of goods and
services, construction of EHV Sub-stations and transmission
lines in various parts of the country. He has also led a team in
procurement activities for World Bank funded transmission
projects in PGCIL’s Corporate Contract Services division.

Presently, he is working with REC Limited (formerly Rural
Electrification Corporation Limited), a Navratna Company
under Ministry of Power, Government of India for the last
twelve years. He has worked in Corporate Planning and
International Cooperation & Development Division and
worked as Additional Chief Executive Officer with REC
Transmission Projects Company Limited.

Directorship held in other
Companies

e Facor Power Limited

e Teesta Urja Limited

e Essar Power Transmission Company Limited
e Bhadreshwar Vidyut Private Limited

Number of Meetings attended
by him during the year

During the Financial Year 2018-19, he has attended all
Meetings of Board held during his tenure.

Number of equity shares held
in the Company

One Equity Share as Nominee of REC

Remuneration paid

Being Non-Executive Director on the Board of the Company,
nominated by the holding company; therefore, he is not
entitled to any remuneration from the Company.

Relationship with other
Directors and Other Personnel

He has no inter-se relationship with any other Director,
Manager and other Personnel of the Company.




BOARD'S REPORT 2018-19

To,

The Shareholders,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the Twelfth (12™) Annual Report together with the
Financial Statements of your Company for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2019.

1. REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

During the financial year 2018-19, Ministry of Power, Government of India and State
Governments, allocated 9 independent transmission projects from time to time to RECTPCL to
work as Bid Process Coordinator (BPC), for selection of developer as Transmission Service
Provider (TSP) through Tariff Based Competitive Bidding Process. In order to initiate
development of each independent inter-state and intra-state transmission project, RECTPCL
incorporates a project specific Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) as Wholly Owned Subsidiary
Company and after the selection of successful bidder through Tariff Based Competitive Bidding
Process, the respective project specific SPV along with all its assets and liabilities is transferred to
the successful bidder.

During the financial year 2018-19, following two project specific companies allocated by U.P.
Power Transmission Corporation Limited (UPPTCL) for Intra-State Transmission Projects have
been transferred to the selected bidder as per following details:

Sl. Name of Transmission Project | Name of Project | Name of Selected | Date of
No. Specific SPV & CIN | Bidder Transfer of
project specific
SPV
1. | Evacuation of Power from | Ghatampur M/Adani June 19, 2018
3x660 MW Ghatampur | Transmission Limited | Transmission
Thermal project (U40300DL2016GOI | Limited
308788)

2. | Evacuation of Power from 2 x | Jawaharpur Firozabad | M/s Power Grid | December 21,
660 MW Jawaharpur Thermal | Transmission Limited | Corporation  of | 2018

Power Project and construction | (U40100DL2018GOI | India Limited
of 400 kV substation at | 337674)
Firozabad along with
associated Transmission Lines

In addition to the above, the bid process of the following Inter-State and Intra-State transmission
projects is under progress:

Sl. Name of Transmission Name of project Specific SPV | Date of Status as
No. | Project & CIN Incorporation of | on date
SPV
1. | Transmission System Chandil Transmission | March 14, 2018

Strengthening in Jharkhand | Limited
State (Package-1) (U40108DL2018GOI1330905)




Transmission System
Strengthening in Jharkhand
State (Package-4)

Koderma Transmission
Limited

(U40300DL2018GO1331192)

March 19, 2018

Transmission System
Strengthening in Jharkhand
State (Package-2)

Dumka Transmission Limited
(U40300DL2018G0I1331490)

March 23, 2018

Transmission System
Strengthening in Jharkhand
State (Package-3)

Mandar
Limited
(U40101DL2018G0I1331526)

Transmission

March 26, 2018

Construction of 400 kV
substation near Guna
(Distt.-Guna) &
Transmission work
associated with construction
of 220 kV S/s near Bhind
(Distt.-Bhind)

Bhind Guna Transmission
Limited
(U40300DL2018GO0I1338734)

September
2018

18,

400 kV Udupi (UPCL) -
Kasargode D/C line

Udupi Kasargode
Transmission Limited
(U40100DL2018G01342365)

November
2018

29,

Construction of  Ajmer
(PG)-Phagi 765 kV D/C
line along with associated
bays for Rajasthan SEZ

Ajmer Phagi Transco Limited
(U40101DL2019G01347423)

March 19, 2019

Western Region
Strengthening Scheme - 21
(WRSS-21) Part-A -
Transmission System
Strengthening for relieving
over loadings observed in
Gujarat Intra-State System
due to RE Injections in Bhuyj
PS

WRSS XXI (A) Transco
Limited
(U40107DL2019G0O1347713)

March 26, 2019

Transmission
associated with
generations  at
Dwarka & Lakadia

System
RE
Bhuj-I1,

Lakadia Banaskantha Transco
Limited
(U40107DL2019G01347428)

March 19, 2019

10.

Jam Khambaliya Pooling
Station and Interconnection
of Jam Khambaliya Pooling
Station for providing
connectivity to RE Projects
(1500 MW) in Dwarka
(Gujarat) and Installation of
400/220 Kv ICT along with
associated bays at M/s
CGPL Switchyard

Jam Khambaliya Transco
Limited
(U40105DL2019G01347089)

March 11, 2019

11.

Transmission system
associated with LT A
application from Rajasthan
SEZ (Part -C)

Khetri Transco Limited
(U40100DL2019G01347127)

March 12, 2019

Expected
to
conclude
during
2019-20

14




12. | Construction of | Rampur Sambhal Transco May 2, 2019
765/400/220kV GIS | Limited
Substation, Rampur and | (U40101DL2019G01349484)
400/220/132kV GIS
Substation, Sambhal with
associated Transmission
Lines

Further, pursuant to the Gazette Notification dated February 1, 2019 of Ministry of Power
regarding de-notification of “Transmission System for Phase-1 Generation Projects in Arunachal
Pradesh” allocated to your Company to act as Bid Process Coordinator, the process for striking
off the name from Register of Companies of project specific Special purpose vehicle i.e. Dinchang
Transmission Limited, which was incorporated on December 2, 2015 in respect of above
transmission project has been initiated.

Presently, RECTPCL is also working on many other projects like PMA/PMC, TPI etc.

Your Company under the guidance of Ministry of Power Government of India has developed
online web platform and Mobile App for better Transparency & Accountability as detailed below:

Urja Mitra: - Urja Mitra is an initiative of Ministry of Power, Government of India which
provides Outage Management and Notification Platform for disseminating the outage
information to power distribution consumers across India through SMS/email/push
notifications. It also provides Pan-India integrated Mobile Application for Android and 10S
platforms to enable citizen to access outage information for Distribution Companies. Power
Consumers can also inform about power outage in their area through mobile app.

As on March 31, 2019, data of around 19 crore Rural/Urban/Mixed feeder consumers of
52 DISCOMs have already been linked on web portal and the application is live in 48 Discoms
with consumer base of approximately 15 Crore. Around 114.85 crore SMS have been sent to the
consumers.

Tarang (Transmission App for Real Time Monitoring & Growth): - Tarang monitors the
progress of transmission system in the country, both Intra State and Inter State Transmission
Projects through Tariff Based Competitive Bidding (TBCB) as well as Regulated Tariff
Mechanism. Tarang also shows the prospective upcoming Intra-State as well as Inter - State
Projects along with NITs being floated by different Transmission Utilities Pan-India. Tarang
provides advance information of upcoming transmission projects approved by Empowered
Committee on Transmission helping bidders to gear up future transmission projects.

11 kV Rural Feeder Monitoring Scheme: - RECTPCL has been appointed as the nodal agency
for “11 KV Rural Feeder Monitoring Scheme”. The scheme aims to enable monitoring of energy
input/power supply at feeder level and also to give an accurate picture of power supply in rural
area of country to ensure achievement of "24x7 Power for All". Under the scheme, the
distribution parameters viz.- Power supply hours, outage, voltage, Current & PF, are captured.
The modem installation on 11 kV rural feeders is almost completed and data is being acquired at
central server from where various reports are being generated. These reports are useful in decision
support for betterment of rural power supply status.

2. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

During the Financial Year ended March 31, 2019, your company has recorded an income of
%4,045.17 lakh as compared to I5,313.05 lakh in previous financial year. The Profit before tax
and Profit after tax for the Financial Year 2018-19 was ¥3,221.23 lakh and 2,459.99 lakh




respectively. The Net worth of the company as on March 31, 2019 was I11,843.99 lakh against
initial Capital of ¥5 lakh injected by REC Limited (holding company) in the year 2007.

The highlights of Financial Performance of the Company for the FY 2018-19 vis-a-vis
FY 2017-18 are given below:-

(Figures in T Lakh)

Particulars FY 2018-19 FY 2017-18#

Total Revenue 4,045.17 5,313.05
Total Expenses 823.94 628.76
Profit Before Tax 3,221.23 4,684.29
Tax Expenses 761.23 1,192.67
Profit After Tax 2,459.99 3,491.63
Earnings Per Share (?) 4,919.98 6,983.26
Other Equity 11,838.99 17,611.72
Net Worth 11,843.99 17,616.72

# Due to applicability of Ind-AS, financial figures for financial year 2017-18 has
been re-grouped /recast.

3. DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors has declared an Interim dividend of I6,600/- per equity share i.e.
66,000% on the paid up equity share of I10/- each for the financial year ended
March 31, 2019. The total dividend pay-out for the financial year 2018-19 was amounted to
33,300 Lakh (excluding dividend distribution tax), which was paid in the month of March, 2019.
The Board of Directors has not recommended final dividend for the financial year 2018-19.

4. TRANSFER TO RESERVES

There is no transfer made to General Reserve during the year.

5. SHARE CAPITAL

The Authorized Share Capital of the Company is ¥5 Lakh divided into 50000 equity shares
of T10/- each and paid-up share capital of the Company is also 5 Lakh divided into 50,000
equity shares of ¥10/- each and the entire paid-up share capital is held by REC Limited (holding
company) and its nominees.

6. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As per Article 110 of Articles of Association of Company, the number of Directors of the
Company shall not be less than 3 and not more than 12. The Company does not have any
Executive Director on its Board.

During the financial year ended March 31, 2019, the Board comprised of the following directors:

SI. Name of the | Director Designation Date of Appointment | Date of
No. Director Identification Cessation
Number (DIN)

1. Dr. P.V. Ramesh, 02836069 Chairman | January 5, 2017 Ceased be
Non-Executive Director &
Chairman Chairman

w.e.f.March 6,
2019




2. Shri Ajeet Kumar 02231613 Chairman | December 27, 2008 | Continuing
Agarwal, (Chairman w.e.f.
Non-Executive March 6, 2019)

Chairman*

3. Shri Sanjeev 03464342 Director October 26, 2015 Continuing
Kumar Gupta,
Non-Executive
Director

4 Shri Vijay Kumar 02772733 Director March 18, 2019 Continuing
Singh,
Non-Executive
Director

*During the financial year 2018-19, Ministry of Power, Government of India vide Order No. 46/8/201 1-
RE dated March 5, 2019 had conveyed the appointment of Dr. P.V. Ramesh, IAS as
Director General, National Archives of India. Accordingly, Dr. P.V. Ramesh, IAS, has relinquished the
charge of CMD, REC and ceased to be CMD of REC w.e.f. March 6, 2019. Consequently, the Ministry of
Power, Government of India, vide its Order No. 46/8/2011-RE dated March 6, 2019 assigned the
additional charge of the post of Chairman & Managing Director, REC to Shri Ajeet Kumar Agarwal,
Director (Finance) in REC from March 6, 2019 for a period of three months or until further orders,
whichever is earlier.

All the Non-Executive Directors on the Board of the Company are nominated by the Holding
Company; therefore, they are not entitled to any remuneration from the Company. As per
Article 111 of Articles of Association of Company, the Chairman & Managing Director of REC
is the Ex-officio part time Chairman on the Board of the Company, who shall not be liable to
retire by rotation.

The Company is not required to appoint Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs) as the provisions of
Section 203(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of Companies (Appointment &
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

As per the provisions of Section 152 of Companies Act, 2013, Shri Sanjeev Kumar Gupta (DIN:
03464342), 1s liable to retire by rotation and being the longest in the office, shall retire by
rotation in the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company and being eligible, offers
himself for re-appointment. His brief resume is annexed to the Notice of the Annual General
Meeting.

. NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF BOARD, DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE AT BOARD
MEETINGS AND LAST ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (AGM).

During the Financial Year 2018-19, nine (9) meetings of the Board of Directors of the Company
were held wviz. (1) May 16, 2018; (1) June 18, 2018; (i) July 24, 2018;
(iv) September 17, 2018; (v) November 30, 2018; (vi) December 5, 2018; (vii) February 6, 2019;
(viii)) March 18, 2019 and (ix) March 25, 2019. The intervening gap between the Meetings was
within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. The Company is also complying
with the Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India in respect
of Board Meetings (SS-1) and General Meetings (SS-2).




Annual General Meeting:- The last Annual General Meeting of the Company was held on
September 17, 2018.

During the Financial Year 2018-19, the details of Directors’ attendance at the Board Meetings,
last Annual General Meetings (AGM) and number of other Directorship held by Directors are
tabled below:

SL. Name of Director Board Meetings Attendance| No. of other
No. at Last | Directorships
dHe.ld Attended | Percentage AGM (held As on March
uring of
on 31, 2019 (other
the tenure Attendance
September than
17, 2018) | RECTPCL)
1. |Dr. P.V. Ramesh, 7 7 100 Present N.A.
Chairman
(Ceased be be Chairman
& Director w.e.f. March
6, 2019)
2. |Shri Ajeet Kumar 9 9 100 Present 3
Agarwal, Non-Executive
Director
(Chairman w.e.f. March
6, 2019)
3. |Shri Sanjeev Kumar 9 9 100 Present 2
Gupta, Non-Executive
Director
4. |Shri Vijay Kumar Singh, 2 2 100 N.A. 4
Non-Executive Director

8. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT AS PER DPE GUIDELINES

The Department of Public Enterprises (DPE) had issued guidelines on Corporate Governance
for Central Public Sector Enterprises with the objective to formulate in the functioning of
CPSEs that would protect the interest of Shareholders and relevant stakeholders.

In pursuance of Guidelines on Corporate Governance for Central Public Sector Enterprises
(CPSEs), 2010, issued by DPE Compliance Report is being submitted to Ministry of Power
within 15 days from the end of quarter. The details of submission of the report are as under:

Report for Quarter ended Date of submission of report
June 30, 2018 July 10, 2018
September 30, 2018 October 10, 2018
December 31, 2018 January 14, 2019
March 31, 2019 April 15, 2019

A comprehensive report containing Annual Score for the Financial Year 2018-19 (consolidated
score of four quarters) was submitted to Ministry of Power on May 17, 2019 against the due
date of May 31, 2019.




9. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

The details of last three Annual General Meetings of the Company are as under:

Meeting | Financial | Date Venue Whether any
No. Year Special
Resolution
passed
9® 2015-16 September 19, 2016 Core-4, SCOPE
" Complex,7,
10 2016-17 September 19, 2017 Lodhi Road,
New Delhi- No
110003
1™ | 2017-18 September 17, 2018

No Extraordinary General Meetings was held during the financial year 2018-19. Further, no
resolutions have been passed by Postal Ballot during the financial year 2018-19.

10. GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION

The details of Annual General Meeting for the Financial Year 2018-19 is as under:

Day and Date Venue

August___, 2019 | Core 4, SCOPE Complex, 7, Lodhi Road, New Delhi — 110 003

11.DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

The details of companies which have become or ceased to be subsidiaries, joint ventures or
associate companies and a report on the performance & financial position of each of such
subsidiaries, associates and joint venture companies as per the Companies Act, 2013 is provided
in Form AOC 1 which forms part of this Annual Report.

12. STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/s P. Jain & Company, Chartered Accountants (Firm Reg. No.000711C) Ghaziabad was
appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company for the Financial Year 2018-19 by the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India. The Statutory Auditors have audited the Financial
Statements of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2019. The Audited Financial
Statements, Cash Flow Statement and the required annexure together with the Auditors’ Report
thereto are annexed to this Report. There are no adverse comments, observation or reservations in
the Statutory Auditors' Report on the Financial Statements of the Company.

Further, M/s P. Jain & Company, Chartered Accountant has also been appointed as Statutory
Auditors of the Company for the financial year 2019-20 by the Comptroller and Auditor General
(C&AGQG) of India. Approval of the Members of the Company is being obtained in ensuing Annual
General Meeting, to authorize the Board of Directors of the Company, to fix the remuneration of
Statutory Auditors for the financial year 2019-20.




13. COMMENTS OF THE C&AG OF INDIA

The Comptroller & Auditor General (C&AG) of India has mentioned that on the basis of audit,
nothing significant has come to their knowledge which would give rise to any comment upon or
supplement to Auditors’ Report. The copy of the same forms part of this Annual Report.

14. HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT

Your Company does not appoint any permanent employees. Some of the employees of holding
company i.e. REC Limited have been assigned additional duty to carry out the day to day work of
the Company. However, for operational convenience and managing day to day affairs, holding
company has deployed various officials on part-time/full time basis, who are having rich and
varied experience in the respective fields. The Company has also engaged Chartered Accountants,
Engineering Graduates and other professionals on contract basis through manpower supply
agencies. Further, the Ministry directions with respect to percentage of persons employed with
disabilities (PwDs) are applicable to the holding company and to that extent applicable to
RECTPCL also.

SL. Particulars Nos. of Employees
No. As on As on
March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018
1. | Regular Employees deployed by REC on 9 9
secondment basis
ii. | Fixed Tenure Staff 8 8
1ii. | Outsourced staff on Contract basis through 96 126
Manpower Supply Agency
Total 113 143

As on March 31, 2019; the Company had 6 (women employees), which includes both regular and
contractual staff, as against 5 (women employees) as on March 31, 2018.

15.PARTICULARS REGARDING CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY
ABSORPTION, EXPENDITURE INCURRED ON RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT
AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO.

There are no significant particulars, relating to conservation of energy, technology absorption,
expenditure on Research and Development, as your company does not own any manufacturing
facility. However, the Company has made intensive use of technology in its operations during the
year under review. Further, no Export initiatives were carried out during the year and the
Company has no earning or outgo in foreign exchange as per Rule 8(3) of Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014.

16. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS AND ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED
PARTIES

The arrangements/transactions during the financial year with related parties were in the ordinary
course of business and on arm’s length basis. Disclosures of related party transactions and
particulars of contracts or arrangements referred to in Section 188(1) of Companies Act, 2013, in
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prescribed Form AOC-2, as per Rule 8(2) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, is appended as
Annexure to this Board’s report.

17. A STATEMENT INDICATING DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF A

RISK =~ MANAGEMENT POLICY FOR THE COMPANY INCLUDING
IDENTIFICATION THEREIN OF ELEMENTS OF RISK, IF ANY, WHICH IN THE
OPINION OF THE BOARD MAY THREATEN THE EXISTENCE OF THE COMPANY,
SHALL FORM PART OF THE BOARD’S REPORT.

The Company has been created to carry out the role of Bid Process Coordinator (BPC) under the
Tariff Based Competitive Bidding (TBCB) process for selection of bidders as identified by the
Ministry of Power, Government of India for transmission projects. Hence, presently a separate risk
management policy for the company has not been developed. However there is no such element of
risk which in the opinion of the Board may threaten the existence of the Company.

18. STATUTORY DISCLOSURES

a.

b.

=

There are no instances regarding non-compliance, penalties, strictures imposed on the
company by any statutory authority during the last three years.

There are no material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of the
Company which has occurred between the end of the financial year i.e. March 31, 2019 and
the date of this report.

The Company has not accepted any public deposits during the financial year 2018-19.

The Company is a Wholly Owned Subsidiary of REC Limited and accordingly, Presidential
Directives issued by the Central Government, if any, applicable to holding company shall
apply to the Company as well.

There is no expenditure debited in Books of accounts, which is not for the purpose of the
business.

There is no expense incurred which are personal in nature and incurred for the Board of
Directors and Top Management.

The administrative and office expenses for the financial year 2018-19 increased to
331.96 Lakh as compared to ¥180.43 Lakh during the financial year 2017-18, mainly on
account of increase in manpower cost for implementation of various Government schemes and
other management consultancy projects and increase in office rent. Further, during the
financial year 2018-19, Administrative and office expenses as a percentage of total expenses
were 31.04 % as compared to 29.69 % during the previous year.

There was no change in the nature of business of the Company during the Financial Year
2018-19.
No significant and material orders have been passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals
which would affect the going concern status and Company’s operations in future.

The Particulars of investments under Section 186 of Companies Act, 2013 are given in the
notes to accounts to financial statements of the Company and as such form part of this Annual
Report.

Adequate internal financial control is exercised keeping in view the size of operations of the
company.
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19.

The provisions relating to Audit Committee is not applicable to the Company. However the
Financial Statements of the Company is being reviewed by Audit Committee of Holding
Company.

The Board of your company in its 44™ Meeting held on February 12, 2014 has approved that
being a wholly owned subsidiary Company of REC, the rules, regulations, policies &
guidelines adopted by REC shall be applicable mutatis mutandis on RECTPCL also. The same
is adhered to by the Company.

The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records for the
products/services of the Company under Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014,
read with Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Amendment Rules, 2014 prescribed by the
Central Government under Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, Cost
Accounts and Records are not required to be maintained by the Company.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to Section 92(3) of Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 12(1) of Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, an extract of Annual Return in Form MGT-9
forms part of the Annual Report.

20.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILTY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, your Directors confirm that:

a)

b)

21.

in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended March 31, 2019, the applicable
accounting standards read with requirements set out under Schedule III to the Act, have been
followed and there are no material departures from the same.

such accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and judgments and
estimates were made that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2019 and of the profit of the company for the
year ended on that date.

they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

the financial statements have been prepared on a ‘going concern’ basis.

they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

OBLIGATION OF THE COMPANY UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF

WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL)
ACT, 2013.

During the financial year 2018-19, no complaint of sexual harassment was received by the
Company under the provisions of 'Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition & Redressal) Act 2013'.
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22. REPORTING UNDER PUBLIC PROCUREMENT POLICY FOR MICRO & SMALL
ENTERPRISES (MSEs) ORDER, 2012

During the FY 2018-19, your Company has been registered on the Trade Receivables Discounting
System (TReDS) platform, set up as per the notification of the Reserve Bank of India. This will
help the MSME sellers to discount their bills on the said platform.

RECTPCL being a subsidiary of REC, the set of rules, regulations, policies and guidelines adopted
in REC Limited (holding company) apply mutatis-mutandis to RECTPCL to the extent applicable.
Further, to encourage participation by Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (MSMEs), all the
directives mentioned in the Public Procurement Policy Order, 2012 have been included in REC
procurement guidelines including Micro and Small enterprises owned by SC/ST and it has also
been uploaded on website of REC / RECTPCL at the below mentioned link.

http://www.rectpcl.in/pdf/Procurement%20policy-online%20upload.pdf

RECTPCL, being a Management Consultancy Organization, is not executing any project. Hence,
only petty purchase i.e. stationery and office equipment from small vendors are being made.
However, no target has been fixed for financial year 2018-19 to this effect.

23. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The ‘RECTPCL Policy on Corporate Social Responsibility’ prepared in line with the provisions of
Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder. The Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, and Guidelines for CSR and Sustainability for Central Public
Sector Enterprises issued by Department of Public Enterprises, Ministry of Heavy Industries &
Public Enterprises, effective from April 1, 2014, was approved by the Board of Directors of the
Company. As per the provisions of Section 135 of Companies Act 2013, the Board of Directors of
the Company has constituted “Corporate Social Responsibility Committee”. Web-link of CSR
policy of RECTPCL is as under.

http://www.rectpcl.in/pdf/CSR_Sust_Policy.pdf

Composition of CSR Committee
During the Financial Year 2018-19, the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee comprised of
the following Members:

Sl. | Name of the | Position in Committee No. of Meeting | No. of
No. | Committee Members held during the | Meetings
tenure attended
1. | Dr. P.V. Ramesh Chairman (ceased to be Chairman 2 2
with effect from March 6, 2019)
2. | Shri  Ajeet Kumar | Chairman 2 2
Agarwal (w.e.f. March 18, 2019)
3. | Shri Sanjeev Kumar | Member 2 2
Gupta
4. | Shri  Vijay Kumar | Member - -
Singh (w.e.f. March 18, 2019)

The quorum of CSR Committee was two members including the Chairman of the Committee.
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During the Financial Year 2018-19, two Meetings of the CSR Committee were held on
(1) September 17, 2018 and (ii) December 05, 2018.

Details of CSR Fund spent during the financial year:

CSR Budget for the financial year 2018-19 was I 143.28 Lakh (including unspent amount of
% 50.28 Lakh of Financial Year 2017-18). Further, during the financial year 2018-19, your company
has disbursed amounting to ¥27.65 Lakh towards various CSR projects. Balance unspent amount of
CSR Fund of%115.63 Lakh has been carried forward to the next Financial Year 2019-20 due to non-
availability of good projects.

A detailed Annual Report, in terms of Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules,
2014, on CSR and Sustainability activities is annexed to this Report.

24. COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

As per Clause 8.2 of Guidelines on Corporate Governance for Central Public Sector Enterprises,
2010 issued by DPE, the Certificate for compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance for the
financial year ended March 31, 2019, obtained from Pranav Kumar & Associates, Practicing
Company Secretaries, is annexed to this Report.

25. STATUTORY AND OTHER INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS

Information required to be furnished as per the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable statutory
provisions is annexed to this report as under:

Particulars Annexure
Management Discussion & Analysis Report I
Annual Report on CSR Activities II
Extract of Annual Return 111
Particulars of Contracts or Arrangement with Related Parties v
Certificate on Corporate Governance \Y
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ANNEXURE-I TO THE BOARD’S REPORT

Management Discussion & Analysis Report

The Management of the Company is pleased to present its report on the Industry Scenario
including on the Company’s performance during the financial year 2018-19.

OVERVIEW

Power is one of the most critical components of infrastructure, crucial for the economic growth
and welfare of nations. The existence and development of adequate infrastructure is essential for
sustained growth of the Indian economy. The electricity generation in the country has witnessed
increased growth during the last few Plan periods with CAGR of 5.16% in X Plan (2002-07),
5.77% in XI Plan (2007-12) and 6.0% in XII Plan (2012 to 2015-16). India’s power sector is one
of the most diversified in the world. Sources of power generation range from conventional
sources such as coal, lignite, natural gas, oil, hydro and nuclear power to viable non-conventional
sources such as wind, solar and agricultural & domestic waste. The generation mix has also been
witnessing a change with increasing penetration of renewables. Indian power sector is undergoing
a significant change that has redefined the industry outlook. Sustained economic growth
continues to drive electricity demand in India.

The Government of India’s focus on attaining ‘Power for all’ has accelerated capacity addition in
the country. As on March 31, 2019, the total installed capacity of power stations in India stood at
356 GW. In order to meet the increasing demand for electricity in the country, massive addition
to the installed generating capacity is required. At the same time, the competitive intensity is
increasing at both the demand and supply sides (fuel, logistics, finance, and manpower). It is
pertinent to mention that India has turned a net exporter of electricity for the first time in FY
2017-18, with 7,203 Million Units (MUs) supplied to Nepal, Bangladesh and Myanmar. Further,
India has also supplied 4,628 MUs to the said countries upto October 2018, in FY 2018-19. With
surplus coal and power, the Government is taking several initiatives to provide 24X7 quality
power for all.

INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENT

Industry Overview

The present scenario in the Transmission & Distribution (T&D) sector is very dynamic.
Transmission, an important element in the power delivery value chain, facilitates evacuation of
power from generating stations and its delivery to the load centres. For efficient dispersal of
power to deficit regions, strengthening the transmission system network, enhancing the Inter-
State power transmission system, augmentation of the National Grid and enhancement of the
transmission system network are required. An extensive network of transmission lines has been
developed over the years for evacuating power produced by different electricity generating
stations and distributing the same to the consumers. The nominal Extra High Voltage lines in
vogue are + 800 kV HVDC & 765 kV, 400 kV, 230/220 kV, 110 kV and 66 kV AC lines. The
country’s power transmission sector has witnessed unprecedented growth in the past five years,
with line length and transformer capacity growing at an average annual growth rate of 6.5% and
9.6%, respectively. Further, both operational and financial performances of the transmission
utilities have witnessed an improvement. Going forward, an estimated 2.6 trillion investments
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are required in the transmission sector to meet future peak load, which is expected to reach 234
GW by 2021-22. The private sector is expected to play an important role in achieving the
country’s grid expansion targets, as competitive bidding gains momentum at both inter-state and
intra-state levels.

Several grid expansion programmes such as the Green Energy Corridor and cross-border links are
underway to expand the physical grid infrastructure. Further, transmission utilities, at the central
and state level are expected to invest significantly in new technologies to make grids more
reliable, resilient, secure and smart. The sector is also expected to immensely benefit from major
policy reforms, including the Electricity Act amendments and the Tariff Policy amendments.

During the financial year 2018-19, a total of 22,437 cKm (circuit kilometers) of transmission lines
were added, as compared to about 23,119 cKm during the previous fiscal. Transformation
capacity of 72,705 MVA (Mega Volt Amp) was added during the financial year 2018-19 at 765
kV, 400 kV and 220 kV levels taken together.

Transmission sector works as a foundation stone, strongly holding the development of power
generation & distribution segments. The growth of power sector is contingent to development of
a robust and a non-collapsible transmission network.

PRODUCT WISE PERFORMANCE

RECTPCL is conducting the bidding process for Inter-state and Intra-state transmission projects
in the shortest time span and greatest transparency, starting from selection of qualified bidders to
handing over of the Special Purpose Vehicle to the lowest bidder. This has led to greater
participation of the private sector in the transmission business domain, and hence greater
competition. Presently, the works undertaken by RECTPCL include the following:

Urja Mitra

Urja Mitra is a distribution sector initiative of Ministry of Power, Government of India, being
implemented through your Company. Urja Mitra is first of its kind application which provides a
central platform (web-portal www.urjamitra.com as well as mobile app) for State Power
Distribution utilities to disseminate Power Outage information to urban/ rural power consumers
across India through SMS/email/push notifications.

11 kV Rural Feeder Monitoring Scheme

11kV Rural Feeder Monitoring is a distribution sector initiative of Ministry of Power,
Government of India, being implemented through your Company. The scheme aims to enable
monitoring of energy input/power supply at feeder level and also to give an accurate picture of
power supply in rural area of country to ensure achievement of "24x7 Power for All".

Tarang

TARANG is a transmission sector initiative for its better monitoring, being run under guidance
from Ministry of Power through your company, which has developed ‘TARANG’- Transmission
App for Real-Time Monitoring & Growth. TARANG is an informative medium to provide
information regarding Pan-India progress of Transmission System which can be drilled down to
month wise, agency wise, state wise, etc.
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OPPORTUNITIES

India’s power sector is experiencing a considerable reformation that has redefined the industry
outlook. Further, the Ministry of Power, Government of India has launched several programmes
to transform its vision of ‘24x7 Power for All’ into reality. Incredible work has been done towards
achieving 100% electrification of all villages and households in the country. In fact, successful
implementation of Saubhagya, with access of electricity in every household, will create huge
latent demand for power in the near future.

The increase in power demand will also require robustness in the Transmission & Distribution
infrastructure, thereby attracting more investment in underground cabling, smart meters &
equipment, AMI / AMR infrastructure and Smart Grid etc., to cater to 24x7 power demand of
all consumers. Further, the investment needs for creation of dedicated Green Corridors and new
network under the Tariff Based Competitive Bidding route are enormous.

With its strategic positioning and expertise in the Transmission sector, RECTPCL is poised for
the existing and emerging opportunities presented by the economic development, emanating from
leading governmental reforms and increasing per capita demand for electricity in the country.

THREATS, RISKS AND CONCERNS

The Power Sector in itself has several high risks, with a plethora of common issues of
infrastructure projects, longer time horizon, dynamic policy environment and intense
competition. The Company is concerned about prevailing exposure norms, poor financial health
of State DISCOMs, high AT&C losses, entry of new players in the market, rising competition,
uncertain business environment etc. Further, the average national PLFs have been low and the
State DISCOMs have a muted demand. While there have been no recent long term PPAs floated
by DISCOMs, the tariffs at power exchanges have also not seen any uptick, resulting in pressure
on the operating assets.

OUTLOOK

India remains as one of the fastest growing emerging market economies in the world with
persistent growth, despite the challenging environment. With key reforms on the block, India is
seen as an engine of global growth. Considering low levels of per capita energy consumption in
India vis-a-vis the world average; and the Government’s strong efforts towards economic
development, it is felt that the outlook for power sector remains strong in the long term. With a
proactive role of the Government in addressing the issues affecting the power sector adversely,
there is a promising outlook, along with ample market opportunities for financial products for the
power sector.

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING-RATING

RECTPCL’s performance has been rated as “Excellent” against the Memorandum of
Understanding (MoU) signed with REC Limited (holding company) for financial year 2017-18.
The Company is poised to receive Excellent Rating for the current year as well.
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INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company maintains an adequate system of Internal Controls including suitable monitoring
procedures to ensure accurate and timely financial reporting of various transactions, efficiency of
operations and compliance with statutory laws, regulations and Company policies. Suitable
delegation of powers and guidelines for accounting has been issued for uniform compliance.

FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

During the Financial Year ended March 31, 2019, the company has recorded an income of
4045.17 Lakh as compared to I5313.05 Lakh in previous financial year. The Profit before tax
and Profit after tax for the FY 2018-19 was I3221.23 Lakh and 32459.99 Lakh respectively. The
Net worth of the company as on March 31, 2019 was ¥11843.99 Lakh against the Net Worth of
Z17654.54 Lakh in the previous year.

HUMAN RESOURCES / INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

The Company does not appoint any permanent employees. Some of the employees of holding
company i.e. REC Limited (formerly Rural Electrification Corporation Limited) have been
assigned full time/additional duty for operational convenience and managing day to day affairs,
who are having rich and varied experience in the respective fields. The Company has also
engaged manpower on contract/ flexi manpower. Further, the Industrial Relations in the
Company continued to be cordial.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY & SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

The Company is complying with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 read with rules
thereunder and DPE Guidelines in respect of CSR.

As a responsible corporate citizen, RECTPCL has been actively pursuing various initiatives on
the front of CSR and Sustainable Development. During the financial year 2018-19, the Company
has CSR budget 0f I92.99 Lakh towards CSR activities/projects. Further, unspent amount of the
previous year of ¥50.28 Lakh was added to the CSR expenditure of current year, therefore the
total amount was works out to I143.28 Lakh (including unspent amount of ¥50.28 Lakh of
Financial Year 2017-18). Further, the amount of ¥27.65 Lakh was disbursed in respect of various

CSR projects, as per details given in the detailed Report on CSR and Sustainability activities,
which forms a part of this Annual Report. Balance amount of CSR Fund of 115.63 Lakh has
been carried forward to the next Financial Year 2019-20.

Cautionary Note

Certain statements in “Management Discussion and Analysis” section may be forward looking and are

stated as required by applicable laws and regulations. Many factors may affect the actual results, which could
be different from what the Management envisages in terms of future performance and outlook.
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ANNEXURE-II TO THE BOARD’S REPORT

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2018-19

1. A brief outline of the company’s CSR policy, including overview of Project or programs proposed
to be undertaken and reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or programs.

CSR Policy of RECTPCL shall be mutatis-mutandis the CSR policy of REC Limited (formerly Rural
Electrification Corporation Limited (holding company).
Web link of CSR policy of RECTPCL is as under.
http://rectpcl.in/pdf/CSR_Sust Policy.pdf

2. The Composition of the CSR Committee.

The Composition of CSR Committee of RECTPCL is as follows;

a) Shri Ajeet Kumar Agarwal, Chairman-RECTPCL, Chairman of the Committee
b) Shri Sanjeev Kumar Gupta, Director-RECTPCL, Member of the Committee
c¢) ShriV. K. Singh, Director RECTPCL, Member of the Committee

3. The Composition of the Sub-Committee on CSR of RECTPCL

The Composition of Sub-Committee on CSR of RECTPCL is as follows;

a) Shri Bhupender Gupta, Addl. CEO- RECTPCL
b) Shri B. K. Johar, CFO, RECTPCL

c¢) Dr.

4. Average net profit of the company for last three financial years.

Pankaj Verma, DGM, RECTPCL

Average net profit of the RECTPCL, for last three FY is I4,649.95 Lakh.

5. Prescribed CSR Expenditure

Approved CSR Expenditure for FY- 2018-19 is ¥92.99 Lakh (2% of amount of average Net Profit for
the last three years).

The details available CSR fund:

Sl. Particulars Amount in ILakhs
No.

1 2% of Average Net Profit for last three FY 92.99

Profit for last three years: - (Amount in ¥ Lakhs)

Particulars 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18
PBT, as per the provisions of the Companies 424185 4,985.79 472221
Act, 2013
Average profit of last 3 financial years - - 4,649.95
CSR @ 2% for FY 2018-19 - - 92.99
Add: Balance unspent amount for FY i ) 5008
2017-18 '
Total Budget for CSR for FY 2018-19 - - 143.28
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6. Details of CSR spent during the financial year;

a) Total amount spent for the financial year: ¥27.65 Lakhs
b) Amount unspent, if any: ¥115.63 Lakhs
¢) Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below:

(In ZLakhs)

9)

2)

3)

4)

S)

6)

7

8)

SI.

CSR project or

activity identified

Sector in
which the
project is
covered

Projects or

programs

(1)Local area
or other

(2)Specify the
State
district where
projects or
programs was

and

undertaken

Amount
outlay

(budget)
project
programs-
wise

or

Amount
spent on the
projects
programs
Sub-heads:

(1). Direct
expenditure
on projects
or programs

)
heads

or

Over-

Cumulative
expenditure
up to the
reporting
period

Amount
spent
Direct
or
through
impleme
nting
Agency

Artificial Limbs
Manufacturing
Corporation of India
(ALIMCO) (Govt.
of India
Undertaking)  has
submitted proposal
for conducting
camps for
distribution of Aids
& Assistive device to
Persons with
Disabilities (PwDs)
under initiative of
REC Transmission
Projects Company
Limited
(RECTPCL) at 02
suitable locations at
Kerala &  Uttar
Pradesh

Kerala

40.00

17.59

17.59

Direct

Eureka Forbes
Institute Of
Environment (EFIE)
proposal (Annex-B)
for providing safe
drinking water to

the Schools (RO
Water ATM) in 7
Zila Parishad
Schools

Maharashtra

15.60

10.06

10.06

Direct
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Maharashtra.

TOTAL 55.60 27.65 27.65

CSR Opbligation of
RECTPCL for FY

92.99
2018-19
Balance unspent
CSR fund 115.63

In case the company has failed to spend the two percent of the average net profit of the last three
financial years or any part thereof, the company shall provide the reasons for not spending the amount
in its Board report.

The Company has not able to spend the available fund under CSR during the year 2018-19 due to non-
availability of good projects and therefore, the balance fund has been carried forward to next financial year
2019-20.

8. The implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy, is in compliance with CSR objectives and
policy of the company.

Leoa— &

(V. K. Singh) (Ajeet Kumar Agarwal)
Director- RECTPCL Chairman- CSR Committee
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FORM NO. MGT -9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on financial year ended on March 31, 2019

(Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Company (Management & Administration) Rules, 2014.)

ANNEXURE-III TO THE BOARD’S REPORT

I. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

1. | CIN U40101DL2007GO1157558

2. | Registration Date January 8, 2007

3. | Name of the Company REC Transmission Projects Company Limited

4. | Category/Sub-category of the Company Company limited by shares / Union Government Company

5. | Address of the Registered office & contact details Core-4, SCOPE Complex, 7 Lodhi Road, New Delhi-110003.
Ph. No.- 011-24362215 Fax No.- 011-24360227

6. | Whether listed company No

7. | Name, Address & contact details of the Registrar & Transfer Agent, if any. | N. A.

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY:
All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:-

Sl. | Name and Description of main products / services NIC Code of | % to total turnover of
No. the the company
Product/serv
1. | To promote organize or carry on the business of consultancy services and/or project implementation 7020 100%
III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES AS ON MARCH 31, 2019:
Sl. | Name of the Address CIN/GLN Holding/ % of shares | Applicable
No. | Company Subsidiary/Associate | held Section
1. | Power Finance ‘URJANIDHTI’, 1, Barakhamba | L65910DL1986G01024862 Holding Company NIL 2(46)
Corporation Limited | Lane, Connaught Place, New (52.63% Shares of
(PFC) Delhi-110001 REC Limited held by
PFC Limited)
2. | REC Limited Core 4, SCOPE Complex, 7, L40101DL1969GOI1005095 Holding Company 100% of 2(46)
Lodhi Road, New Delhi-110003. RECTPCL
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U40300DL2015GOI1288066

U40108DL2018GOI1330905

U40300DL2018GOI1331192

U40300DL2018G01331490

U40101DL2018GOI1331526

U40300DL2018GO1338734

U40100DL2018GOI1342365

U40105DL2019G01347089

U40100DL2019GO1347127

U40101DL2019G01347423

U40107DL2019G01347428

U40107DL2019GOI1347713

Subsidiary Company

100% by
RECTPCL

2(87)

3. | Dinchang
Transmission Limited

4. | Chandil Transmission
Limited

5. | Koderma
Transmission Limited

6. | Dumka Transmission
Limited

7. | Mandar Transmission
Limited

8. | Bhind Guna
Transmission Limited

9. | Udupi Kasargode
Transmission Limited

10. | Jam Khambaliya
Transco Limited

11. | Khetri Transco
Limited

12. | Ajmer Phagi Transco
Limited

13. | Lakadia Banaskantha
Transco Limited

14. | WRSS XXI (A)
Transco Limited

Notes:

REC Transmission Projects Company Limited (RECTPCL) acts as “Bid Process Coordinator” for selection of Transmission Service Provider(s),
through Tariff Based Competitive Bidding (TBCB) process for independent inter-state and intra-state transmission projects allocated by the Ministry
of Power (MoP), Government of India and State Governments from time to time. In order to initiate development of each of such independent
transmission project allocated to it, RECTPCL incorporates project specific Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) as its wholly-owned subsidiary, which is
also a Wholly-Owned Subsidiary of REC as per the provisions of Section 2(87) of the Companies Act, 2013. Further, such SPVs are subsequently
transferred along with all assets and liabilities to the successful bidder(s) selected through TBCB process.

During the financial year 2018-19, 2 (two) SPVs were transferred to successful bidders selected through TBCB process. Details about the same are
given in the Board’s Report forming part of this Annual Report. Further, during the financial year 2018-19, Eight SPVs were incorporated namely
Jawaharpur Firozabad Transmission Limited on 20™ August, 2018, Bhind Guna Transmission Limited on 18" September, 2018, Udupi Kasargode
Transmission Limited on 29" November, 2018, Jam Khambaliya Transco Limited on 11"® March, 2019, Khetri Transco Limited on 12 March, 2019,

33



Ajmer Phagi Transco Limited on 19™ March, 2019, Lakadia Banaskantha Transco Limited on 19" March, 2019 and WRSS XXI (A) Transco Limited
on 26™ March, 2019. Further, on 2™ May, 2019 one project specific special purpose vehicle i.e. Rampur Sambhal Transco Limited was also
incorporated.

. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

(i) Category-wise Share Holding

Category of Shareholders | No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year [As No. of Shares held at the end of the year % Change
on April 1,2018] [As on March 31, 2019] during
Demat Physical Total % of Total Demat Physical Total % of Total the year
Shares Shares
A. Promoters
(1) Indian
a) Individual/ HUF 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
b) Central Govt 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
c¢) State Govt(s) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
d) Bodies Corp. 0 50,000 50,000 100 0 50,000 50,000 100 0
e) Banks / FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
f) Any other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sub-total (A)(1) 0 50,000 50,000 100 0 50,000 50,000 100 0
(2) Foreign 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
(@  NRIs-Individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
(b)  Other-individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
(0 Bodies Corporate 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
d) Banks / FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
e) Any other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sub-total (A) (2):- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total shareholding of 0 50,000 50,000 100 0 50,000 50,000 100 0
Promoter (A) = (A)(1) +
(A)Q2)
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B. Public Shareholding

1. Institutions

a) Mutual Funds

b) Banks / FI

c) Central Govt

d) State Govt(s)

e) Venture Capital Funds

oI oo O O ©

oI OO O O ©

oI OO O O ©

oI OO O O ©

O OO o O ©

O OO o O ©

O Ol O o O ©

oI OO O O ©

O OO O O ©

f) Insurance Companies

g) FlIs

h) Foreign Venture
Capital Funds

1) Others (specify)

Sub-total (B)(1):-

2. Non-Institutions

a) Bodies Corp.

1) Indian

i) Overseas

b) Individuals

1) Individual shareholders
holding nominal share
capital upto 1 lakh

(=) e N e] e ) Nen)

(o) e} N e] e ) Nen)

(=) e N e] e ) Nen)

(o) e N e] e ) Nen)

(=) o) N e) i) Nl

(=) o) N e) i) Nl

(=) o) Ne) i) N

(=) ) N e] e ) Nen)

(=) o) Nej i) N

ii) Individual shareholders
holding nominal share
capital in excess of I1lakh

c¢) Others
(specify)(Trustee)
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Sub-total (B)(2):- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Public 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Shareholding (B)=(B)(1)+
B)2)
C. Shares held by 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Custodian for GDRs &
ADRs
Grand Total (A+B+C) 0 50,000 50,000 100 0 50,000 50,000 100 0

Note: The entire Paid-up Share Capital of REC Transmission Projects Company Limited is held by REC Limited (holding company) and its Nominees.
ii) Shareholding of Promoter-

Sl1. hareholder’ Shareholding at the beginning of the year Shareholding at the end of the year % change in
No. Shareholder’s Name (As on April 1, 2018) (As on March 31, 2019) shareholding
No. of | % of total % of Shares No. of % of total % of Shares | during the year
Shares Shares of Pledged / Shares Shares of the Pledged /
the encumbered to company encumbered
company total shares to total
shares
1 REC Limited 49,994 99.988 0.00 49,994 99.988 0 0
2 | Shri Ajeet Kumar Agarwal* 1 0.002 0.00 1 0.002 0 0
3 | Shri Sanjeev Kumar Gupta* 1 0.002 0.00 1 0.002 0 0
4 | Shri Sanjiv Garg* 1 0.002 0.00 1 0.002 0 0
5 | Shri Ashok Awasthi* 1 0.002 0.00 1 0.002 0 0
6 | Shri Ajoy Choudhury* 1 0.002 0.00 1 0.002 0 0
7. | Shri V.K. Singh* 1 0.002 0.00 1 0.002 0 0
Total 50,000 100 0.00 50,000 100 0 0

* As nominee of REC Limited i.e. holding Company.

Note: Shri Ajeet Kumar Agarwal (DIN: 02231613), Shri Sanjeev Kumar Gupta (DIN: 03464342) and Shri Vijay Kumar Singh (DIN:02772733) are also
the Directors of the Company and they are holding 1 equity share of ¥ 10/- each as nominees of REC Limited (holding company).
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iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change):

/transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.):

At the end of the year

SL. Name of the Shareholder Shareholding at the beginning of the | Cumulative Shareholding at the end of the year
No. year (As on March 31, 2019)
(As on April 1, 2018)
No. of shares % of total No. of shares % of total
shares of the shares of the
company company
REC Limited
At the beginning of the year
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters
Shareholding during the year specifying the
reasons for gincreatseg / decryease (6133. g. lelo%ment No Change

Note: REC Limited along with its nominees holds the entire Paid-up Share Capital of X5,00,000 divided into 50,000 equity share of X10/- each in the

Company and there is no change in the Promoter's Shareholding during the financial year 2018-19.

(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders:
(Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

SI.
No.

Name of the Shareholder

Shareholding at the beginning of the | Cumulative Shareholding at the end of the year

year (As on March 31, 2019)
(As on April 1, 2018)

No. of % of total No. of shares % of total
shares shares of the shares of the
company company
At the beginning of the year
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters
Shareholding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase /decrease (e.g. allotment / NIL

transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.):

At the end of the year

Note: REC Limited along with its Nominees holds the entire Paid-up Share CapitalX 5,00,000 divided into 50000 equity share of X10/- each in the Company as

indicated in shareholding of promoters.
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(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP):

Sl. Name of the Director/ KMP Shareholding at the beginning of Cumulative Shareholding at the
No. the year end of the year
(As on April 1, 2018) (As on March 31, 2019)
No. of shares % of total No. of shares % of total
shares of shares of
the the
company company
1 Shri Ajeet Kumar Agarwal (Non-Executive Director)
(DIN: 02231613)
1 Equity Share of 0.002 1 Equity Share of 0.002
At the beginning of the year Z10/- as nominee Z10/- as nominee
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters Shareholding during the 0 0 0 0
year specifying the reasons for increase /decrease (e.g. allotment /
transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.):
At the end of the year 1 Equity Share of 0.002 1 Equity Share of 0.002
R10/- as nominee R10/- as nominee
2 Shri Sanjeevn Kumar Gupta (Non-Executive Director)
(DIN: 03464342)
At the beginning of the year 1 Equity Share of 0.002 1 Equity Share of 0.002
R10/- as nominee R10/- as nominee
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters Shareholding during the 0 0 0 0
year specifying the reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. allotment
/transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.):
At the end of the year 1 Equity Share of 0.002 1 Equity Share of 0.002
R10/- as nominee R10/- as nominee
3. Shri Vijay Kumar Singh  (Non-Executive  Director)
(DIN: 02772733)
At the beginning of the year 1 Equity Share of 310/- 0.002 1 Equity Share of310/- 0.002
as nominee as nominee
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters Shareholding during the 0 0 0 0
year specifying the reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. allotment
/transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.):
At the end of the year 1 Equity Share of ¥ 10/- 0.002 1 Equity Share of 310/- 0.002
as nominee as nominee
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V. INDEBTEDNESS -

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment.

Secured I_l,::;sitt;xcludlng Unsecured Loans Deposits Total Indebtedness
Indebtedness at the beginning of the
financial year
(1) Principal Amount 0 0 0 0
(i1) Interest due but not paid 0 0 0 0
(iii) Interest accrued but not due 0 0 0 0
Total (i+ii+iii) 0 0 0 0
Change in Indebtedness during the
financial year
* Addition 0 0 0 0
* Reduction 0 0 0 0
Net Change 0 0 0 0
Indebtedness at the end of the financial
year
(i) Principal Amount 0 0 0 0
(i1) Interest due but not paid 0 0 0 0
(i11) Interest accrued but not due 0 0 0 0
Total (i+ii+iii) 0 0 0 0

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL-

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

SL. Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/ Manager Total Amount
No.
Shri Ajeet Kumar Shri Sanjeev Kumar Shri Vijay Kumar
Agarwal Gupta (Non-Executive Singh (Non-
(Non-Executive Director) Executive Director)
Director)
1 Gross salary 0 0 0 0
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(a) Salary as per provisions

contained in section 17(1) of the
Income-tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2)
Income-tax Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under
section 17(3) Income- tax Act, 1961

2 Stock Option

w

Sweat Equity

4 Commission
- as % of profit
- others, specify...

5 Others, please specify

Total (A)

o

o

[e)

o

Ceiling as per the Act

B. Remuneration to other director

Sl. No. Particulars of Remuneration

Name of Directors

Total Amount

1 Independent Directors

Fee for attending board committee meetings

Commission

Others, please specify

Total (1)

2 Other Executive Directors

Fee for attending board committee meetings

Commission

Others, please specify SALARY

Total (2)

Total (B)=(1+2)

Total Managerial
Remuneration

OIO|IO|IO|IO| OO0 OO0 O OO

(=) (o] el fen) feo) e} [en ]l [en] fan) Il e B e ) fan]

OIO|IO|IO|O| OO |00 O oo

(=) (o] el fen) feo) e ) [en ]l [en]) fan) BN e B e ) fan]

Overall Ceiling as per the Act

[e)

[e)

o

[e)
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C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD:

Sl.No. Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel
CEO Company Secretary CFO Total

1 Gross salary 0 0 0 0
(a) Salary as per provisions contained
in section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 0 0 0 0
1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) 0 0 0 0
Income-tax Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under 0 0 0 0
section 17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961

2 Stock Option 0 0 0 0

3 Sweat Equity 0 0 0 0

4 Commission 0 0 0 0
- as % of profit 0 0 0 0
- Others specify... 0 0 0 0

5 Others, please specify 0 0 0 0
Total 0 0 0 0

Note: The Directors of RECTPCL are the non-executive directors on its Board. Therefore, they are not drawing any remuneration either on monthly or annual basis
from the Company.

VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type Section of Brief Details of Penalty / Authority Appeal made,
the Description | Punishment/ Compounding | [RD / NCLT/ COURT] if any (give Details)
Companies fees imposed

Act

A. COMPANY

Penalty

Punishment NIL

Compounding
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B. DIRECTORS

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

NIL

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN

DEFAULT

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

NIL

Date: August 20, 2019
Place: New Delhi

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

o

(Ajeet Kumar Agarwal)
Chairman
(DIN:02231613)
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Form No. AOC-2

ANNEXURE-IV TO THE BOARD’S REPORT

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to in sub-
section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis:

Name(s) of | Nature of | Duration of | Salient terms of | Justification for | Date(s) of | Amount Date on which
the related | contracts/ the contracts | the contracts or | entering into such | approval | paid as | the resolution
party and | arrangements | / arrangements contracts or | by the | advances, | was passed in
nature of | /transactions | arrangements | or transactions | arrangements or | Board if any general meeting
relationship / transactions | including the | transactions as required under
value, if any first proviso to
Section 188
REC Project Initially 6-7 | Appointment of | RECTPCL 1s| May 19, Nil Not Applicable
Limited Management | months, which | RECTPCL, on | working PAN 2017
(Holding Consultancy | extended to 14 | nomination India basis for
Company) | for Months basis as Project | Transmission
monitoring of Management projects.  Hence,
projects Consultant this projects will
implemented (PMCO) for | add to the
by M/s Essar monitoring  of | credentials of
Power projects of | RECTPCL.
Transmission EPTCL at a fee
Company of %2 Lakh per
Limited Month
(Excluding
applicable
taxes)
REC Project | = - Appointment of | RECTPCL 1s| May 16, Nil Not Applicable
Limited Management RECTPCL, on | working PAN 2018
(Holding Consultancy nomination India basis for
Company) | for basis as Project | Transmission
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monitoring of Management projects.  Hence,
projects Consultant this projects will
implemented (PMCO) for | add to the
by M/s monitoring  of | credentials of
Rajasthan projects of | RECTPCL.
Rajya Vidyut RRVUNL at a
Utpadan PMA fee of
Nigam %10 Lakh
Limited against contract
value of 5.19
Lakh (Inclusive
of Taxes)
REC Project | @ - Appointment of | RECTPCL is | May 16, Nil Not Applicable
Limited Management RECTPCL, on | working PAN 2018
(Holding Consultancy nomination India basis for
Company) | for basis as Project | Transmission
monitoring of Management projects.  Hence,
projects Consultant this projects will
implemented (PMCO) for | add to the
by M/s monitoring  of | credentials of
Maharashtra projects of | RECTPCL.
state Maharashtra
Electricity State Electricity
Distribution Distribution
Company Company
Limited Limited at a

PMA fee of %10
Lakh  against
contract value
of R173. 85
Lakh

(Inclusive ~ Of
Taxes)
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2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:

Name(s) of the | Nature of | Duration of the | Salient terms of the | Date(s) of | Amount paid as
related party and | contracts/arrange | contracts / | contracts or arrangements | approval by the | advances/booked  as
nature of | ments/transactions | arrangements/ | or transactions including | Board, if any advances against
relationship transactions the value, if any expenses in respect of
SPVs, if any
REC Limited Apportionment of On-going Payment of employee cost| ~—  -----
(Holding Employee Cost transaction and administration
Company) and administration expenses of I5,17,50,181/- NIL
expenses incurred (including taxes) on actual
by the holding basis during the financial
company on behalf year 2018-19.
of RECTPCL.
Dinchang Reimbursement of On-going 1,57,012/- during the
Transmission Expenses and transaction financial year 2018-19.
Limited Interest. NIL
(Subsidiary
Company)
Ghatampur Reimbursement of On going %17,93,37,307/- during the
Transmission Expenses , | transactions till | financial year 2018-19.
Limited Consultancy fees | date of transfer
(Subsidiary and Interest (19.06.2018) to
Company) selected bidder NIL
M/s Adani
Transmission
Limited
Jawaharpur Reimbursement of On going 34,11,62,292/-/- during the
Firozabad Expenses , | transactions till | financial year 2018-19.
Transmission Consultancy fees | date of transfer
Limited and Interest (21.12.2018) to
(Subsidiary selected bidder NIL
Company) M/s Power
Grid
Corporation of
India Limited
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Koderma Reimbursement of On-going %1,32,27,508/- during the 339,80,000/- received as
Transmission Expenses and transaction financial year 2018-19. advance  against the
Limited Interest expenses incurred /to be
(Subsidiary incurred, which 1is
Company) adjusted at the end of
the period
Mandar Reimbursement of On-going %1,32,75,163/- during the 344,80,000/- received as
Transmission Expenses and transaction financial year 2018-19. advance  against the
Limited Interest expenses incurred /to be
(Subsidiary incurred, which is
Company) adjusted at the end of
the period
Chandil Reimbursement of On-going 31,43,95,840/- during the 329,80,000/- received as
Transmission Expenses and transaction financial year 2018-19. advance  against the
Limited Interest expenses incurred /to be
(Subsidiary incurred,  which is
Company) adjusted at the end of
the period
Dumka Reimbursement of On-going 31,45,28,419/- during the 334,80,000/- received as
Transmission Expenses and transaction financial year 2018-19. advance  against the
Limited Interest expenses incurred /to be
(Subsidiary incurred, which is
Company) adjusted at the end of
the period
Bhind Guna | Reimbursement of On-going 388,39,345/- during the 34,80,000/- received as
Transmission Expenses and transaction financial year 2018-19. advance  against the
Limited Interest expenses incurred to be
(Subsidiary incurred,  which is
Company) adjusted at the end of
the period
Udupi Kasargode | Reimbursement of On-going 325,21,498/- during the %51,95,000/- received as
Transmission Expenses and transaction financial year 2018-19. advance  against the
Limited Interest expenses incurred /to be
(Subsidiary incurred,  which is
Company) adjusted at the end of

the period
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Ajmer Phagi | Reimbursement of On-going 49,93,007/- during the %31,75,702/- received as
Tranco Limited | Expenses and transaction financial year 2018-19. advance  against the
(Subsidiary Interest expenses incurred /to be
Company) incurred, which is
adjusted at the end of
the period
Jam Khambaliya | Reimbursement of On-going %33,,97,027/- during the 334,30,000/- received as
Transco Limited | Expenses and transaction financial year 2018-19. advance  against the
(Subsidiary Interest expenses incurred /to be
Company) incurred, which is
adjusted at the end of
the period
WRSS XXI (A)| Reimbursement of On-going 364,28,387/- during the %29,27,482/- received as
Transco Limited | Expenses and transaction financial year 2018-19. advance  against the
(Subsidiary Interest expenses incurred /to be
Company) incurred,  which is
adjusted at the end of
the period
Khetri  Transco | Reimbursement of On-going 36,63,627/- during the 40,20,000/- received as
Limited Expenses and transaction financial year 2018-19. advance  against the
(Subsidiary Interest expenses incurred /to be
Company) incurred, which is
adjusted at the end of
the period
Lakadia Reimbursement of On-going 36,22,191/- during the 340,20,000/- received as
Banaskantha Expenses and transaction financial year 2018-19. advance  against the
Transco Limited | Interest expenses incurred /to be
(Subsidiary incurred, which is
Company) adjusted at the end of

the period

Date: August 20, 2019

Place: New Delhi

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

g

(Ajeet Kumar Agarwal)
Chairman
(DIN:02231613)
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ANNEXVRE-TZ to T Boasat Refart

PRANAV KUMAR & ASSOCIATES

i g h: 120 412650
1 marcom - MWW pkaosn

CERTIFICATE ON CORP T VERNANCE

Te,

The Members,

REC Transmission Projects Company Limited,
Core-4, Scope Complex 7,

Lodhi Road, New Dethi

This is to certify that during the financial year 2018-19, REC Transmission Projects
Company Limited {(CIN- U4010!/DL2007GO1157558) hercinafter referred to as “the
Company™ has complied with the provisions of Guidelines on Corporate Governance for
Central Public Sector Enterprises (CPSEs), 2010, issued by Department of Public
Enterprises (DPE) vide O.M. No. [8(8Y 2005- GM dated 14 May, 2010 (including any
amendments or modification from time 10 time), to the extent applicable.

This centificate is issued on the representation of officials of the Company and verification
of the compliance documents on test check basis. It is neither an audit nor an expression of
opinion of financial statements of the Company,

For Pranav Komar & Associates,
Company Secretaries

Date: 10" June, 2019 %/

A Place: Ghaziabad (Partner)
oy 1 Membership No.: F 5013
COP No.: 3429

HEAD OFFICE : 3F CS 70, Thiﬁ Floor, Ansal Plaza Sector-1, Vaishali, Ghaziabad - 201010(U.P)

PATNA : Kunti Sadan, Mahatma Buddh Path, Road No 14, Veer Kunwar Singh, Chowk, Patrﬁa {Bihar)

48



P O O © 29 ¢ 6 0 0 0000 002D00COCOOCOIOGOPOIOESGSEDPOPEFOES®POP>OQVO®P @@ ODVOVOPWG

REC Transmission Projects Company Limited
(CIN:U40101DL2007GOI1157558)

Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2019

{All amounts in Rupees in Lakh, unless stated otherwise}

. As at As at As at
Particulars Notes
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 01 April 2017
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Propurty, plant and equipnene 4 2736 3565 1548
(hher Intanggble asscis 5 1,56 75 0.66
Financial assets
Invesuments G B H37.50 8HB3T.63 HH57. 70
Loans 1 3.0 32R7 9.78
Criher financial asseis B 8634 341 30.23
Other non-currenu asseis u - 169 2353
Total non-current asscis 9,008.81 8,962.00 8,916.39
Cusrrent assets
Financial assets
Investnents 1n 6,483.56 3,56
Feade recervables 11 LT | 1.716.8% K42
Cashoand cash equivadents 12 14,4711 15,88%.08 kY IS
her bank balances i3 3304 [TH e 3039,31
Chier fimancial assos b HB32.13 59591 Pl
Current tax assets {net) 24 145 43 . ;
Other cureent assuts 15 30683 37138 e o]
Assers chissted as hobd for sl 14 955.40 T67.37 30841
Total current asscts 19,620.93 25,919.67 7,315.48|
TOTAL ASSETS 23,629.74 34,881.67 16,231,87
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
liquity share capual 17 3. 5150 S
Cnher wyuity 14 11,538.99 17,611.72 15,7814
Towl equity 11,843.99 17,616.72 15,786.03
Non-current liabilities
Prits1ems 19 630 4.4 Lo
Deterred tax habilities (nety 2 017 1.37 |.42
Totul non-current liabilitics 6.47 5.83 2.45
Current liabilities
Frnanctal liabilities
Chiher Bnangial labilines M 1541438 15.948.03 18.21
(hher current liabiligies Ly §.350.82 1.259.24% 28011
Promisions 25 19 05 [TR311
Current tax liabilitics (net) 4 5175 53.07,
Laabihines direetly assocmted with assosts
classificd as held for sale 14 789 '
Total current liabilities 16,779.28 17,259.12 443.39
Total liabilities 16,785.75 17,264.95 445.84¢
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 28,629.74 34,881.67 16,231.87

Summary of significant accounting policies
The accompanying notes are integral part of the financisl statements,
‘This 1 the balanee sheet referred o in oue repore of even date.

For P.Jain & Company

Chartered \ceouantants
FRN:ou0711C;

1 {}
(Patnkaj Jain)
Pacwer
MRIN:0uT279
Place Nuw Delhi Place: New Delhi
DPaws Dare: 17405-2019

DI Nos: 03464342

lor and en behalf of Boand of Dircetors of
REC Transmission Projec

(Sh. Vijay Kumur Singh)
Director

DIN No: (2772733
Place: New Dellu

Date: 17-03-2019
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REC Transmissien Projects Company Limited
{CIN:U40101DL2007G601157558)

Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended 31 March 2019
{All amounts in Rupees in Lakh, unless stated otherwise)

For the year ended

For the year ended

Partner

MRN:097279

Particulars Notes 31 March 2019 31 Masch 2018
Revenue
Revenue from operations 25 2,809.53 4,173.06
Other income 26 1.175.04 1,140.00
Total income +4,045.17 5,313.05
Expenses
Cost of services rendered 27 133.93 302.83
Employee benefits expense 28 169.67 4372
Fmance costs 29 3161 26.84
Deprecration and amortsation expense 30 1440 13.52
Impatement of asscets 11243 .
Other expenses 3 33426 183.99
Corporate socil responsibilty cxpenses JOINIIL 27.65 57.85
Total expenses 823.94 628.76
Profit before tax 3,221.23 4,684.29
Tax expense 32

Current ras 76243 1,192.72

Detereed tax expense/{eredit) {1.20] (0.06)

761.23 1,192.67

Net profit for the year 2,459.99 3,491.63
Other comprehensive loss

Ltems that will not be reclassified ro profic or loss

Re-messurement gins/{losses) on defined henefie plans
Income tax retating o these items

Other comprehensive Income/(loss) for the year & -
Total comprehensive income for the year 2,459.99 3,491.63
Eamings per equity share

Basic/diluted carnings per share (in Rupues) 33 491998 6,%83.26

Summary of significant accounting policies

‘The accompunying notes ace ntegral pact ot the financial seitements.

This s the statement of torad compenlicsive mcome referred to in our report of even date.

For P, Jain & Company
Chartered Aecountants
IFRM:00071 I

Place: New Delhi

Foragd on behalf of Board of Directors of
REQ Transmission Projects Compan

et O

(h. Sanjeey Ktmar Gupta) (Sh. Vijay Kumar Singh)

Digestrir Dircctor
IDIN No.: 03464342 [DIN No.: 02772733

Place: New Della Place: New Della
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[RECF'ransmission Projects Company Limited
(CW I 40101DL2007GO1157558}

(aily Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2019
{Alla mounts in Rupees in Lakh, unless stated otherwise)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018,
A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax 3,221.23 $,684.29
Adjustments for: '
Deprectanon amd myorusinon expuise 14-H1 1352
[nterest Ineome L7169 (1029 34
Interest Lapense on Wockng camital Joan feom hank ni [[H
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 2,064.65 3,568.82
= Lffustments pv findreas) } daveas in ARHIHE A
Leans iNa Cueeeny) et {234k
Other Non Cureent assets REQ) (1. 1y
Teade receivables G734 (L3N A0
Chther fimaneial assets (Current) (236,22 (49983
ther curcent assets 125,431 . IXCH
Asserd ekl for sale 47 7 (409,38
\ Lefsimeitts for {inarease) | deaee B aperating Gahilitie:
Provedons(Non current) 134 343
Iroviviens{Cureentt 0.l4 ITTiA ]
Cither financial liabilites (Carrent) 333,03 15,4173
Other Carrent liabakites 9333 ER A
Liabilies held for sale 7.4
Mewvement in Operating assets and liabilties {1,425.57) 14,060,538
Cash gencrated from operations 639.08 17,629.20
[.ems: Tnceame "Fas Paid [REPE O 1, 156,004
Net cush flow used in operting activities (A} (320.33) 16,433.16
B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of propeny, plu it oympment 1393 422
Saly oo property, plant aud cygupmicm .68
Purchase of mimgble assets (edtw e n.24
Sabef (b cstmants of/m shares of ssociate companics (Mt [RIXL 1] lavine
Manurity S0y estnxents of Corporate Dopomits 6,483.5¢ (2,900 0y
Blagurity of Term [eposus 5.7 2,792,653
lnterest Recemed 1,163.19 1,210.05
Net cash flow from investing activiies (B} 7,618.00 1,079.9¢
[ CASH FLOWS FROM FENANCING ACTIVITIES
Interest pad .71 1,35
Dyvadends pad (6,829.000) 1030
“Tax o devdernd prand (1,403,725 (2805
Net cash used in financing activities Q) (8,233.43) (1,661.28)
Net Increase/{Decreasc) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) (935.97) 15,851.78
Canh and Cashy Cyuavalents at the Teganang of th: Yo 13.483.08 3.
Cash and Canhy Cyuivalents 6 the cnd of the Year 1494711 13,883.08
Reconciliation of cash and cash egquivalents as per the cash flow statement® {935.97) 15,351.78]

Surmeary of spgmficant accounting policies

The acesmpanyiog aotes are mtegrat part of the fidanenl statements.

Neste: Peotit bedore Tax ncludees CSR exponses Bs, 27.63 Takh (™Y Ra. 57,85 lakhy
Ihis is the statement of cash flow refeered oo aus report of cuen dace.

ForP) ain & Company and o behalf of Board of Dieectoes af
Charreasd Aecountanes
Mawr e I

P \
i // \\'}
i g
(Phadl) oy !’_ﬁh jeev Kumar Gupta) (Sh. Vijay Kumar Singh)
Pagss Darccton Dueecter
MRNIRTTY DN e 03464342 1IN B 2772733
PMace: 01 ow Delin Place: few Dellu Place: New Dok
Daw: Dhate 17-115-2019 Date17-405-2019
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REC Transmission Projects Company Limited
{CIN:U40101DL2007G0I157558)

Statement of changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2019
{All amounts in Rupees in Lakh, unless stated otherwise)

A Equity share capital

Amount
Balance as at 01 April 2017 : 5.00
Changes mn equity share capiral during the year
Balance as at 31 March 2018
5.00
Changes i equity share capital during the vear .
Balance as at 31 March 2019
5.00
B Other equity
General reserve Retained earnings Total
Balance as at 01 April 2017 1,325.00 14,456.03 15,781.03
Profit for the year - 3491.63 3491.63
Final Dividend - {1.380.00) {1,380.00)
Tax on dividend S (280.93) (280.93)
Balance as at 31 March 2018 1,325.00 16,236.72 17,611.72
Profit tor the year S 2.459.99 2,459.99
Final Dividend - (3,529.00) {3,529.0
Tax on final dividend - (725.4)) (725.40)
Laterim dividend - (3,300.00) (3.300.00)
Tax on nterin dividend - (678.32) (678.32)
Balance as at 31 March 2019 1,325.00 10,513.99 11,838.99

Summary of significant accounting policies
The accompanying nores are integral part of the financial starements,

This is the statement of changes in equity referred to i our report of even date,

For P Jain & Company
Chartered Accountants

FRN:0UO711C
_f\f\q
7 V
ankaj Jain) lr.'gnieev Kumar Gupta)
Partner Directur
MRN:097279 DIN No.: 03464342
Place: New Dethi Plice: New Delhi
Date: Date:17-05-2019

For and on behalf of Boacd of Directors of
REC Transmission Projects Company Limited

(Sh. Vijay Kumar Singh)
Director
DIN No.: 02772733

Place: New Dethi
Date:17-05-2019
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REC Transmission Projects Company Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year encled March 31, 2019

(All amounts in Rs lacs, unless otherwise stated)

1

CORPORATE INFORMATION
REC Transmission Projects Company Ltd. (RECTPCL’ ot ‘the Company’) was incorporated in the year 2007.
The Company is domiciled in Iadia and is limited by shares, having its registered office at Core-+4, SCOPE
Complex, 7, Lodhi Road, New Delhi-110003, India and principat place of business at Core--4, SCOPE Complex,
7, Lodhi Road, New Delhi-110003 The Company is a wholly-owned subsidiary of REC Limited {formerly Rural
Electrification Corporation Limired).

Ministry of Power has appointed RECTPCL as Bid Process Coordinator (BPC) for Tneer State Transmission
Systems across the country on Tarnff Based Competitive Mode. RECTPCL commenced working as BPC in che
year 2007 and successfully awarded its first project in the IFY - 2009-10. Till date, RECTPCL has been appointed
as Bid Process Coordinator for many a large Inter-state Projects. RECTPCL 1s also engaged ter -alin in the
business to promote, organize or carry on the consultancy services and/or project implementation n any field

reladng to Transmission, Distribution, Generation and Smart Grid ete. in ladia or abroad.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

The Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standards (relerred 1o as “Ind AN} notificd under the Compantes
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) with etfeet rom 01 April 2018, These Standalone
Financial Statements comply with Ind AS notitied under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 (as amended), applicable provisions of the Compantes Act, 2013 and other applicable regulatory nomms /
puidelines. These are the Company’s first lad AS Standalone Financial Statements and the date of transition is
01 Apul 2017,

The Company prepared its Standatone Financial Statements up to the year ended 31 March 2018, 1 accondance
with the requirements of previous Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (previous GAAP], wlich mcluded
Accounting Standards (AS) specified under Section 133 of the Companics Act, 2013 read with rules made
thereunder . The Company followed the provisions of Ind AS 101-"First Tine adoption of indian Accounting
Standards’ in preparing its opening Ind AS Standalone Balance Sheet as of the date of transiuon and adjustments
were made to restate the opening balances as per Ind AS. The impact of transition has been accounted for i the
opening reserves as 2t 01 April 2017, The comparative figures have been presented in accordance with the same

accounting principles that are used in preparagon of the Company’s fust [nd AS stiandalone finaneial staements.

The mandatory exceptions and opuonal exempuons availed by the Company on First-time adoption have been
detailed tn Note 46. Along with this, the reconciliation of toral equity under previous GAAP and under Ind AS
at 31 March 2018 and 1 Apiil 2017 and of the Profit after tax as per Previous GAATP and Tonl Comprehensive

Income under Ind AS for the year ended 31 March 2018 has also been presented in the same note.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 were authorized and approved tor issue by the Board
of Directors on 17th May 2019.
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REC Transmission Projects Company Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended March 31, 2019
(All amounts in Rs lacs, unless otherwise stated)

2.1 STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT EFFECTIVE
Ind AS 116 - Leases:
On 30 March 2019, Munstry of Corporate Affairs (MEA) has notified Ind AS 116, Leases. Tud AS 116 will ceplace
Ind AS 17 and related taterpretations, The standard sets out the principles for the recogmition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of leases. Ind AS 116 introduces a single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee
to recognized assets and labilities for all leases with a term of more than 12 months, unless the vadedying asser

is of low value. The Standard also contains enhanced disclosure requirements for lessees.

Ind AS 12 - Appendix C, Uncectainty over Income Tax Treatments:

On 30 March 2019, MCA has notfied Ind AS 12 Appendix C, Uncertainty over lncome Tax Treatments which
is to be applied while performing the determination of taxable profit {or loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused
tax credits and tax rates, when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments under Ind AS 12, According to the
appendix, companies need to determine the probabilicy of the velevant tax authority accepting ench tax treatment,
or group of tax treatments, that the companies have used or plan to use in their income tax flng which has to be
considered to compute the most likely amount or the expected value of the ax weatment when determining

raxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused ax credits and wx eates,

Amendment to Ind AS 12 — Income taxes

On 30 March 2019, MCA issued amendments to the goidance in Ind AS 12, ‘Income Taxes', i connection witds
accounting for dividend distubution taxes. The amendment clarifies that an entity shall recognise the meame rax
consequences of dividends i profit or loss, other comprehensive income or cquity according to where the carry

originally recognised those past transactions or events.

Amendment to Ind AS 19 — Plan amendment, curtailment or settlement

On 30 Macch 2019, Mimsiey of Corporate Affairs 1ssued amendments 1o Ind AS 19, ‘Employee Benefiry, i
connection with accounung for plan amendments, curtadments and settlements requiting an entity to use updated
assumptions to determine current service cost and net interest for the remainder of the period after a plan
amendment, curtailment or settlement; and to recognise in profit or loss as part of past service cost, or a gain or
loss on settlement, any reduction 1n a surphus, even (f that surplus was not previously recognised because of the

impact of the asset cetling,

The effective date for application of these amendments is annual period beginning on or after 01 April 20H9. The

Company is currently evaluating the effect of these amendments on the Stndalone Financial Statements.

Sx SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND MANAGEMENT ESTIMATES

(I) The significant accounting policies applied in preparation of the financial statements are as given below:

3.1  Basis of preparation and measurement

(1) Going concern and basis of measurement
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REC Transmission Projects Company Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended March 31, 2019

(All amounts in Rs lacs, unless otherwise stated)

(i

3.2

(0

(i)

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis under the historical cost convention on
accrual basts except for certain financial assets and financial liabilives are measured at faix values at the end of each

reporting period.

All assers and liabilines have been classified as current or non-current as per the cuiteria ser out in the Compantes
Act, 2013. The Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current/noa-current

classification of assets and liabilives.

Functional and presentation currency:
These tinancials are presented in [ndian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s functional currency, all

amounts have been rounded off to nearest lacs (upto two digits), unless otherwise indicated.

Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and

the revenue can be reliably measured.

Lncome from Qperuation

evenues are measured at the fir value of the consideration received or receivable, net of discounrs and other
R 1 at the | 1 [u lerati ved o bi tof d | ol
inclirect raxes.

n Cos us Coutracts - revenue ts recognised by ncluding eligible contractual ttems of expendirares plus
In Cost Plus Contract gnised | ludi ligible contractual ftvms of | pl
proportdonate margin as per contrace

i Fixed Price Contracts - revenue 18 recornised on the basis ol stage of completion of the conteact. 1T he Company
[n Fixed Price Contract gnised oa the basis o stage of pletion of 1] tract. The Comy
has assessed that the stage of completon determined as the proportion of the total time expected o complete the
performance obligation that has lapsed at the end of the reporting period 15 an appropaate measure of progress
towards complete sausfaction of these performance obligations under Tnd AS L5
Estmates of revenues, costs or extent of progress toward completion are revised i circumstances change. Any
resulting increases or decreases in estimated revenues or costs are rellected m profit or loss in the period in which
the circumstances that give rise to the revision become known by management.

Professional charges to be charged from the selected bidders/developers for transmission projects put ou tarift
based bidding is acconnted for in the year in which it is reasonably certain that the ultiunate collection of the

professional charges will be made.

Sale proceeds of Request for Proposal (RFP) documents is credited to the respective SPV and sale proceeds of
Request for Qualificaton (RFQ) documents is rewained by the Company and accounted as income of the

Company.

Interest invome

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the ecanomic benefits will tlow to the
Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. luterest income 15 acerued on a tme basis, by
reference to the principle outstanding and at the effective interest rate apphcable, which is the rare that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying

amount on initial recognition.
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REC Transmission Projects Company Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year encled Macch 31, 2019

(All amounts in Rs lacs, unless otherwise stated)

33

3.4

3.5

Property, Plant and Equipment:

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impawment losses, it any. Cost
includes all expenses, direct and indirect, specifically attributable to its acquisition and bunging it to its working
conditon for its intended use. Incidental expenditure pending allocauon and actributable o the acquision of
fixed assets is allocated/ capitalised with the related assets. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised 10 the asset’s
carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic benelits associated with the expenditure will tlow
to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Al other repairs and mamtenance costs are

expensed when incurred.

Sulscqueat measurenint (depreciation method, nsfe lves ctitd resiciel valie)

Depreciation on assets is provided on straight-line method in accordance with the usetul lives prescribed under
Schedule IT of the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation on assets purchased/ sold during che vear is charged for
the full month if the asset is in use for more than 15 days, instead of charging the same on pro-vaea basts from the

date of purchase/ sale.
Assets individually costing less than T 5,000 ace fully depreciated i the year of purchase.
The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed at the el of each financial year.

De-reangurition

An item ol property, plant and equipment and any significant part initally recognized 1s derccognized upon
disposal or when no future economic benelits are expected, from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss avising ou
de-recognition of the asset (caleulated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the cacrying amount

of the asser) is recognized in the statement of profit and loss, when the asset is derecognized.
Intangible asscts

Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortsaton and tmpairment losses, 1if any. The cosr of an
intangible asset compiises its purchase price, including any import duties and other taxes (other than those
subsequently recoverable from the tax authorties), and any directly attributable expenditure on making the asset

ready for its intended use and net of any trade discounts and rebates.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an ttem of intangible assets is recognised in statement of profit or loss.

Subsequent measuvenient {amortisation method, useful lives and residual vatue)

For amortization of intangibles the amortizaton amount of intangible assets 15 allocared on a systemauc basis over
the best estimate of 15 uselul lfe. Management estimates useful hife of mrangible assers w be 5 years,

Fair value measurecment

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value which is the price that would be recerved to sell an

asset ot paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction berween market partcipants at the measurement date.
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The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:
* 10 the principal market for the asset or liability, or

* 1n the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous macket for the assec or liabiliy.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statemenrs are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is signilicant to the fair
value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical nssets or Liabilities:

Level 2 - Valuation techniques tor which the lowest level input that is significant o the fair value measuremenr
15 directly or indirectly observable; and

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that s significant to the fair value measurement

18 unabservable.

The Company uses valuaton techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient dara
are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inpurs and minimising the use of
unobsecvable inputs, For asscts and liabilities that are recognised in the balance sheet on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hicrarchy by re-assessing
categorisation {based on the lowest level taput that is significant o the faix value measurement as a whoeld) at the

end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilitics on e
basts of the nawre, characteristics and dsks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair vatue hierarchy as

explained above.

Financial instruments
A fanaal instrument 1s any contract that gives use to a financial asser of one entity and a financial liability or

equity instrument of another eutity.
Financial asscts:

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial asscts are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the ¢ase of financial assets not recorded at fair
value through profic or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the f{inancial asset.
Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.
Putchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation
or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, ie., the date that the

Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

3 ﬂb.req/fent mearemeit
Financial assets catried at amortized cost - a financial asset is measured at the amoruzed cost if both the

following conditions are met:
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¢  The asset is held within a4 business model whose objecuve is to hold assets for collecting coneractual cash flows,
and
* Contractual terms of the asser give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely paviments of principal

and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding,

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amorused cost using the effecuve
weerese rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost 1s calculated by taking 1nto account any discount ar premuun on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amottisation is included in inrerest

mcome In the Statement of Profic and Loss.

Dhe-reeaguition of fincrucial asels

Financial assets (or where applicable, a part of financial asset or pait of a group of simitar financial assets) are
derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when the contractual rights 1o cecave the eash
flows from the financial asset have expired, or when the financtal asser and substantially all che risks and rewards
are transferred. Further, if the Company has not retained control, it shall also derecognise the inancil asset and

tecognize separately as assets or labilides any rights and obligntions created or rerained in the transfer.

Impairment of financial asscts

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) maodel for measurement and
recognition of impairnent loss on the following financial assets and credir visk exposure:

1) Financial assets that are debe instcruments, and are measured at amortsed cost g, loans, debr seeurtrics,
deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

1) Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured at Faur value through profic & loss account. (FVTPL).

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ tor recognition of impairent loss allowance on “T'eade receivables

that do not contain a significant financng compenent.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company (o track changes n cvediv nisk. Rather, it
recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifertime ECLs at cach reporting date, vight {rom its initial

recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and sk exposure, the Company determines that
whether there has been a significant increase 10 the credit uisk since mutial recognition. IF credir risk has not
increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit rsk has
increased significantly, Lifecime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the mstrument improves
such that there 1s no longer a significant increase in credit risk since mitial recognition, then the enaity reverts (o

recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifeume ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expecred life of a
financial instrument. The 12-month ECL 1s a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events thar

are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
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3.7

Financial liabilities:
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabiliies are classified, at initial recognition, as financial habilities at fair value through profit or loss,

loans and borrowings, payables; as appropriate.

All financial liabilives are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and pavables,

net of duectly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial labilities include wade and other payables, loans and borrowings including financtal

guarantee contracts and denvatve financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement
Subsequent to initial recogrution, financial labilities are measured at amorused cost using the effective intercst

method.

De-recognition

A [nancial liability 1s de-recognised when the obligation under the Lability is discharged or cancelled or exires.
When an existing fnancial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different teems,
or the terms of an existing hability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is (rcated as the
de-recognition of the original liability and the tecognition of a new liability. The dilfercuce in the respective

carrying amounts 1s recogiised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsctting of financial instruments
Financial assers and financial Labilites are otfset and the net amount 15 reported in the balance sheet 11 there is a
currently enforceable legal nghe to oflset the recogased stnounts and there 1s an intenuon to settle on a net basis,

to realise the assers and settle the habilites simultanecusly.
Non-Current assets/disposal group held for sale

Non-current assets/disposal groups are classilied as held for sale if their cacrying amount will have recovered
prncipally through sale transaction rather than through continuing use and a sale 1s considered highly probable.
They are measured at lower of their carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell, except for assets such as
deferred tax, assets arising from employee benefit, financials assets and contractual rights under wsurance

contracts, which are specifically exempted from this requirement.

Non-current assets are not depreciated or amortised while they are classified as held for sale. Non-current assets

held for sale are presented separately from other assets in the balance sheet.

Where the Company 15 committed to a sale plan involving loss of control of an associate, it classilies investment

in the associate (i.e. all the assets and liabilities of that associate) as held for sale.
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3.8

3.9

Employee benefits:
Employee benefits include Provident Fund, Leave Encashment & Loyaley Boaus.

a) Fixed Tenure Emplovees

The Company has recruited Fixed Tenure Employees for a period of 3 years, which 1s further extendable
maximum up to + years and 6 months, depending upon the requirement and performance. All emiployee benetirs
statutory habiities e.g. Provident Fund, Pension, ESI and Gratuity etc. are not applicable to the company.
However, the Company provided for leave encashment and loyalty bonus for which Liabilities ave assessed as per

the actuarial valuation and disclosed in other notes to accounts.

b) Employees on secondment from holding company

The company 1s managed by the employees deployed by REC Lid (holding company) on secondment basis and
pays their charges as service fee for deemed management service provided by its holding company. The Service
charges, being charged as a fixed lability on the basis of actual employee cost, added with lixed charges on
account of future Lability of Provident Fund, Gratuity, Superannuaton and Pestretirement benefic cie. With
paying above charges, company owes nothing to its holding company for any [urure liabilities whatsocver against

such seconded employees.

Taxation

Tax expense recognized 1 profit or loss comprses the sum of delerred tax and curvent tax. It s recopnized in
Statement ot Profit and Loss, except when it relates to an item that s recognised in Oher comprehensive income
(OCI) or directly in equity, in which case, the tax ts also recognised in Other comprehensive income or directly

11 equity.

Current tax is determined as the tax payable in respect of taxable income [or the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantvely enacted and as applicable at the reporting date, and any adjustments (o 1ax payable in respeet of

l)l'CViOUS years.

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the

financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable income.

Deferred tax assets and habilines are calculated, without discounting, at tax rates that are expected w apply o
their respective period of realizaton, provided those rates are enacted ox substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilicies are offset it there is a legally enforceable right to offser current

tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tx authoriry.

Deferred tax Liability is recognized for all taxable temporary differences. A deferred tax asset is recognized for alk
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that {uwre taxable profits will be available
against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilized. Deferred rax assets ave reviewed at each
reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be

realized.
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3.10

3

3.12

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognized as a component of tax income or expense in profit or
loss, except where they relate to items that are recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equiry,

in which case the related deferred tax 15 dlso recognized in other comprehensive income or equity, respectively.
Dividend Distribution Tax is recognized at the same time when the liability to pay a dividend is recognized.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, and Contingent Asscts

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past
event; it is probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required [rom the Company and amounts can
be estimated reliably. Timing or amount of the outflow may still be uncertain. Provisions are mensured at the
estimated expenditure required to settle the present obligation, based on the most reliable evidence available at
the reporting date, including the wisks and uncertainties associated with the present obligaton. Provisions are

discounted to theur present values, where the time value of money 18 material,

A contingent biabiliey 15 disclosed for:

Pussible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly wichin the control of the Company
or

Present obligations artsing from past events where it is not probable that an outltow ol resources will be required

to settle the obligation or a reliable esumate of the amount of the obligation cannor be made.

lIu those cases, where the outtlow of economic resources as a result of present obligations s considered

improbable or remote, no Lability is recognized or disclosure is made.

Auny reimbursement that the Company can be victually cectain to collect fram a third party concerning, the
obligation (such as from insurance) is recognized ns a separate asset. However, this asset may not exceed the

amount of the related provisien.

Contingent assets are not recognized. However, when the inflow of economic benefits is probable, the related

asset is disclosed!.

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the aet profit or loss tor the period attributable to equiry
shareholders (after deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of cquity shares outstanding

during the period.
To calculate difuted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shaveholders
and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the elfects of all

diuuve potential equity shares.

Ympairment of assets
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3.13

3.14

3.18

3.16

3.17

3.18

319

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assets or cash generating uaits to determine whether there is any indication that those assers have suffered an
impaument loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estmared in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amouns
of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generaung umit to which the
asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be idendfied, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or othenwise they are allocared to the smallest group of cash-

generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Allocation of expenses

The Company has been appointed by Government of India to act as Bicl Process Co-ordinator for selection of
the Transmission Service Provider (developer) for Transmission Projects. Since the Company is incurring
expenses mainly for its project specitic associates (called 3PVs), the expenses have been allocated at the year end
to these associates. Direct expenses have been booked to the respective associates for which the expendituce has
been incurred. All Indirect/Common Expenses have been allocated only to the assocates w the propottion of
salary of FIQ siaff deployed on the associates from the month of issue of REQ or incorporaion of 3PV,
whichever is earlicr, till the month in which wath day from the date of issue of Letter of Intent (LOT} for the
transfer of the SPV falls, Part of the month, tFany, is constdered as full moneh for cost allocation. [he Company

has also chatged interest on the funds deployed by it.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks, Cash equivalents ave shore-werm balances {wirth
an otginal maturity of three months or less frotn the date of acquisition), highly liquid investments that are readily

convertible into known amounts of cash and which ace subject to insignificant risk of changes o value,

Funds/grants received from government
Uoutlized amount of grant/fund received are classified as current liabilides. [nterest wherever earued on such

funds is credited 10 respective grant/fund account.

Dividend
Proposed dividends and interum dividends payable to the shareholders are recognized as clianges n equity in the

period in which they are approved by the shareholders’ meeting and the Board of Directoss respectively.

Material prior petiod errors

Material prior period errors are corrected retrospectively by restating the comparative amounts ot the prior
pertods presented in which the error occurred. If the error occurred before the carliest period presented, the
opening balances of assets, liabilities and equity for the earliest period presented, are restated.

Prepaid Expenses

A prepaid expense up to Rs. 1,00,000/- is recognized as expense upon iniual recognition.

Rates and taxes
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Overseas taxes on foreign assignments, indirect taxes, including Goods & Service Tax, professtonal rax, property
tax, entry tax, labour cess, octrol and any other applicable taxes etc. paid/accrued in India or abroad for which
credit are not available to the company are charged 1o the Statement of Profit and Loss.

3.20 Rounding off amounts
All amounts disclosed in the tinancial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearesc lacs as per the

requirements of Schedule TIT of the Act unless otherwise stared.

(IT) Significant management judgments in applying accounting policies and estimation of uncertainty
The preparadon of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgmenrs, estimates, and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and babilities, and the related

disclosures. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

(1) Significant management judgments
Recognition of deferred tax assets/ liability — The extent to which delerred rax assers can be recognized is
based on an assessment of the probability of the future taxable income agaeinsy which the delerred 1ax assets can

be utilized.

Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets — The evaluatdon of the applicability ol indicators of
impairment of assets requires assessment ol several external and internal factors which could result in

deterioration of recoverable amount of the assets.

(i) Significant estimates
Useful lives of depreciable/amortizable assets — Management reviews its estunate of the uselul lives of
depreciable/amortizable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected unluy of the assets. Uncertainues

in these esumates relate o techmical and economic obsolescence that may change the utility of assers.

Fair value measurements — Management applies valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial
instrunents (where active market quotes are not available). This involves developing estumates and assumphions
consistent with how market participants would price the instrument. In estimaring the fare value of an asset or a
liability, the Company uses market-observable data to the extent it is available, In case of now-availability of

market-observable data, Level 2 & Level 3 hierarchy is used for fair valuaton,

Income Taxes — Significant estimates are involved in determining the provision for income raxes, inchihing
amount expected to be paid/recovered for uncertain tax positions and also in respect ot expected future

profitability to assess deferred tax assel,

Expected Credit Loss (‘ECL’) — The measurement of an expected credit loss allowance for financial assers
measured at amortzed cost requires the use of complex models and signilicant assumpdons about future
economic conditions and credit behavior (e.g., likelihood of customers defaulting and resulung losses). The

Company makes significant judgments about the following while assessing expected credit loss to estimate ECL:
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® Deternuning criteria for a significant increase in credit risk;
* Establishing the number and relative weightings of forward-looking scenarios for each type of
product/market and the associated ECL; and

*  Establishing groups of similar financial assets to measure ECL.
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4 Property, plant and equipment

Ot Furniture & Office Computer  Minor Value (o Toral
Fixtures Equipments Equipment Asscts ‘
Gross carrying value
As at 01 April 2017+ 4.15 2.50 2.84 1.54 16.58 27.01
Additions 1.88 6.49 - 1.90 23.95 3122
Disposals - {0.55) . - {0.33) {N.90)
As at 31 March 2018 6.03 8.44 2.84 3.44 40.18 60.93
Additions 0.44 0.31 . 042 454 5.972
Disposals - - - S -
As at 31 March 2019 6.47 8.76 2.84 3.86 44,92 66.85
Accumulated depreciation
As a1 Apunl 2017 0.95 0.64 1.00 1.54 7.99 12.12
Chatge for the year 0.50 1.45 015 1.90 9.07 13.3F
Adjustment for disposals e (0.08) - - (. 1) 1.22)
As at 31 March 2018 1.46 2.01 1.45 3.44 16.92 25.28
Charge for the year 0.57 1.59 0.5 0.2 I8 4.2
Adjustment for disposals - - - . -
As at 31 March 2019 2.03 3.60 1.90 3.86 28.10 39.49
Net block as at 01 April 2017+ 3.19 1.86 1.84 - 8.59 15.48
Net blocle as at 31 March 2018 4.57 6.43 1.39 5 23.26 35.65
Net block as at 31 March 2019 4.44 5.16 0.94 16.82 27.36

1 Represents deemed cost on the date of transition 10 Ind AS. Gross block and accumulaed depreciation Trom the previon:

GAAP have been disclosed for the purpose of better understanding of the original cost of assets
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5 Other Intangible assets

D e Computer Total intangible
Software assets
|Gross carrying value
At 01 April 2017+ 0.71 0.71
Additions (.24 .24
Disposals -
Balance as at 31 March 2018 (.95 0.95
Additions - -
Disposals S -
Balance as at 31 March 2019 0.95 0.95
Accumulated depreciation
AcO1 Aprid 2017# (.05 thig
Amortisation charge for the year 0.15 (L15
Disposals -
Balance as at 31 March 2018 0.20 0.20
Amottisation charge for the year 0.1u by
Disposals - :
Baltance as at 31 March 2019 0.39 0.39
Net book value as at 01 April 2017* 0.66 0.66
Net book value as at 31 March 2018 0.75 0.75
Net book value as at 31 March 2019 0.56 0.56

 Represents deemed cost on the date of ansition to Ind AS.
Gross block and accumulated depreciation from the previous GAAP have been disclosed Tor the purpose of

betrer understanding of the original cost of assers.

\Z

CHARTERED =<
ACCOUNTANTS
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As at
31 March 2019

As at
31 Macch 2018

As
01 April 2017

6 Investments (Non Current Financial assets )
Investments in Government/Trust Securities
() Invesument in tax free bonds-Quoted (at amortised cost)
Ruril Electrification Corporation Lid. (Holding Company)
350,000, 7.38% Fax lFree 15 years Secured Redeemable Non Convertible
Bonds of face value of R, 1000/- cach, fully paid (31 March 2018; 350,000;
01 April 2017 350,000)

3,585.03

250,000, 8.46% "l'ax Free 15 years Secuved Redeemabile Non Convertible:
Bonds of face value of Rs. 1000/ each, fully paid (31 March 2018: 250,000; 257011
M April 2017: 250,000)

(1) Investment in tax free bonds-Quoted (at amortise cost) (in others)
(i) Housing and Urban Development Corperation Lid. (HUDCO)
86,798, 7.39% Iax 'ree 15 years Secured Redeemable Non Convertible
Bonds of face value of Rs, 1000/~ cach, fully pail (31 March 2018: 86,798: 85130
01 April 2017: 86,794)

(i) National Highway Authority of India Lud, (NHAID
42855, 7.35% Iax Ieee 15 yeirs Sectred Redeemable Non Convertible
Bonds of face value of Re. 1000/- cach, Tully paick (31 March 2018: 42,835 A5
01 Apwil 20172 42,855)

35,463, 7.39% Iax Pree 15 vears Scecured Redeemable BNon Convertible
Honds of face value of Rs. 1000/ cach, fully paid (31 March 2018: 35463: 3155
U1 April 2017: 35,463}

(iii) Indiun Renewable Energy Development Ageney (IREDA)

6,308, 7.09%% Tax Free 15 vears Secueed Redesmable Non Convernble

Fomds of face value of Ra, DO - cach, I’ul[\' paad (31 March 2018 61 308; 62176
11 April 2007: 61,308)

(iv) Indian Raitway Finance Corporatiun (IRFC)

22,338, 7.35% Tax ree 15 years Secured Redeemable Mon Converrible

Bonds of face value of R 1000/ cach, fully paid 31 March 20158 22 338; 2385
1 Apnl 2007: 22338)

(v) National Bank for Agriculiare and Rurad Development (NABARD)

14,028, 7.35% 1ax Iree 13 years Secured Redeemable Non Convertible

Bonds of fce value of Rs, 1000/« each, fully pand (31 March 2018 11026 [-HL51
01 April 2017: 14.028)

358503

E&TRY

HEL M

45088

TS5

62170

23089

10,51

LIELEEN

23000

BR300

E R

Mg

LY

1-1600,518

Total 8,857.50

8,857.63

8.857.70

Aggregate market value of quoted invesunent 9,633.27

9,697.51

9,768.21

7 Loans {Non Current )
Unseeured, considered good

Securin depuosins AT

T
1o
=)
i’

978

37.01

%78

t Refer none 36 For faie value disclosures.

g Other financial assets (Non Current)

ey Bleposies remaining matturty mare than 12 moaths? Hu.38

141

86.38

3141

30.23

IR has been placed on lien with Canara Bank as coltaters] seewrier for issue of BG for Mizom and Goa Praject.
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9 Other non-current assets

10

11

14

15

16

Prepaid Lxpenses

Invesiments (Current)

Investments in Corporate Deposits**
Unquoted, at amortised cost

{1 1AC Housing Finance Limited

(i} PNB lHousing Finance Limited

Aggregate cost of unquoted current investment

*% There is no investment in Corporate Deposits as 31 March 2019
Trade receivables
Unsecured, consalered good-Recervable

Llnsecured, consmlered doubtful: Reccvable

La=s Allowanee far expected credit loss (Refer wore i below)

sash and eash equivalen
Cush and cast lents

Balances wath banks:

< wuth schweladoed Dankes in corvent cconnts
Faemarked Balwnces with Banks

- nuth Gorersment Fuend acconnts

Cheague i hands

Other hank balances

| aeposits with onginal manace more thas 3 montha bt less than 12 months

Other financiat assets (Current)

Recoverable from Govermens of ladis
Amount spent on Feeder Monitoning Scheme
Amount spent on Vg Mur Scheme
Katennon money recctvaldc
Femmbursement from Mol® for RIS

ther Teade/Commercial Advances?

3.69 233
3.69 253
- 1,750.34
- 6,483.56 1,750.34
B 6,483,506 3,500.68
2.290.29 1,716.88 3442
2,290.29 £,716.88 58.42
2.2H),29 1,716.88 58.42
116180 BAEA ] k1T
|1 80,08 156311
36.23 .
14,947.14 15,883.08 3130
3.k LRI EIES 303931
33.61 1008 3,039.31
30750 L6
79515 e 3078
30z
. [RIRE)
26.57 1.7 163
832,13 595.91 96.08

' Rampur Sambhal Transco Facd s mothe process of Incorporation however RECQ was isoed in0 Maeeh 2009 therelire expense Tave been

allocared wr the 8PV,

O1her current assels
Advance to Supplicrs
Hatainces with starutosy and governiment awhorities

Prepand Lixpenses

Disposal group

Assets classified as held (or sale
{A) Invesument (refor note 16.1)
(B) Lamns v associares (refer note 16.2)
Totwl (A+B)
Liahikties direaly associated with assests classified g for sale
(C)Payable ro associates (refer note 16.3)
Total{C)

Disposal group -Net assets (A+B-C)

14a43 AT 200
F07.21 3100 1303
a9 RAA (IR
396.83 371.38 281.29
EURE [I3REY WHIE]
UK Y 15077 28840
955.49 761.77 308..i0
789

7.89 - -
49.47.60 767.77 308.10
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REC Transmission Projects Company Linuted
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2019
(A amounes in Rupees m Jakhs, unless stated atherwise)

As at Asat As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 01 April 2017
16.1 TInvestments in associates™*

Invesiments in Equity Instruments of associates (fully paid up)

Danchang Transmission Limted . 3.00 Gl
50,000 cquity shares of €10/~ cach (31 March 2018: 50,000 : 01 Apail 2017;

50,000 )

Ghatampur Pransimission Limired . 5.0H3 4K
Nl equaity shases of T10/- vach (31 March 2018; 50,000 : 01 Apal 2017;

50,000

LRSS NN Transmission Lamiced g 341
Nil equity shares of T /- cach (31 March 2008 Nib 01 Apeil 2017; 50,000)

WI-NR Power Teansmssion ) imiree] = AR
Nil equiry shares of T 10/- cach (31 Mareh 2018 Nil; 01 April 2017; 50,000)

Ajmer Phagi Teansco 1ivuted 5.00

50000 wyuity shares of T H)/- each (31 March 2018: Nil: Ot April 2017; Nil)

Blundguna Cransoussion Lamited S0

50000 equiry shaees of T 10/- cach (31 Mareh 201 8: Nil: 01 April 2017; Nil)

Chandil Teapsnmssion |l 5.00

SO000 cquity shares of T 10/~ cach (31 March 2018 Nil: 01 Apell 2017: Nil)

umka Transomssion 1.ed, S0

50000 equity shares of T 10/- cach (31 March 2018 Nik 01 Apnl 2007, NiTy

Jam Khambaliya Transco Limited 5,00

SU000 cquiry shares of T 10/~ each (31 Mareh 20180 Nil: 01 April 2017, Nify

Khetrt Transco Limited 5.00

50000 equity shares of T10/- cach (3 March 2018 Nik 01 Apnl 2017; Nil)

Koderm Transmission Ll S0

50000 cquity shaves of T30/ each {31 March 20 8: Nil: 1 April 2017; Nily

Lakadia Bamaskaniha Transco Linated 5.00

SUOUY eouiry <hares of T 10/ cach (31 Mareh 2008: Nl 011 Aprit 2017: INil)

Mandar Transnmsson Lid, 5.00

50000 equary shaces of T 10/ cach (31 March 2018: Nil; 01 Apal 2007 Nity

Uilapi Kasargode Vrans. Ll 40

50000 ety shares of 2 10/- cach (31 Macch 2008 Mk Q1 Apal 2007 Nil)

50.00 10.00 20.00
* Dinchang Transmission Lud was denotified vide Mol letter dated 25 March 2019 and subsquently iovesunent was writicolf .
CHARTERED
ELCOUNTANTS,
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REC Transmission Projects Company Limited
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2019
{All amounts in Rupees in Lakhs, unbess stated otherwise)

16.2 Louns to Associates

Dinchang Transmission Jamited” - [ 81.495
Ghammpur Transmission Limited*# - 3006 124,12
FERSS XX Transmission Limited 4208
VWR-NR Power Teansmission Lamited - - 4015
Clhandil Transmission Limired 198.04 86,10
Dumka Teansmission Limited 193.57 84.60
Mandar Transnussion Limited 171.25 84.66
Koderma Feansmission Limited 175.74 84,60
Ajmer Phag Fransco Lid 1814
Rhindguna I'ranismission Limeed 88.05
UUPT Kasargode Transmission 25.14
WRSS NXNI (A} Transco Lad**+ 34.96

905.49 757.77 288.40

 Bxpendinwre was incurred on the said projeet since FY 200516 and Jatee on the projeer was pat en hold by the Gov of Indiom 10 S
2016 . During 1Y 3018-19 the expenses of Ra. 1,07,60,661/ were writicn off o the basts of the Teres daned 2% Mavch 2019 veeerved feom
Ministry of Power.

¢ Gharampur Teansossion Lid was tensferecd to Adani Transmission Lad on 21ch June 2008

** % WRSS XXI{A) transco Ltd is incorporated in 27th March 2019 share capital was introduced after 31.03.2019 however RFQ was
issued in March 2019 therefore as per expenses allocation policy, expense have heen allocated.

16.3 Liabilities directly associated with assests classified as held for sale

i Khambaliya Transco ]ad 054
Khewi Transco Limited {advanee) 3.57
Lakadia Banaskands T'ransco Pl 3.98
Towal 7.89 - -

CHARTERED

FCCOUNTANTS,
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REC Transmission Projects Company Limited
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2019
{All amounts in Rupees in Lakhs, unless stated othenvise)

17 Equity share capital As at As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 01 April 2617

Authorised equity share capital
50,000 (31 March 2018 : 50,000 ; 01 April 2017 : 50,000) Equity shaces of Rs . o
10 each .00 5.00 5.00

5.00 5.00 3.00
I[ssued, subscrnbed and paid up equity share capital
50,000 (31 March 2018 : 50,000; @1 April 2017 : 50,000} Equity shares of Rs 5.00 3.00 5.00
10 each

5.00 5.00 5.00

i) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares:

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is ennided w0 one vore pes

share.

In the event of liguidation of e Company, the holders of equiry shares will be entitled 1o receive remnining assers of the Company, afier
distribution of all preferental amounts. The distribution will be in propostion to the number of equiry shares held by the shareholders.

ii) Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year
31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Nao. of shares (Rs lukhs)

No. ol shares (Rs lakhs)

Equity share capital of Rs. 10 each fully paid up

Balance at the Deginmng of the year 50,061 440 50,000 500
Addb: Issued during the year 5 5 -
Balance at the end of the year 50,000 5.00 50,000 5.00

iii) Sharcholders holding more than 5% of shares of the Company as at balunce shect date:
As on 31 March 2019 As on 31 March 2018

As on 1 April 2017

No. of shar% holding No. of shures Yo holding

Nuo. of shares o holding

19,994 Equity Shares held by REC
Limited (formeddy known as Rural
Corporation  Lech.)
(Holding Company) And Balance 6

50,000 1A0.00% 50,000 100,00

Eleciritication
Fquity  Shares  abrough  other
noninee OF REC Lid.

iv) Shares beld by holding company:

As on 31 March 2019 As on 31 March 2018

snoon i 1000

As on 01 April 2017

No. of shan% holding No, of shares % holding

No. of shares Yo holding

49,994 Equiey Shares held by REC

31 March 2019

31 Marceh 2018

. o 0, ¥ a0 - .
Limuted {formerly known as Rural 30,000 100.00% 50,000 1000074 stuo L.,
Electrilicatiom Cogporation Lich)

(Holding Company) And Balance 6
Equity  Shares  theough  other
nominee of REC Lul.
¥} The Company has neither issued equity shares pursuant to conreact without paynent heing recerved in cash or any honus shares nor has
there Been any buy-back of shares in the current year and five years immeditely preceding the bakwnee sheer dare,
18 Other equity As at As al As at

01 April 2017

1,325.00
10,513.99

Geoeral reserve
Statement of profit and loss*

1.325.00
16,280.72

1,325.00

b 456 13

Note: General reserve is created from dme to ome by way of wansfer profies from remined eanings For appropriation purpeses. Generl

reserve is created by a transter from one component of equire to another.

*The board of dizectors of the Company lave approved and disbursed an interim dividend @ 660005 o the face value of Rs, 1 eaclh equi
) ! i

share amounting ro Rs, 6600 per share for the year ended 31 March 2019 which will be confinmed in torthcoming Aunaal General Meeting

of the Company.
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REC Transmission Projects Company Limited
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2019
(All amounts in Rupees in Lakhs, unless stated othenwvise)

As at As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 01 April 2017
19 Provisions (Non Current)
Provision for Employee Benefits(refer note 35)
Pravision for Loyaley Bonus 327 2 0.57
Provision for compensated absences 3.00 225 0.46
6.30 4.46 1.03
20 Deferred tax liabilities (nex)
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax linbilities

Propety, plant and equipment: Impact of difference between

depreciation ax per inceme tax act and deprecition charged in 0.29 118 1.2

the books

Financial azsers and Habilies measured ar amortised cost -

Total deferred tax liabilities 0.29 1.48 1.42
Tax effect of items constituting delerred tax assets:

Financial assers and labilities measured ar amortised cost® 0.12 0.11 RT3
Total deferred tax assets 0.12 0.11 0.00
Deferred tax assets /(liabilities) (net) 0.17 137 142
Net Deferred Tax Charge for the Year
For the year ended 31 March 2014 (0.05)
For the year ended 31 March 2019 (1.20)

Nore: The Movement between years represents addition only and there i no deletion reversal i current or previous year. Addinons during

the year has been charged to profic and loss account during the year.

¥The anonnts las feen rownded off to sero,

21 Other financial liabiliues

Earnest Money Depositst 12,50 biED) 013
Expenses Payables 42191 387,28 T196
Rerention money payables 078
Payable ro related partics 3553 20.53 gLl
Employee related pavabies 1.5} 069 280
Government Fund for Schemes

PMDP fund - J&K 14,541.28 13,010015

DDUGIY FUND 79.28

PSDF Fund for REALS 285.56 1.71-1.59

15,414.38 15,948.03 108.21

*‘Earaest Moncey Deposit 15 of curvent in natare and to be relunded to bidders on demand afier the completion of Indding process.

PMDT fund - J&K

Funds Received from Govt. of India
13,610.13

1345400

Add: Inrerest on Fund 93530 156.15 _
Less: Disbarsed to Beneficiaries ¢17) _
Undisbursed Funds to be disbursed
14,541.28 13,610.15 R
DDUG]Y FUND
Fands Recerved fuorm Gove, of India
164.88 - -
Add: Interese on Fund 3.33 - _
Less: Disbursed o Beneficiaries (93.93) . :
Undisbursed Funds o be Jdisbursed . . B
79.28 - R
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REC Transmission Projects Company Limited
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2019
{All amouncs 10 Rupees in Lakhs, unless staced otherwise)

PSDF Fund for RFMS

Funds Received from Govt. of India 1,714.59 2,178.00
Add: Interest on Fund 208.71 29.17
Less: Dishursed to Beneficiaries (1,637.74) (392.58)
Undisbursed Funds to be disbursed
285.36 1,714.59 _
22 Other current liabilities
Advance from REC rowards Urya Mitea Fund 1,059.67 3810 250
Aebilisarion Advance received from JKPDD-UDAY 42.73 F.21
Deferred income 7146 .
Sratutory Dues payable 18295 806.37 30001
1,350.82 1,259.29 280.11
23 Provisions (Current)
Provision for Employee Benefits (refer note 35)
Provision for compensated absences (.19 005 0.t1]
0.19 0.05 0.01
24 Current tax liabilities (net)(Current tax assets (net))
Provision for Income ax 349474 273251 00T
Lese Advance Income Tax and TDS (3,6111.18) (2,680.36) (b 039,03
Provision for meme max [net of advance tax and rxes deducted ar (145.43) 51,75 .
sotirce] EECK 51,77 55,
(145.43) 5175 55.07
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REC Transmission Projects Company Limited

Notes forming part of Financial Statements {or the year ending 31 March 2019
{All amounts in Rupees in Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

25

26

27

Revenue from operations
Sale of services
Consulrancy & Execution of Transmission Projecrs
Professional Charges
Agency Fees
Other Operating Revenue
Documentauon fees

Refer Mote 1 for disclosures under Ind-AS 115.

Othier income

Interest Income on Term/ Corporate Deposits

Interest Income on Tax Free Bonds

Interest Income from SPVs

Inrerest Income on financial assers measured at amortised cost
Miscellaneous Income

Cost of services rendered
Survey Charges
Consuftancy Charges
Advernsemenr Expenses

Meeting & Conference Expenses

Employce benefits expense

Salaries and Wages

For the year ended

For the year ended

MNare: For disclosures related 1o provision for employee benefits, refer note 35 Emplovee heneli obliganons

Finance costs

{a) Imerest Expenses

Waorking capiral toan from bank
Income mx

Others

() Bank Charges

30

Depreciation and amortisation expense
Depreciation {also refer nore 4)
Amornsation (also refer note 5)

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
046,43 1,663.93
1,827.0] 242457
16,95 2542
79.14 58.93
2,869.53 4,173.06
4303 w82y
66391 66463
Tan G613
3.9 321
0 743
1,175.04 1,140.00
70.75 8.7
19,36 207
13,10 26
o7 26
133.93 302.83
169.07 43,72
169.67 43.72
.71 h3%
2397 1495
3.36 1149
30.04 26.82
1.57 a2
31.61 26.84
1421 13.37
Nn.14 113
1440 13.52
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REC Transmission Projects Company Limited
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2019
(All amounts in Rupees in Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

31 Other expenses

Manpower Expenses 149.71 12641
Travelling and Conveyance 3240 2431
Renral Charges 73.38 9.31
Rates and Taxes 0.63 ' 0.13
Power & Fuel 5.78 .35
Postage, Telegram and Telephone 3.63 .61
Auditors' Remuneration® 230 348
Legal & Professional Charges 30.89 7ol
()fice Expenses 17.62 345
Technical / IT Services Expenses 1.36 5.12
Tender Processing Charges - (039
Aliscellaneous Expenses . 1650 .70
334.26 183.99

*Audirors' Remuneration
Audit Fee 1.70 1.7
Tax Auchr Fee 0.68) thot)
Other Services/ Cernficanon fee - L8
2.30 3.48
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REC Transmission Projects Company Limited
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2019
{All amounts in Rupees in Lakhs, unless stated otherwise}

For the year ended
31 March 2019

For the year ended
31 March 2018

32 Tax expense
(i) Current tax (including taxes earlier years)

Tax: on cavrvent year profits 762.43 119135

Earlier Year Tax{ (Refinds) 2 1.37

(iiy Deffered tax <120 .00}
761.23 1,192.67

Applicable tax rate has increased from 28.84% to 29.12% in the current financial yvear due o increase in Education Cess rare from

3%y o 4%.

The major compoenents of income tax expense and the reconciliation of expense based on the domesuc effective tax rare of 2917,

and the reported tax expense in profit or loss are as follows:

Accounting profit before income tax 3,221.23 4,684.29
At 1ry’s statutory income tax rate (applicable to the Comps £29.12"
-coun ry’s statutory income tix r (app i mpany) o o 938.02 1,350.05
(31 March 2018: 28.84%)
Adjustments m respect of taxes earlier years - .37
Tax elfect of non deductable expenses for tax purposes 16.54 32,9
Tax effect of income of tax frec bonds (193.33) (191.6%)
Tax effect of rate change (.00 0.
761.23 1,192,607
33 Earnings per share (in Rupees)
Net pealit for the year 2459.499 39103
Weighted average number of equity shares for EIPS 50,000 50000
Par value per share §] 1
Earnings per share - Basic and diluted (i tupees) 4,919.98 6,9%3.26
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.. Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2019

REC Transmission Projects Company Limited

(A amounts in Rupees in Lakhs, unless stated otherwisc)

34 Related Party rransactions

with the aggregare amount of transactions and year end balanees with theo as identified and certified by the management are given bulows

In nccordance with the requircments of Indian Accounting Standard ~ 24 the names of the related partics where conteol Zabiliny 1o eseraise sigaificant muence sxiss, along

a. Details of related parties:
Bescription of relationship Names of related partics
Ulimate holding company Powver Finance Corporation Lid. (w. L 28ch March 2019
Holding company RILC Bimited
Subsidiary of holding/vhimarte holding company REC Power Distbunon Company Lamned

PIC Conanliing Limired
Associate Companies Dingehang Transmission Lored fdenouticd Ty Mol on 250032009
Ghatampie eansmizsston Limited {gold on 19 June 2018)
VRSS XX Transmission Limted (sobd on 12 Janurie 2018)
WAL MNIU Transmissum banuited (sold n 27 March 2018}
Dwombka Uransmizsion Lioanted (woedl 25 03,2008
Chandil Fransmission Limied (wel, 19.03.2015)
AMandar Veansmission Linutee (w2603 20008)
Koderma ‘Fransavission Laimned (wel 19.03.2018)
Jawabampur Firozabad Ueansmissten Lamited {sold on 21 Deconsler 2018,
Bhind Guna Veansmizsion Lanned fwoe L 1S.09.2018)
Udopi Kasasgode Transoussion Linsited fw w29 Lt 2uls)
Jam Khambaliya Transeo Liveed fwef 1103.20019)
Lakadia Banaskantha Teanseon Limied (woedl 1203.2009)
Khetet Transco Lambted (woe £ 1203 2019)
Ajer Plagh Transco Limied (el 1903.2019)
WRSS NN (A) Transeo Famited woel, 264320109
Ramypare Samblsal “Franseo Linuted (o proecis of Incorporation])

Key management personnel (KMP)

Advance receved for govermment schemes

77

e PV Ramegh Chaleman cusn irector HEERL20ES 1o 05032014
MMr Nedt Kumar Agarwal s Charenkan cuns Dhirector Chairnen woe DG 2y
M Sanjeey Kumar Gupta : Director
Nr VK. Singh : Direetor waed, FEER2019
. Transactions with Holding Company and KMP are as under:
REC Limited Key Mavagement Personnel
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 31 March 2019 31 Mareh 2018
(i) Transactions during the year
Irvadend paid -t | holding Company 6,529.00 1,380,000 =
Aedvanee seceived Jor goverment schenes I, 135.00 E51.50
Apporoamuent of Employee Benefits & Other o .
rore 138.50 0834
By REC (inchading Serviee Tax /GS1 as applicable)
Tnterest Inerene from lnvestoaent in “lay Fee Bonds 464,80 RIS
tncome from Odher Serviee Comntract 5.0
{ii) Outstanding Balances at Year End REC Limited
As ot As at As
30 Mareh 2019 31 March 2018 01 April 2017
Tnvestment m 'Tax Free Bonds [(XELFED GLUERLERE XTI
Apportonment of Employvee Benefits & Other xpenses 5,53 2653
Tarerest Accrued but not due from Jnvestmene in ax Fee Bonds 15511 15574
JRIETn



. REC Transmission Projects Company Limited

. Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2019

(A snets in Rupees in Lakhs, unbess stated othenvisc)

Cost of employees on secondment hasis are reimbursed 10 REC Limited , Company owes nothing (o emplovees on secondment basis.

¢. Transactions with Ultimate Holding Company and its subsidiary:
Transactions during the year

Closing balances during the year

COther Prade/Commeraial Advanees (PIFC Consulting Lid.)

d Transuactions with Associates are as under:

{1} Dingchang Transmission Limited (denotified by MoP on 25.03.2019)

Interest lixpenses
Reimbursemont/ Nxpensts Reambursament
Amount Wrtrenott

(i) Ghaampus Transmission Limited (sold on 19 June 2018)
Interest lxpenses
Remmbursenman/ Expenses Rambuoesotin

(iil) Dumka Transmission Limited {w.e.f. 25.03.2018)

lnterese Mxpronses

Reimbursement/ Bxpenses Renmbursenwent
Advance Recived From Partics
{iv) Chandil Transmission Limited (w.c.f. 14.03.2018)
. Ioterest Expunses
Ruimbursensnt/ xpenses Reimbursemen
' Addvaned Revived From Partics
(v} Mandar Transmission Limited (w.e.f. 26.03.2018)
Tnterest Bxponses

Renmbursemen ) Fxpenses Rennbuosensent

Advance Recived From Pactics
ssion Limited (w.c.f. 19.03.2018)

(vi) Kodern Trans

lnterest Expunses
. Reimbursement/ Expenses Rembuorsement
Advance Recived From Parnes
(vii ERSS XXI Transmission Limited (sold on 12
Janurary 2018)
. Tnterest Expenses
Consulaney Fee
Reimbursement/ Lixpenses Reimbursement
(viii) WR-NR Power Transmission Linited
. Inteeest Hxpenses
Consultaney Fee
Reimbursement/ Lxpenses Reimbansciment
. (ix) Bhind Guna Transmission Limited
[nterest Expoenses
o Comsultaney bee
Reimbursemient/ Expenses Rewnluigsonmnt
\dvance Recived From Partivs
(ix) Udupi Kasargode Transmission Limited
haterest Espenses
Comsultancy Fee
Reimbursement/ Espenses Rembaiesament
Advance Recived From Parties
Jam Khambaliva Transco Limited

—
)
el

Inrerest xpuenses
Comsultaney Pee
Remmbursement/ Expenses Ronbwrsement
Advanee Recived From Parties
(xi) Lakadia Banaskantha Transco Limited
Interesr Lxpenses
Cemsuftaney Fee
Remmbursement/ Fxpenses Reimbursement

Advanee Recived From Parties

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

As at 31 hiarch 2019 As at 31 March 2018 As anl April 2017

1,79 060

Transactions during the vear

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
HIens
185 14 55
{Er X!
13.55 23,400
RURT] [N
1578 LB (1]
12051 R
LN
160.12 241
127,84 K394
20,50
1305 R
IR E]] Sl
.80
1394 S an
8.3y T
PR |
R
1.591 W
FR5 W
[BRTS
1.264,0%
- LY B 1]
342
a7
.80
078
70,349
519
A
TR
N3
.03
LB
L
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. REC Trangmission Projects Company Limited

Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2019

{(Allamounts in Rupees in Lakhs, unless stated othenwise)

(xii) Khetri Transco Limited
Intecest Lixpenses
Consultancy lee
Rumbursement/ xpenses Reimbursement
Advanee Recived From Parues
(xiii) Ajmer Phagi Transco Limited
Interest Bxpenses
Consubtancy Feg
Retmbursement/ Expenses Resmbursement
Advance Recived From Parties
{xiv) WRSS XXI (A) Transco Limited
Interest Expenses
Conzultancy Vee
Reimbursement/  lixpenses Rembursement
(xv) Rampur Sambhal Transco Limited
Interest Vxpenses
Consuleaney lec
Rembugsement/ Expenses Reimbursement

Oustanding balunces w.r.t. associates are as under

Receivable from associates/ (Payable 10 associntes)
imchang Transvussion Linuted
Ghatampur I'ransmission Limired
FERES XNT Transmission Limited
WR-NR Power Transmission Limited
Chandil Teansmission Limited
12wmka Transnussion Liited
Mandar Transmssion Limined
Koderma Transmission armited
Ajerer Phagd Uransco Lid
Bhindguma ‘I'mnsnission Limeed
Jam Khambahva T'ransco Led
Khetri Pransco Limited (advance)
akadia Banaskantha ''ransce Led
UDUPT Kasargode Transmission Ved
Rampur Sambhal Project

2P 9 0000 0@ 00099900 0CQCOCOOOCOROIODOOOO®OO®S®STOOCGC

BRE'S)

3592
4203

L1 8]
34-.49
16.00

46
'HiS:l

027

2633

31 March 2019

As at
31 March 2018

01 April 2017

fUS.n4
193,57
171.25
175.74
19,14
KRS
(.34
(3.57)
(.98
2514

20.57

106,04
3L66

LARE
12412
1200
[UNE
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REC Transmission Projects Company Limited
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2019
(All amounts in Rupees in Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

36 TFinancial instruments

i) Financial instruments by category measured at amortised cost;

A)

B)

As at As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 01 April 2017
Financial assets
Investments® 8,857.50) 15,341.20 12,358.39
Loans 37.01 32.87 978
Trade receivables 2.290.29 1,716.88 382
Cash and cash equvalents 14.947.11 13,883.08 3130
Other bank balances 33.64 101.08 3,039.31
Orther hnancial assets 938.51 627.33 126.31
Total 27,104.07 33,702.43 15,623.51
Finanecial liabilities
Oxcher financial liabdines 15,414.38 15,948.03 108.21
Total 15,414.38 15,948.03 108.21

‘The carrying amounts of current financial assers and liabiliries are considered a reasemable approximaricnm ol their fir values. Excepn
for the helow:

Investment in tax free bonds (Qouted market value-Level 1) 9,633.77 0.697.51 97652
Investments in corporate deposits®* . 618350 350068
Total fair value of investments 9,633.27 16,181.07 13,268.92

Y1 Faar value is equivalent ro carrying value,

Fair values hierarchy

The Company does not have any financial assers or financial linbalities carried ar fair value

Financial risk management

Risk management

The Company 1s exposed o varous wsks in relation 1o fAnancial instruments. The Company’s Gnaccal assets and habiuics by
category are summurised i Note 36. The main types of tisks are credit ask, liquidity sk and marker risk

The Company’s risk management 15 coordinated in close co-operation with the Board of Directors, and focuses on securing ihe
Company’s short 10 medium rerm cash {lows. The Company does nar engage in trading of financinl asses Tor speculiive purposes

Credit risk
The Company does not have any significant or matenal history of credit losses henece the credit nsk Tor all the Gnaneial assets has
been considered 10 be negligible by the managemenr as s the closing dae.

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity rsk management rests wieh the Board of Directurs. The Company manages hquichae risk Dy
maintaining adequate reserves, back-up facilities such as deposits and by continuously moniioring foreeast and actual cash Rows, and
by matching the matunty profiles of financial assets and labiliies. Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company’s
liquidity position and ¢ash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows.
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REC Ttansmission Projects Company Limited
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2019
(All amounts in Rupees in Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

)

38

Maturities of financial liabilities
All the financial hiabilities of the Company are current in nature and are maturing within 12 months period.

Market risk
Market risk 1s the risk thar the fair value or future cash flows of  financial instrument will flucruate because of changes in marker
prices. [t comprises of currency wsk, interest rate risk and price risk.

Currency risk:
The company does not have any foreign currency wansactions, hence, it 15 not exposed to currency nsk.

[nterest rate risk
s the Company does not have any borrowings outstanding, it is not exposed to interest rate risk,

Price risk:
The company does not have any financial instrument wlich exposes 1t to price risk

Capital management policies and procedures

The company’s capiral includes issued share capatal and all other distributable reserves. The prmary objective of the Companys
capital management is to maxinuse shareholder value and o manrain an oprimal capiral strucrure to reduce the cost of capiral. The
company does not have any long-rerm borrowings and all irs capiral needs are met by capital or sharcholders only,

CHARTERED
ACCOUMTANTS
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REC Transmission Projects Company Limited
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2019
(Al amounts in Rupees in Lakhs, unless stared otherwise)

39 (I) First time adoption of Ind AS
These ace the Company’s fiese financial statements prepaced in accordance with bnd A8,

The accounting policies set out in note 3 have been applied in preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019, he
comparative information presented in these financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2018 and in the peepacarion of an opeming
Ind A5 balance sheer at 01 April 2017 (the Company’s date of transition). An explanation of how the transition from previous GAAP w
Ind AS has affected the Company's financial position, financial perfurmance and cash flows is set ot in the following mbles and nors.

A Ind AS optional exemptions
1 Deemed cost for property, plant and equipment, investment property and intangible assets

Ind AS 101 permits a fase-time adopter o elect w continue with the carrving value for all of its property, plant and LquIpment as
recopnised in the financial statements as ac the date of wansinon @ lnd A%, mcasured as per the Provious GAAP and use thar as jts
deemudd cost as at the date of ransition after making neeessary adjusements for de-commissioning labilivies. This exemprion can also be
used for intangible assets covered by Ind AS 38 latngilide Assets and investment propeety covered by Ind AS 40 Investment Property.
Accordingly, the Group has dlected to measure all of its property, plaor and egnipment, inangible assers and investmens property m
their Previous GAAR carrying value.

B Ind AS mandatory exceptions

I Estimates
date in accordance with Previous GAAP (alter adjostient: to refleet any difference i acconnting policies), unless there is obyecnve
evidence that those estimares were i error,
Ind AR estimates as ar 1 April 2016 are consistent with the estimates as ar the same date made in conformity with Previous GAAPR. The
Company madle estimates for impairment of financial assets bazed ca expeeted ceedit loss model in accordance with Tad AS at the date
of transition as these were not required under Previous GAAD:

2 Classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities
"The classification and measurement of financial assets will be made considering whether the condiions as per ind XS 109 are mer sl
and circumstances exising at the dare of rransiton

o hicts

VFingncial assets can he measoeed using clieetive interest method by asseszing its contracial cash Aow characienstics only on the basis
ot facts and circumsrances existing ar the date of transition and if it is impracticalile 10 assess the vse of effective imeresr methil, fair

vilue of financia
financial labiliies o

sef at the date of transition shall be the new carrying amount of that asset. The measurenient exemplion applies for
s well,

3 De-recognition of financial assets and liabilities
Ind AS 191 vequires a first-time adoprer w apply the desrecogmuon provisions of hd AS 109 peospertively For tansactions oceurring
un e after the divre of transition ro Ind A& However, Ind AS 101 allows a Gest-rime adapier 16 apphy the de-recopnition reguircmenLs
in Ind AS 109 rerrospecrively rom a date of the entine’s choosiing, provided that the information needed woapply bd AS 109 1
financial assets and Anancial labilites devecogmized as a resuli of past transactions was ohiaiicd aihe gme of minally aceounting for
these trangactions,

The Company has elected to apply the desrecogniion provisions of Ind AS 109 prospeciively from the dare of ransition o Ind AS.
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REC Transmission Projects Company Limited
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2019

(All mmounts in Rupees in Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

C Reconciliations between Previous GAAP and Ind AS

P O 9 9 O 90 0000 00000000090 0000D0O0O0DO®°O°®O°®0DO O 009 a

Ind A5 107 requires an entity to reconcile equity, total comprehensive income and cash flows for prior perdods. The following rables

represent the reconeiliations from Previous GAAP to Ind AS.

Reconciliation of other equity as at 31 March 2018 and 01 April 2017

(AR Amounes in Rupees)

As at As at

Notes 31 March 2018 01 April 2017
Other equity (shareholder's funds) as per Previous GAAP 17,649.54 1578103
Adjustments:
Measurement of fimancial asscts and liabilicies inirially ar fair value and
subsequently ar amortised cost A (0.39) (i
Prior period adjustments B (37.54)
Deferred Tax effect of adjusiments* C 0l 0.0
Total adjustments (37.82) 0.00
Other equity as per Ind AS 17,611,.72 15,781.03

“The amounts has been rounded off to zero

Reconcilistion of total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2018

For the year ended

Nates 31 March 2018

Preofit after tax as per Previous GAADP 3,529.44
Adjusuments:
Aeasurement of financial assets and habititics imnally ar faie valoe and
subsequently atamortised cost A (.38)
Prior period adjustimenis 13 (37.54)
Total adjusuments (37.92)

3,491.52
Deferred Tax effeet of adjustiments ( il
Profit as per Ind AS for the year ended 31 March 2018 3,491.63

Impact of Ind AS aduption on the Statement of cash lows for the year ended 31 March 2018%

Net eash Now lom opertting activities 3.1 16,433.17 0.4 16,433 10
Net cash flow from investing activities kN 1,079.62 .28 1.079.90
Net cash ow from linancing actvines 31 (1,661.28) (1.661.28)
Metincrease in cash and cash equivalents 15,851.50 0.28 15,851.78
Cash and cash equivalents as a 01 Apeil 2017 3130 - 33
Casl and cash equivalents as at 31 March 2018 A 15,882.80) 0.28 13.883.08
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalent 15,851.50 0.28 15,851.78

ag per the cash Jow statement™

Neowe 34 The diference in amounts under previous gaap and b As i due to classification ol imerestacerued on FORs {due within 3

months) to cash and cash equivallents

' The previous GAAP figures have been reclisstfied o confirm o Tnd AS presentirion requirements for the purpose of this note
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REC Transmission Projects Company Limited

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2019

(Al amaounts in Rupees in Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

4 Reconciliation of the assets and liabilities presented in the balance sheet prepared as per Previous GAAP and as per Ind AS

as at 31 March 2018 is as lolows:

Description Motes {\s Per . G As Per Ind AS
Previous GAAP adjustments*
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Praperty, plant and equipment 35.65 35.05
Oeher Intangible assers 0.75 (TR
Financial agsets
[nvestments 8.857.63 - 8.857.63
toans A 10.91 (8.04) 3257
Other financial assers 30 - 3t.41
Other non-current assets A - 3.69 3.09
Towul non-current assets 8,966.35 (4.35) §,962.00
Current assets
Financial assels

Invesmmenis 0,493.50 {10.00) 6,183.56

“T'eade receivables £,716.588 . 1.716.8%

Cazh and cash equivalenrs 15.883.08 15 883.08

Oiher bank balances 1108 - 1008

foans IEIRE) (737.77)

Ohther financial assers 59592 - 3390
Cther currenst assers A 367.42 396 371.38
Assers chissified as held for sale - 767.77 76777
Total current ussets 25,915.71 3.96 25,919.67
TOTAL ASSETS 34,882.06 (0.39) 34,881.67
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Liguity share capital 5.00 - 5.4
Other eyuity ABC 17.4:49.54 {37.52) 17.611.72
Touwl equity 17,654.54 (37.82) 17,616.72
Non-current lizhilities

P'rovisions 146 - L6
Freferred ax liabilities (ret} 5 1.48 (tn11) 1.37
‘Tetal non-current liabilities _ 5.94 0.11) 5.83

Current liabilites
Financial liubilities

Chther fnancial liabilites H 1542197 2007 15.948.03
Onlwer curcent liabilities It 1,247.8t AT 1,259.29
{frovisions 0.5 (LX)
Current tax ialalines (net) 51.75 - 3175
Total current liabilities 17,221.58 37.54 17,250.12
Total liabilities 17,227.52 37.43 17,264.95
TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES 34,882.06 (0.3 34,881.67

P e previous GAADP fgares have been reclassified o confirn w Ind AS presentation requivements for the purpose of this note.
88



P OO 009 000000000000 0DOCOOCDODOEO®OPOOTOOOSOPTS®STODODOPTOQOOTCTQC

REC Transmission Projects Company Limited

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2019

(All amouwnrs in Bopees in Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

Reconciliation of the assets and liabilities presented in the balance sheet prepared as per Previous GAAP and as per Ind AS
5 p prep p I

as at 01 April 2017 is as follows:

Description Notes és Per Ind AS SOl
Previous GAAP  adjustments® Ind AS
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plane and cyuipment 15.48 1548
Cither Inrangible assers 0.66 0.66
Financial assets
Invesimenes 8.857.70 - 8.837.700
l.oans M 13.64 {3.85) 9.78
Orther financial assers 30.23 0.00 3023
Orther non-current assets A - 2.53 2.53
Total non-current ussets 8,917.71 -1.32 8,916.39
Current assels
Financial assets
Investimenss 13 3520.68 (20.00) 3,500.68
Teade receivahles 58.42 5842
Cash and cash equivalenes 330 3130
Oiher bank balanees 3039.3] 3034310
Loans 12 2881 288111
Orther fimancial assers 96.08 . WA
Chher current assers A 279.99 1.30 281,29
\ssers classified as held for sa 13 - SN 3080
Total current assets 7,314.18 1.30 7,315.4%
TOTAL ASSE'T'S 16,231.89 (0.02) 16,231.87
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Fiquity share capital 500 3.00
Onther cquity AL 15,7810 {0401 15378105
Total cyuity 15,786.04 (0.01) 15,780.03
Nan-current liabilitics
PProvisions L3 1.03
Detesred ax labidines (neg ‘. |42 (0.00) 1.42
Total non-current liabilitics 2.45 (0.00) 245
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Oveher Toancia] habalities 108.21 FER.2 0
Oither current liabilities 250,12 (.o T
Provisions 0.81] on
Current ray liabilities (ner) 55.07 5 Ri.07
Total current liabilities 443.40 (0.00) 443,39
Total liabilities 445.85 (0.01) 443,81
TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES 16,231.89 ((1L.02) 16,231.87
P e previows GAAD figures have been reclissificd to confirm to Ind A5 presentation vequiceinents for the purpose of this aot,
CHARTERED
AGCOUNTANTS
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REC Transmission Projects Company Limited
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2019
(Al ameunts in Rupees in Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

6 Reconciliation of the income and expenses presented in the statement of profit and loss prepared us per Indian GAAP and as
per Ind AS as at March 31, 2018 is as follows:

Previous GAAP
Description Notes For the year Adjustments
31 March 2018

Ind AS
31 March 2018

Revenue

Revenue from operations +,173.06 - 4. 17304
Other income AB 1,156.89 (16.8%) [ ETRE
Total income 5,329.94 (16.8%) 5,313.05
Expenses

Cost of services rendered B 296.86 597 2,83
Fmplovee benefits expeose $3.72 43.72
Fimange gosts B i5.37 11.47 2684
Deprecianion and amortisation expense 13.52 - 13.52
Other expenses A 18040 3.59 | #3790
Corporie sacial vesponsibily expenses 57.83 - 3744
Total expenses 607.73 21.02 628.76
Profit/(Loss) before tax 4,722.2] (37.92) 4,684,29

Tax expense

{areent gax 1,192.72 - 1.192.32
Deferredd rax expense/ eredir) e 0.05 {0.11) (ML)
Total tax expense 1,192.78 (0.11) 1,192.67
Net profit for the year 3,529.44 (37.81) 3,491.63

Other comprehensive Income/(Loss)
Tens thae will not be reclassified wo profic or hoss
Re-mensurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans E 2 A

Inceme s relaing w these itlems .

Other comprehensive loss for the year - - E

Total comprehensive loss for the year 3,520.44 {37.81) 349163

Note A: Measurenient of financial assets and financial liabilities a1 amortised cost:
Under previsus GAAP, all linancial assets and financial labilines were carried at cost.

Under Tod A8, certain fangial assers and financial Babilities are inoally recognised are faic vadoe and subsequently measured ar amortised ensi
which involves the apphication of effeaive mterest/amorntisation cost method. The clfverive interest mte i the rate than exactdy dizcounss
estimated] future cash paymens oc eceipts through the expected life of the fimancial asset or Nnancial lalility 1o ahe fair value amoun on the
date of recopnition of fimancial asset or inancial liability.

Note B: Prior period adjustments
As per the prineiples of Ind AS the prior pertod expenses/ (incomes) are aot allowed 16 be setred ofF (added) to currenn vear profies, and the
prior puriods (to which such items perain) needs (o be restared.

") Anamount of Rs 20009 Lakhs which was related to the mrerest meome on FIOR feremed) out of govennnens grants Tias been
mistakenly rken to interesr income instead of government grant i the financials foc e year 2005 Which has been subsequently found
and corveeted retrospectively.

(i) Anamount of Rs, 11,46 Lakhs which was related to the inteeest payable on GR'T, was mizrakendv skipped 1o be booked inthe fnancials

d ) ) SEL
tor the vear 2018, Which has been subsequently found and corrected retrospectivily,

{#) Ao amount of Rs, 5.96 Lakhs which was related to the consuliancy charges, was mistakenly skipped 1o be booked o the financials for
the vear 2018, Which has been subscquently found and corrected retrospectively.

Nate C: Deferred tax

Under previous GAAP, deferred tax accounring was done usmy the income starement approach. | Towever, Bud A% reyuives the accamnng of
deterred xes using the balance sheet appeoach, which includes wentification of temporary differences based on the difference 1 earving
aopnized i the fmanenl saemcms

amount of anasser/ tability in the balance sheer and its rax base. These differences bave been suisbly
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REC Transmission Projects Company Limited
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2019
(All amounts in Rupees in Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

39 (II) Additional disclosure explaning interests in other entities

) Place of
Name of associates % of holding incorporation/Principle place
of business
Dinchang Transmission Limited 100% India
Ghatampur Transmission Limited 100% India
ERSS XXI Transmission Limited 100% India
WR-NR Power Transmission Limited 100% India
Ajmer Phagi Transco Limited 100% India
Bhindguna Transmission Limited 100% India
Chandil Transmission Ltd 100% India
Dunka Transmission Lid. 100% India
Jam Khambaliya Transco Limited 100% India
[Khetri Transco Limited 100% India
Koderma Transmission Lid 100% Tudia
Lakadia Banaskantha Transco Limited 100% India
Mandar Transmission Led. 100% India
Udupi Kasargode Trans. Led. 100% Tudia

Note: Management incorporates these entities and invest in them with a view o sell them ol as per the
guidelines of Ministry of power, through the bid process prescribed by minisery of power, There is no
possibility that managemnt will have benefits from these entities other than selling them off, hence alt these
investment (along with the related assets and habilittes) has been classified as held for sale.

Note: The above investiments are managed as per the mandate [rom Government of India (Gol) and the
Company does not have the praciical ability to direet the relevant activities ol these Companics unilarerally.

The Company therefore, considers its investment in respective Companics as associates haviag significant
influence despite the Company holding 100% of their paid-up equity share capital.

CHARTERED

ACCOUNTANTS
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REC Transmission Projects Company Limited
Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2019

(All amounts in Rupees in Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

40 Ccher notes to accounts

00000000000 0000G

There were six openng associate companies (SPVs), incorporated in the previous years, namely Dinchang Transuussion Linted, Ghatampue
Transmission Limited, Koderma Fransmission Limited, Chandil Transmission Limuted, Dumka Transoussion Linuted and Mandar Trusnaission
Limired. Eight associares (SPVs) were incorporated during the Financial Year 2018-19, thus there were toral Fourteen associates during the
year.Out of the Fourteen associates, Two associates namely Jawaharpur Firozabad Transmission Limited and Ghatampur Transnussion Limited|
were transferred on 21.12.2018 and 19.06.2018 respectively.
At the year end, there are Twelve associates (SPVs) in hand of which one associate namely Dinchang Transmussion Linuted was denouticd by
Ao, for whicl the fair value has been taken as zero. .

Jamkhambaliya Transco Limited, Khetn Transco Limited, Ajmer Phag Transco Linuted, Lakadiya Banaskantha Transeo Linied and WRSS NN
Transco Limited have been incorporated in the month of March 2019. As per section 2(41) of Companies Act, 2013 “every company ncopozed|
on or atter the 1st day of January of a year, the period ending, interalia, on the 315t day of Macch of the fullowing financial vear will be the Fnsineial
vear of the company™, Hence, the first financial yeas of the company will be from the dare of incorpocation 1o 31 Maeeh 2020,

Government of Jharkhand vide us letter dated 21.08.2007 had nominated RECTPCL ax the Bid Process Courdinator Lo tie development of Tniea
State tansmission elements of Jharkhand Swate through Tanff Based Competinve Bidding route As per the dircenons of Jhackhane Uiy
sancharan Nigam Limuted (Stare Transmission Utliee of Jharkhand), the transnussion elemenis were divided e 3 prejjeets and the RFOY process
was mitiated. Subsequently,  Jhackhand U Sanchaan Nigam Linuted in consultation with Ceneral Electziciy Authority & Central Transnnssion|
Unilicy finalized the revised transmission clements of Jharkhand Stare 0 be developed throuph Tant! Based Compentive Budding rouse
Arerwards, based on the directions of Jharkiand Usja Sancharan Nigam Limited the revised scope of week has been divided m 4 Packapes
Therefore, Expemnditure which was alfocated 1o five projects was re-allocated to four projects,

The company 1 a whelly owned subsidiary of REC Lud., a Gove of India Enterprse. The Key Managerind Personne] of the o IR e
employees of the Holding Company (REC Tad) deployed on part time hasis. No managerial comunertion s patidd to such personne] Iyl
company. The detuls of such Key Mainagerial Personne] are as follows: -

W WY

Z
=

T - " = o —
Name Designation Datwe of Date ol |
Appointment | Separation

Sh. PV, Ramesh Chairman & o U3 03,701 49]
Director

She Aject Kumar Agacwal Director 27.12.2008 upto 05,03 2014
Chairman & from Continuiny,
Director 06.013,2019

Sh. Sanjeev Kumar Gupta Director 2614020115 Continuing,

Sh. VK. Sigh Dhvecror 15.003.2010 Comtinning

P OO OO O®OGO®OOOCO OGO O
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REC Transmission Projects Company Limited
Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2619

(A amounts in Rupees in Lakhs, unless stated othenvise}
All ather personnel working for the company ace also from the Holding Company (REC Lid). The salacy and establishment expenses in respect of
the persenne] working for the company are paid by the Holding Company (REC L) and recovered at cost From the company,

+

-
T

Whesever, any expenditure 1s incurred or payment made by the Holding Company (REC Licl.) on behalf of the company, procedural and struiory
requirements with regard to deducnon of Tax at Source and other staeutory compliances, as applicable, are complied by the Holding Company

(REC Led).

-
~
-

1) As per the approved policy, REC Lud, the holding company is charging the salary, other esmablishanent expenses and defined Babilines a5
prrcentage of the basic salary for the seconded employees as follows:

a}  Basic Salary- On acrual basis on the basis of estimared time spent tor the company.
by  Dearness Allowance - at acrual

¢)  HRA/Lease Accommenlation charges- @030% of basic salary.

) Perquisites at actual as per the entitlement of the concerned employee.

¢} Performance related pay - ar actoal as per the maximum ceiling provided by DPE,
)  Earned Leave- for 30 days in a year.

)} Medical Leave - for 1O days in a year.

by  Defined Contgbution - 3% of the Basic plus DA, towards PF, Gratuiry, Superanniition Benelits and post retirement medical facility e,

i) [nterest on cost meurced by the company for the associte Compames (SPVS) i charged on the Dasis of gencal madket interest rate of 1&1D
schemes of the ulinate holding company (REC Lid) for ungeaded organisations, presently @ 12,75 % pa as on the beginning of the Finanen|
Wear. Mo interest 1s pawl to REC Ltd, the holding company for the cost incuceed by it as the payment is made within ane month of risig ot

VOIS,

-9 0-0 0 0 0 0.0 000 0 0

-
=

Gince the Company is incurring expenses maialy for s project specific associates (called SPVE], e expenses have been allocated ar the vear end o
these SPVs. Direer expenses have been booked to the respective SPY fue which the expendimire has been imetrred. Al Indwecr/Comoon
Expenses have been allocared only to the SPVs in proportion of salary of HLO, Sl deploved on the SPY from the momh of issue of REFQ o
mcorporation of SPV, whichever is eadier, tll the month mowhich tenth day front the dute of issue of Letter of Lnenn (LOT) For the maasier of (e
SPV falls, Pact of the month, it any, is considered as full month for cost allocarion, The Company has charged interest onahe funds deploved by,
Far direct expenses, inferest is charged from the month in which the expendirure is focurred whereas for indireet expenses intecest s charged Tor
the average period of deployment of funds. Such interest is calealated on monthly Basis but cecogaised at the end of the year.

Annuat and pertodical allocation of expendilice by the Company o associates nll the completion of service s accamubued and debited 10
associies account {invoice inclusive of GST is mised) and the same 1s treated as advance to associties reflected under the head Carremt Asser, The
amount of advance i translerred (0o Debross and is realized, during acquisition ot the SPY by the suceesstul bidder.

T As per the informanon available with the Company, there are no dues to Miceo, Smalt and dledinm Enterprises

93

booooeo oo 00O O50000-00-9



IREC Transmission Projects Company Limited

All amounts in Rupees in Lakhs, unless stated otherwise]

Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2019

X Details of expenditure and earnings in foreign currency is as under

Expenditure
Earnings

v

:,::

Balances in parties accounts, advances,trade receivables and sundry payables

adjustment that may avise on reconcillianon 1f any.
il

Provision and Conungpencies ace as under:

A} Deils of Provisions

are subject o confirmation/reconcilliation and consecuential

For the Year

31 March 2019

Limpairment for financal mstruments has been made for an amount of Rs.112.43 lakh (P.Y. NIE) as per Ind AS 109

For the Year
ended
31 Alarch 2018

ended

NIL NIL
NIL NiL

(@) Proposed Dividend
Previous Yenr
(1) Coxporate Dividend Tax

Previous Year

B} Details of Contingent Liabilities
I. Contingent Liabilitics not provided (or

Clims against the Company nat acknowledped
as debis
(thers

II.  Commitments not provided for

25R Comnutments

Capiral Commitments

»,

"
art
—
ht

. A) Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses

Direet Expenditure

Overheads

Totl

Opening Addivon dusing Amouns C]i"l-siﬂg
Balance the yenr paid fuiilised Balance
during 1he year
1,354.00 1.350.00
280,03 250193
As al Asat As at

M Mareh 2019

31 March 2018

01 April 2017

NIL

[IENE

11503
1n.o6

For the year ended
31 March 2019

27.05

PO O O 000 0® 0000 0 0 0 0 00 0000 9000000006 90090000

NI NII.
203 NIL
42,86 100,71
3000 [$R918]

For the year ended;
3 March 2018
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REC Transmission Projects Company Limited

forming part of Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2019

(All amounts in Rupees in Lakh, unless stated otherwise)

B) Disclosure in respect of CSR Expenses:

a4 Gross amount required to be spent by the company during the financial year. Rs. 93.00lakl (Previous year Rs. 108,13 lakhy),
b) Amount spent during the year.

2018-19 2017-18
Y
In cash e;i::)dbe Total In cash Yet to be paid Total

Conzteuction facyuisiion of the any asset - - - - -
Other than {1} above: spend through
Lurcka Forbs Institute of Enviconment i0.06 10.06 - - -
Artificial Limb Maoufacturing Comporation of
India (ALINMCO § 17.59 17.59 s 2 i
NIT, Meghalaya - R 57.85 2 57.85
Total 27.65 - 27.65 57.85 - 57.85

RECTIPCL hag got an assignment under BDAY Scheme from JKPIRD against which commencement of the contract is 1o be recogmised from the
dare of recapt of mobilisation advance or the date of signing of agreement whichever is later. on mutual consent hasis, the commencement of
conteact has been recopnised from the dare of signing of agreement.

The Company 15 operating in 2 single segment de. providing consultancy services and theretore disclosure requirements of Tnd AS 108 s not

applicable.

During 195 200 7-18, Assessment for the 1Y 2004-15 was completed. and demand raised by Income ‘Tax Department for Rs. 14,220/ - which is paid
in 1Y 2018-19.

During 19 201718, interest expenses of Rs. 30.04456/- constitutes Re, 6.07.367/- paid to banks and Rs. 23.68.911/-paid under section 2340 of
T Act. 1961 and Re 14220005 220 and R8.13,958/- for interest on DIYLL During previous year, interest expenses of Rs. 15,340,827/ constitutes
Rs. 34851/ pud to banks and Kz 1497903/ paid under section 234C of 11 cr, 1961,

In the opinion of the aunagement the value of the current assets and loans and advances on realisation in ordinary conrse of business will nor he
less chan value at which these are stated in the financial statements.

Previous years tigures have been regrouped/rearranged/ recast, wherever nccessary, to make them comparable with the carecnt year’s figares,

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of

e Aceountants REC Transmission Projects Company Limited

ACCOumTAMTS (sh. S.lu}ec}_,Kﬁtmr Gupl.x) (Sh. Vijay Kumar Singh)
Partner Dlw Iirector
MRN:097279 IDIN No.: Q03464342 IDIN No.: 02772733
Place: New Delha Place: New Dellia Place: New Dedla
Dare: Date: 17-05-2019 Date: 17-05-2019 !
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF REC TRANSMISSION PROJECTS COMPANY LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of REC TRANSMISSION
PROJECTS COMPANY LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at
March 31, 2019, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and
a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter
referred to as “the standalone financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the [ndian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2019, the profit and
total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities Jor the Audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) together with the
independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under
the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics, We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to the following matters in the Notes to Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements:

Reference is invited to note no. 40(X!) regarding non confirmation of balances from parties other than
banks and related parties, and consequential adjustment that may arise on reconciliation. In this it is

explained by the management that necessary letter for obtaining the balance confirmation has been
sent to the parties and confirmation are awaited.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.
Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion

thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined that there are
no key audit matters to communicate in our report.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis,
Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, and

Corporate Governance, but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Contd........
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Qur opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing te report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view

_ of the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and

cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

® Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i} of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (i) to
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences

of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
I. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are
in agreement with the relevant books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e) Vide notification no. G.S.R.463(E) dated 05.06.2015 issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs,
Government Companies have been exempted from applicability of provision of section 164(2)
of the Companies Act, 2013.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial contro g

Contd........
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g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with

Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. As per the information and explanation given to us, the Company does not have any
pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

ii. The Company does have any such long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there are any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

2. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

3. As required by C&AG of India through directions issued under section 143(5) of the Act, we give
a report in the attached Annexure-C.

Place : New Delhi

Date :

For P. Jain & Company
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registra_tion No. 000711C)

» ¢

4 (MKAJ JAIN)

Partner
mhbership No. 097279)

0| CHARTEREp
ACCOUNTANTS

17.05.2019
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ANNEXURE “"A"” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report to the Members of REC Transmission Projects Company Limitedof even
date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i)
of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of REC TRANSMISSION
PROJECTS COMPANY LIMITED(“the Company”) as of March 31, 2019 in conjunction with our
audit of the standaione financial staterments of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act,
2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance
Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on
Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit invoives performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financiat controls system over financial reporting
of the Company.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed o provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisationsof management and directors of the company; and {3)
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provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on
the financial statements.

Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject'to the risk that the internai financial control over financial reporting fay become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate,

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system,
except improvement in the system of allocation of common expenses to associates (SPVs),
procedure to obtain periodical balance confirmation and timely obtaining Internal Audit
Report and compliances thereon,over financial reporting and such internal financial controls
over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2019, based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal

Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India.

We have considered the areas of improvement identified which needs further strengthening
as reported above in the determining the nature, timing and extent of audit test applied in
our audit of the 31%March, 2019 Standalone Financial Statements of the Company. However

these areas of improvement do not effect our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements
of the Company,

For P. Jain & Company
Chartered Accountants

i
Place : New Dethi lPAN KAJ JAIN)
Partner
Date : 17.05.2019 idtnership No. 097279)
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ANNEXURE ‘B’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report to the Members of REC Transmission Projects Company Limited of even
date)

i.  In respect of the Company’s fixed assets:

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars except codification
and location of fixed assets.

(b} The Company has a program of verification to cover all the items of fixed assets in a phased
manner which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and
the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, fixed assets were physically verified by the
management during the year. According to the information and explanations given to us, no
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company does not have any
immovable property, accordingly, reporting under clause 3 (i)(c) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company. :

ii. The Company is not having any physical inventories,accordingly, reporting under clause 3 (ii) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

iii. According the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted unsecured
loans tobodies corporate except advances to associate companies in the ordinary course of

business, covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013, in
respect of which:

(a) The terms and conditions of the grant of such loans are, in our opinion, prima facie, not
prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

(b) The schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and
repayments or receipts of principal amounts and interest have been regular as per stipulations.

(¢) There is no overdue amount remaining outstanding as at the year-end.

tv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
made any loans, provided guarantees, investments and provided securities in contravention to
Sections 185 and 186 of the Act, as applicable.

v. The Company has not accepted deposits during the year and does not have any unclaimed deposits
as at March 31, 2019 and therefore, the provisions of the clause 3 (v} of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

vi. The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under section
148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried out by the Company. Thus
reporting under clause 3(vi) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

vii. According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

(a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including
Provident Fund, Employees® State Insurance, Income Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Customs
Duty, Cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities.

{(b) There were no disputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employees’ State
Insurance, Income Tax, Service Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Customs Duty, Cess and other
material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2019.

viii. The Company has not taken any loans or borrowings from financial institutions, banks and
government or has not issued any debentures. Hence reporting under clause 3 (viii) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

ix. The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) or term loans and hence reporting under clause 3 (ix) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

Contd........
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To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no
fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has
been noticed or reported during the year.

As per notification No. F.No. 1/2/2014-CL-V dated 05.06.2015 issued by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs, Government of India, Section 197 is not applicable to the company being a
Central Government PSU.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3 (xii) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company:.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is in
compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where applicable, for all
transactions with the related parties and the details of related party transactions have been
disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or fully or partly paid convertible debentures and hence reporting under clause 3 (xiv) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year the
Company has not entered into any non- -cash transactions with its Directors or persons connected
to its directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not
applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934,

For P. Jain & Company
Chartered Accountants

(Firm’s Registratign No. 0007] 1C)
@

Place : New Delhi GA,N’KAJ JAIN)
Partner
17.05.2019 ship No. 097279)
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ANNEXURE “C"” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 3 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of
our report to the Members of REC Transmission Projects Company Limited of even date)

M

(ii)

(iii)

Whether the company has system in place to
process all the accounting transactions through IT
system? If yes, the implications of processing of
accounting transactions outside IT system on the
integrity of the accounts along with the financial
implications, if any, may be stated.

Whether there is any restructuring of an existing
loan or cases of waiver/write off of debts
floans/interest etc. made by a lender to the
company due to the company’s inability to repay
the loan? If yes, the financial impact may be
stated.

Whether funds received/receivable for specific
schemes from central/ state agencies were
properly accounted for/ utilized as per its term
and conditions? List the cases of deviation

The company is using Tally ERP 9
software for recording accounting
transactions entered by the com pany. The
tally software is not used in a fully
integrated way, as a result it does not
captures the transactions automaticalily
and transactions are manually entered.

Not Applicable

Yes, as per our test checks
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA
UNDER SECTION 143(6)(b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS OF REC TRANSMISSION PROJECTS COMPANY LIMITED FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

The preparation of financial statements of REC Transmission Projects Company Limited
for the year ended 31 March 2019 in accordance with the financial reporting framework
prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) is the responsibility of the management of the
company. The statutory auditor appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India
under section 139 (5) of the Act is responsible for expressing opinion on the financial statements
under section 143 of the Act based on independent audit in accordance with the standards on
auditing prescribed under section 143 (10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by them
vide their Audit Report dated 17 May 2019.

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a
supplementary audit of the financial statements of REC Transmission Projects Company
Limited for the year ended 31 March 2019 under Section 143 (6) (a) of the Act. This
supplementary audit has been carried out independently without access to the working papers of
the statutory auditor and is limited primarily to inquiries of the statutory auditor and company

personnel and a selective examination of some of the accounting records.

On the basis of my supplementary audit nothing significant has come to my knowledge

which would give rise to any comment upon or supplement to statutory auditor’s report under

section 143 (6) (b) of the Act.

For and on behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

-

-paN

Place: New Delhi (Rina Akoijam)
Date: .24 / s F / 2415 Principal Director of Commercial Audit &
Ex-officio Member, Audit Board — II1,
New Delhi
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REC Transmission Projects Company Limited
{CIN:U40101DL 2007601157558}

Consalidatad Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2019

(All amounts in Rupees in Lakh, unless stated otherwise)

Pasticulars Notes As at As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 01 April 2017
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Propery, plant and cauipment + 27.36 35.65 ) 1548
"Other Intangilile assets 5 (.56 0.75 .66
Financial assets
Investments 0 H,457.50 R®.837.63 $.857.70
Loans 7 37.010 3287 9.78
Other hnancil assets 8 80.38 I ML23
Other non-gurront asscis 9 - 3.09 253
Total non-current asscts 9,008.81 8,962.00 8,916.39
Current assets
Fiancial asscts
{nvesuncos In . 6,483.50 3,500.68]
Trade reeavables 11 2.2000.249 1,716.88 38.42
Cash and cash equis alents 12 1494711 15,883.08 3.3
Cieher bank balances 13 3304 LUK 3.039.31
Other fimncial assots 4 #5213 395.41 9608
Caereat s assets (net} 29 H5.43 - -
Onlser current assets 15 306.83 A71.34 281,29
Assers classiied as held fore sale 16 95549 767.77 30H. 40
Total current assets 19,620.93 25,919.67 7,315.48
TOTAL ASSETS 28,629.74 34,381.67 16,231,87
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Fguiy share capinal 17 ann S.H 30
Other equity L& 11,838.99 17,611.72 13,781.03)
Total equity 11,843.99 17,616.72 15,786.03
Non-current liabilities
Prowistons (U] 6.30 4016 103
Deferred 1ax habalities (net) 20 017 1.37 1.42
Total non-current liabilities 6.47 5.83 2.45
Current liabilitics
Financial liabuhtics
{her financal lablites 21 15414.38 15.948.03 8.2
Other cureent habilities 2 1,356,482 1.259.29 28011
Preavisioms 23 1Y (X153 (X
Current tax habihities (net) 24 - 51.75 55.07
Liabilittes dircedly assoctated with asseses
classified as hr.-ld)lnr wale Lo [t ) )
Total current liabilities 16,779.28 17,259.12 443.39
Total liabilitics 16,785.75 17,264.95 445.84
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 28,629.74 34,881.67 16,231.87

Summary of significant accounting policics
The accompanying notes are integral pare of the Consolidated financial statements.
This is the balance sheet referred 1o in our report of even date.

For P.Jain & Company l'or and on behalf of Board of Directors of

Chartered Aecountanes REC Transmission Projecy
RN:HIT1 ¢

P
.,-"'f’r,ﬂ 3
o

{Sh. swpm (Sh. Vijay Kumar Singh)
Pariner Dircceef Bircetor
MRN:O97279 DIN No.: 03464342 DIN No.: 02772733
Place: New Belln Place: New Dedhi Place: New Delhi
Daage; Dare 17-05-2019 Date; 17-03-2019
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REC Transmission Prajects Company Limited
{CIN:U40101DL2007G0I157558)

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended 31 March
2019 (All amounts in Rupees in Lakh, unless stated atherwise)

For the year ended

Summary of significant accounting policies

Pacticulars Notes For the year ended

4 r 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Revenue
Revenue from operations 25" 2.869.53 4.173.06
Orther income 26 1.175.64 1,140.00
Total income 4,045.17 5,313.05
Expenses
Cost of services rendered 27 133.93 302.33
Employee benefits expense 28 169.67 43.72
Finance costs 29 31.61 26.84
Lepreciation and amortisation expense 30 1440 13.52
Impairment of asseets 11243
Other expenses 31 334.26 183.99
Corporate social responsibitey expenses HONIL) 2763 57.85
Total expenses 823.94 628.76
Profit before tax 3,221.23 4,634.29
Tax expense 32

Courrent tax T62.43 119272

Deferred tax expense/ (credie) (t.20) (0.06)

761.23 1,192.67

Net profit for the year 2,459.99 3,491.63
Other comprechensive loss

Irems that will not be reclasstfied o profit or loss

Re-messurement guns/{lossesd on defined beneht Mans -
Income tax relating to these items

Other comprehensive Income/(lass) for the year - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 2,459.99 3,491.63
Earnings per equity share

Rasic/diluted carnings per share (in Rupees) 33 +4,919.98 6,983.26

For P. Jain & Company
Chartered Accountants
IRIN:0007 1 1;('. G-

<&
(Pdnikaj Jain)
Partner

MRIN:097279

Place: New Dellu

‘I'he accompanying notes are integral part of the Consolidated financial statements.

This is the statement of total comperihesive income referred to in our report of even date.

For and on behalf of Board of Diccctors of
REC Transmission Projects Company kimited

anjeev Kumar Gupta) (8h. Vijay Kumar Singh)
Director Director
DDIN No.: 03464342 IDIN No.: 02772733

Place: New Delhs Place: New Dellu
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Place: New Delha

REC Transmission Projects Company Limited
(CIN:U40101DL2007GOI157558)

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amounts in Rupees in Lakh, unless stated otherwise)

For the year cnded

For the year ended

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax ,221.23 4,684.29
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amocusanon EXpons: 1440 1332
Interest Income (LETLGY 11.029.34)
Interest Bxpense on Workng capual koan from bank n3t i3
Operating Profic Before Working Capital Changes 2,064.65 3,568.82
e Aelfasents jor Unarease} [ deredse sn aperating aiels:
Lovants (e Cureent (1] 123.09)
Other Non Curcent assets 3.469 [N 5]
Trade recavables (37341 11.638.46)
(her financul daaets (Current) 1236.22) H99.8%)
Cither curcent assets 125,45 (LYY
Assens hekl For salke [EE iy ] {40 38)
< Nelfasamrents for (nerease) [ deveas aperafing fhifites:
Peovasians (Non current) 1384 343
Prosvisions (Current] 014 [IXE ]
Chlwer financid labiliues (Careent) (533,63 13,819.73
Onber Currend abilities Y733 W
Labilities held for sale .49
Movement in Operating assets and liabilties {1,425.57) 14,060.38
Cash gencrated from operations 639.08 17,629.20
Less: Tucome Tax Paud (U50.62) [{REAID)]
Net cash flow used in operating activities {A) (320.53) 16,433.16
B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and cupmune 13.92 24.22)
Sale of property, plant and vquipmient 0GR
Purchase of intangible assets (sofiware) .24
Sale/Unvestmenin of/ i sharcs i s compatnes Mt [RUXETT LY T
M.ltunr_\'/(ln\ulmum| «H Canporabe :,)cp(.-:u x O, 481560 12,50y
Mty of Tenm Deposas 1517 270263
Hiterest Recened L.b65 14 L2Ln3
Net cash flow from investing activities (B} 7,618.00 1,079.90
C. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
[ntecest paad 71 {1.33)
Divislends pad 16829081 (138081
i oo divadend pasd 11,403.72 {2893
Net cash used in financing activities (C) (8,233.43) (1,661.28)
Net Increase /{Decrease) in Cash und Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) {935.97) 15,851.78
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the Year 13,883.08 3130
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the Year 14,547 11 15,483.08
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per the cash flow ik (935.97) 15.851.78
Summary of significant accounting policies
The accompanying notes are integral part of the Consolidated financial statements.
Note: Profit before Tax includes CSR expenses Rs. 27.65 Lakh {PY Rs. 57.85 Lakh) This is
the statement of cash flow referred to in our report of even date
For P_Jain & Company For and «n bebalf of Board of Dircerors «
Charterisd dccesntanis = REC Transmission Projects Comp

ev Kumar Gupta)
DIN N 5464342

Place: Mew Delh
Date:1703-2019

(Sh. Vijay Kumar Singh)
LN N 02772733

Place: New Delhs
Date 174052019
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(CIN:U40101DL2007GOI157558)

A Equity share capital

Balance as at 01 April 2017

Balance as at 31 March 2018

Balance as at 31 March 2019

B Other equity

Balance as at 01 April 2017
Prafit for the year

Final Dividend

Tax on dividend

Balance as at 31 March 2018
Profit tor the year

'l Dividend

Tax on Hnal dividend

Inrerim dividend

Tax on intermn dividend
Balance as at 31 March 2019

For P.Jain & Company
Cll.‘lfr(‘ﬂ.’d Accountants
FRN:O0)711C

Partner
MRN:097279

Place: New Delhi

Date:

REC Transmission Projects Company Limited

Changes in equity share capital dwing the year

Clhanges in equity share capiral during the year

Consolidated Statement of changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2019
{All amounts in Rupees in Lakh, unless stated otherwise)

General reserve

Retained eamings

1,325.00 14,456.03 15,781.03
3.491.63
{1,380.00) (1.380.00;
- (280.93)
1,325.00 16,286.72 17,611.72
. 245999
{3.529.00) (3,529.0M)
(725.40)
(3,300.00) {3,300.0t1)
- {678.32)
1,325.00 10,513.99 11,838.99

Summary of significant accounting policies
The accompanying notes are integral part of the Consolidated financial statements.

This 1s the statement of changes in equity referred to in our report of even date.

For and on behalt of Beard of Directocs of
REC Transmission Projects Company Limited

m;njeev Kumar Gupta)

Director

DIN No.: 03464342

Place: New Delln
Dare:17-05-2019

(Sh. Vijay Kumar Singh)

Director

DIN No.: 02772733

Place: New Dellu
Date:17-05-2019
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REC Transmission Projects Company Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended March 31, 2019

(All amounts in Rs lacs, unless otherwise stated)

1,

21

CORPORATE INFORMATION

REC Transmission Projects Company Lid. (RECTPCL’ or ‘the Company’) was incorporated in the year 2007.
The Company is domiciled in India and is limited by shares, having its registered office ar Core-4, SCOPE
Comples, 7, Lodhi Raad, New Delhi-110003, India and principal place of business at Core-+, SCOPE Complex.
7. Lodhi Road, New Delhi-110003. The Company is a wholly-owned subsidiary of REC Limited {formerly Rural
Elecuification Corporation Limited). RECTPCL together with its subsidiaries is cailed “the Group”.

Ministry of Power has appointed RECTPCL as Bid Process Coordinator (BPC) for Inter State Transmission
Systems across the country on Tariff Based Competitive Mode. RECTPCL. commenced working as BPC in the
year 2007 and successtully awarded its first project in the FY - 2009-10. Till date, RECTPCL has been appointed
as Bid Process Coordinator for many a large Inter-state and Intra-state Projects. RECTPCL is also engaged inter
-alia in the business to promote, organize or carry on the consultancy services and/or project implementation in

any field relating to Transmission, Distribution and Smart Grid ete. in India.
STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

The Group has adopted Indian Accounting Standards (referred to as “Ind AS”) notified under the Companies
{Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) with effect from 01 April 2018, These Consolidated
Financial Statemeats comply with Ind AS notified under the Companies (Indinn Accounting Standards) Rutes,
2015 (as amendedy}, applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable regulatory norms /
guidelines. These are the Group’s first Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements and the date of transinon is 01
April 2017.

The Group did not prepare its Consolidated Financial Statements up to the year ended 31 March 2018, in
accordance with the requirements of previous Generally Accepted Accounting Principles {previous GAAP), since
AS 21 under Previous GAAP did not require a Associate company to be consolidated when control was intended
to be temporary.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 were authorized and approved for issue by the Board
of Directors on 17th May, 2019.

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT EFFECTIVE
Ind AS 116 - Leases:

On 30 March 2019, Ministry of Corporate A ffairs (MCA) has notified Ind AS 116, Leases. Ind AS 116 will replace
Ind AS 17 and related interpretations. The standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of leases. Ind AS 116 introduces a single lessee accounting model and requires a lessec
to recognized assets and liabilites for all leases with a term of more than 12 months, unless the undedying asset

1s of low value. The Standard also contains enhanced disclosure requirements tor lessees,
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3.1

G

)

Ind AS 12 - Appendix C, Uncertainty over Incame Tax Treatments:

On 30 March 2019, MCA has notified Ind AS 12 Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments which
is to be applied while performing the determination of taxable profit (or loss), tax bases, unused rax losses, unused
tax credits and tax rates, when there is uncertainty over income eax treatments under Ind AS 12. According to the
appendix, companies need to determine the probability of the relevant tax authotity accepting each tax treatment,
or group of tax weatments, that the companies have used or plan to use in their income tax filing which has to be
considered to compute the most likely amount or the expected value of the tax teatment when determining

taxable profit (tax loss}, tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and rax rates.
Amendment to Ind AS 12 — Income taxes:

On 30 March 2019, MCA 1ssued amendments to the guidance in Ind AS 12, ‘Income Taxes’, in connection wirh
accounting for dividend distribution taxes. The amendment clarifies that an entity shall recognise the income tax
consequences of dividends in profit or loss, other comprehensive income or cquity according to where the enaty

originally recognized those past transactions or eveuts.

Amendment to Ind AS 19 -~ Plan amendment, curtailment or settlement

On 30 March 2019, Miaistry of Corporate Affairs issued amendments to Ind AS 19, ‘Employee Benefits’, in
connection with accounting for plan amendments, curtailments and settlements requiring an entivy to use updated
assumptions to determine current service cost and net interest for the remainder of the petiod after a plan
amendiment, curtailment or sectlement; and to recoguise in profit or loss as patt of past service cost, or a galn or
loss on settlement, any reduction in a surplus, even if that surplus was not previously recognised because of the

impact of the asset ceiling.

The effective date for application of these amendments is annual pertod beginning on or after 01 Apeil 2019. The

Group is currently evaluating the effect of these amendments on the Consolickited Financial Sratements.
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND MANAGEMENT ESTIMATES

The significant accounting policies applied in preparation of the consolidated financial statements are

as given below:

Basis of preparation and measurement

Going concern and basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basts under the listorical cost convention on
accrual basis except for certain financial assets and financial babilities are measured at fair values at the end of each

reporting period.
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the criteria set out in the Companies

Act, 2013. The Group has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current/non-current

classification of assets and liabilities.
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3.3

Functional and presentation currency:
These financials are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Group’s functional currency, all amounts

have been rounded off to neazest lacs (upto two digits), unless otherwise indicated.

Basis of Consolidation

* Associates

The Group’s interests in equity accounted investees comprise interests in assogiafes. An associate is an enoey,
including an umncorporated €ntity, over which the Company has sigmificant influence and that 15 neither s
subsidiafy nor an interest in a joinf venture.

Interests in associates are accounted for using the equity method. They are initially recognised at cost, which
includes transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, the consolidated financial statements include the
Group’s share of Profit and Loss and Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) of equity-accounted investees untit
the date on which significant influence ceases. In case where it is considered that the investment/interest in
associates fs held for sale, the interest in associates is accounted for vader Ind AS 105.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the

revenue can be reliably measured.

Ineome frone Operation
Revenues are measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of discounts and other

indirect taxes.

(® In Cost Plus Contracts - revenue is recognised by including eligible contractual irems of expenthtures plus
proportionate margin as per contract;

(i) In Fixed Price Contracts — revenue is recognised on the basis of stage of completion of the contract. The
Group has assessed that the stage of completion determined as the proporton of the total ume expected o
complete the performance obligation that has lapsed at the end of the reporting period is an appropriate measure

of progress towards complete satisfaction of these performance obligations under Ind AS 115,

Estimates of revenues, costs or extent of progress toward completion are revised if circumstances change. Any
resulting increases or decreases in estimated revenues or costs are reflected in profit or loss in the pericd in which
the circumstances that give rise to the revision become known by management.

Professional charges to be charged from the selected bidders/developers for transmission projects put on tariff
based bidding is accounted for in the year in which it is reasonably certain that the ultimate collection of the

professional charges will be made.

Sale proceeds of Request for Proposal (RFP) documents is credited to the respective SPV and sale proceeds of
Request for Qualification (RFQ) documents is retained by the Group and accounted as income of the Group.

Interest tncome

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the

Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
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3.5

to the principle outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount

on initial recognition.

Property, Plant and Equipment:

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost
includes all expenses, direct and indirect, specifically attributable to its acquisition and bringing it to its working
conditon for its intended use. lncidental expenditure pending allocation and attributable to the acquisition of
fixed assets is allocated/ capitalised with the related assets. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised to the asser’s
carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are

expensed when incurred.

Subsequent measnrement (depreciation method, nseful fives and residal valie)

Depreciation on assets ts provided on straight-line method in accordance with the uscful lives prescribed under
Schedule IT of the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation on assets purchased/ sold during the year is charged for
the full mouth if the asset is in use for more than 15 days, instead of charging the same on pro-rata basis from the

date of purchase/ sale.
Assets individually costing less than 2 5,000 are fully deprectated 1n the year of purchase.
The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed ar the end of each financial year.

De-recognition

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant pact witially recognized is derecognized upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain o loss arising on
de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the ditference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount

of the asset) is recognized in the statement of profit and loss, when the asset is derccognized.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any. The cost of an
intangible asset comprises its purchase price, including any import duries and other taxes (other than those
subsequently recoverable from the tax authotities), and any dircctly attributable expenditure on making the asset

ready for its intended use and net of any trade discounts and rebates.
Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of intangible assets is recognised in statement of profic or loss.
Subsequent measnrement (amortisation method, nsefirl lives and residual value)

For amortization of intangibles the amortization amount of intangible assets is allocated on a systematic basis over

the best estimate of its useful life. Management estimates useful life of intangible assets o be 5 years.
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3.6

3.7

Fait value measurement

The Group measures financial instruments ar fair value which is the price that would be recerved to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an ordegly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The
faw value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the Labilicy
takes place either:

* in the principal market for the asset or liabilicy, or

* in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or labiliry.

All assers and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that 1s significant
to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities:

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant 1o the fair value measurement
is directly or indirectly observable; and

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement

15 unoabservable.

The Group uses valvation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufticient dara are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant obscrvable inputs and minimising the wse of
unobservable inputs. For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the balance sheet on a recurring basis, the
Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing eategorisation
{based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the cnd ol each

reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assers and liabtities on the basis
ot the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or linbility and the level of the fair value hicrarchy as explained

above.

Financial instruments
A financial instroiment is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entty and a financial liability or

equity instrumnent of another entity.
Financial assets:

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.
Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation
or conventon in the market place (regular way tades) are recognised on the trade date, Le,, the date that the

Group commits to puichase ot sell the asset.

CHARTERED
ACCOUNTANTS
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Sulrsequeent measurenent

Financial assets carried at amortized cost — a financial asset is measured at the amortized cost if both the
following conditions are met: .

* The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash Hows,
and

* Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal

and incerest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding,

Alfter initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
wnterest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by tking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisauon is included in mrerest

income in the Statement of Profic and Loss.

De-recognition of financial assets

Financial assets (or where applicable, a part of financial asset or part of a group of sinlar financial assers) are
derecognised (i.e. removed from the Group’s balance sheet) when the contractual rights to receive the cash flows
from the financial asset have expired, or when the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards are
transterred. Further, if the Group has not retained control, it shall also derccognise the tinancial asset and

recognise separately as assets or liabilities any rights and obligations created or retained m the transler.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for measurement and
recognition of impaitment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

a} Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt secunties,
deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

b} Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured at Fair value through profit & loss account, (FVTPL).
) g ) A

The Group follows ‘stimplified approach’ for recognition of impaioment loss allowance on Trade receivables thar
p ! [

do not contain 2 significant financing component.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Group to track changes in credit osk, Rather, it
recognises impaument loss allowance based on lifenme ECLs at each reporting date, right from its injual

recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Group deterniines that
whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recoguition. If credic tisk has not
mereased sigmicantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impaivment loss. However, if credit risk has
increased significantly, lifeume ECL is used. If, in 2 subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves
such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to

recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

CHARTERED
ACCOUNTANTS
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3.8

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from de fault events that
are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

Financial liabilities:

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and borrowings, payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables,
net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including financial

guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement
Subsequent to initial recognition, financial labilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

De-recognition

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
Wheu an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same leader on substantially different terins,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the
de-recognition of the original hability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective

carrying amounts Js recognised 1n the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of {inancial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported 1n the balauce sheet if there is a

currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to setle on a net basis,

to realise the assets and settle the labilites simultaneously.

Non-Current assets held for sale

Non-cucrent assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will have recovered principally through
sale transaction rather than through continuing use and a sale is considered highly probable. They are measured
at lower of their carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell, except for assets such as deferred tax, assets arising
from employee benefit, financials assets and contractual rights under insurnnce contracts, which are specifically

exernpted from this requirement.

Non-current assets are not depreciated or amortised while they are classified as held for sale. Noo-current assers

held for sale are presented separately from other assets in the balance sheet.
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3.9

3.10

Where the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss of control of a Subsidiary/Associate, it classifies
investment in the subsidiary/Associate (L.e. all the assets and liabilities of that subsidiary/Associate) as held for
sale.

Employee benefits:

Employee benefits include Provident Fund, Leave Encashment & Loyalty Bonus.

a) Fixed Tenure Employees
The Group has recrvited Fixed Tenure Employees for a period of 3 years, which is further extenclable maximum

up to 4 years and 6 months, depending upon the requirement and performance. All employee benefits staturory
liabilities e.g. Provident Fund, Pension, ESI and Gratuity etc. are not applicable to the Group. However, the
Group provided for leave encashment and loyalty bonus for which liabilities are assessed as per the acruarial

valuation and disclosed in other notes to accounts.

b) Employecs on secondment from holding Group

The Group is managed by the employees deployed by REC Ltd (holding Group) on secondment basts and pays
their chatges as service tee for deemed management service provided by its holding Group. The Service charges,
being charged as a fixed liability on the basis of actual employee cost, added with fixed charges on acconnt ol
tuture Liability of Provident Fund, Gratuity, Superannuation and Postretirement benelit cte. With paying above
charges, Group owes nothing to its holding Group for any future liabilities whatsoever against such seconded

employees.

Taxation
Tax expense recognized in profit or loss compuses the sum of deferred tax and current tax. [tis recognized n
Statement of Profit and Loss, except when it relates to an item that is recognised in Qther comprehensive incone
(OCI) or directly in equity, in which case, the tax is also recognised in Other comprehensive income o dicectly
in equity.

Current tax is determined as the tax payable in respect of taxable income tor the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted and as applicable at the reporting date, and any adjustiments to tax payable i respecr of

previous years.

Deferred tax 1s recognized on temporary differences between the cacrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consohdated financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable income.
Deferred tax on temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures 15 not
provided if reversal of these temporary differences can be controlled by the Group and it is probable that reversal

will net occur in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated, without discounting, at tax rates that are expected to apply to
their respective period of realization, provided those rates are enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabiliues are offsetif there is a legally enforceable right to offser current

tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.
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3.1

Deterred tax liability 1s recognized for all taxable temporary differences. A deferred tax asset is tecognized for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the deductible temporary ditference can be utlized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each
reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefir will be
realized.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognized as a component of tax income or expense in profit or
loss, except where they relate to items that are recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,

in which case the refated deferred tax is also recognized in other comprehensive income or equity, respectively.
Dividend Distribution Tax is recognized at the same tme when the liability to pay a dividend is recoguized.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilitics, and Contingent Assets

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present legal or construcrive obligation as a result of a past
event; it is probable that an outflaw of economic resources will be required from the Group and amounts can
be estimated reliably. Timing or amount of the outflow may sull be uncettain. Provisions are measured at the
estimated expenditure required to settle the present obligation, based on the most reliable evidence available at
the reporting date, including the risks and uncertainties associated with the present obligaton. Provisions are

discounted to their present values, where the time value of money 1s material.

A contingent liability 13 disclosed tor:

Possible obligations which will be confirmed ouly by future events not whaolly withm the control of the Group
ot

Present obligations ausing from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be requured

to settle the obligation or a reliable estitnate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made.

In those cases, whete the outflow of economic resources as a result of present obligations is considered

improbable or remote, no liability is recognized or disclosure is made.

Any reimbursement that the Group can be virtually certain to collect from a third party concerning the obligaten
(such as from insurance} is recognized as a separate asset. However, this asset may not exceed the amount of the
related provision. ,
Contingent assets are not recognized. However, when the inflow of economic benefits is probable, the related
asset is disclosed.

CHARTERED

ACCOUTANTS
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3.12 Earnings per share

3.13

3.4

3.15

3.16

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attribuitable to.equity
shareholders (after deducting atuributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares ourstanding
during the period.

To caleulate diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period ateributable to equity shareholders
and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all

dilutive potential equity shares.

Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and inangible assets
or cash generating units to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impawrment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determune the extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amourm
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-gencrating unit to which the asset
belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identilied, corporate assets are also allocated
to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of eash-generating units

for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Allocation of expenses

The Group has been appointed by Government of India to act as Bid Process Co-ordinator tor sclection of the
Transmission Service Provider (developer) for Transmission Projects. Since the Group is weurng expenses
mainly for its project specific subsidiaries (called SPVs), the expenses have been allocated at the year end to these
SPVs. Direct expenses have been booked to the respective Assoctate/SPV for which the expenditure has been
incurred.  All Indirect/Common Expenses have been allocated only to the subsidiaries/SPVs in proportion ol
salary of HO staff deployed on the associates from the month of issue of RIFQ) or mcorporation of SPV,
whichever is eaclier, dll the month in which tenth day from the date of issue of Letter of Intent {(LOI) for the
transfer of the SPV falls. Paxt of the month, if any, is considered as full month for cost allocation. The Growp

has also charged interest on the funds deployed by it.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances (with
an original maturity of three menths or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid investments that ave readdy

convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Funds/grants received from government
Unuualized amount of grant/fund received are classified as current liabilities. Interest wherever earned on such

funds is credited to respective grant/fund account.
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3.17

3.18

3.19

3.20

3.21

3y

Dividend
Proposed dividends and interim dividends payable to the shareholders are recognized as changes in equity in the
period n which they are approved by the shareholders’ meeting and the Board of Directors respectively.

Material prior period errors

Material prior period errors are cotrected retrospectively by restating the comparative amounts for the prior
periods presented in which the ecror occutred. If the error occurred before the earliest period presented, the
opening balances of assers, liabilities and equity for the earliest period presented, are restated.

Prepaid Expenses

A prepaid expense up to Rs. 1,00,000/- is recognized as expense upon initia] recognition.

Rates and taxes
Oversens taxes on foreign assignments, indirect taxes, including Goods & Service Tax, professional tax, properry
tax, eatry tax, labour cess, octrot and any other applicable taxes etc. paid/accrued in lndia or abroad for which

credit are not available to the Group are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Rounding off amounts
All amounts disclosed in the consolidated financial statements and notes have been rounded off 1o the nearest

lacs as per the requirements of Schedule 11T of the Act unless otherwise stated.

Significant management judgments in applying accounting policies and estimation of uncertainty
The preparauon of the Group’s consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgiments,
estumates, and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilites, and the

related disclosures. Actual results may differ from these estimares.

(i) Significant management judgments
Recognition of deferred tax assets/ liability — The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is

based on an assessment of the probability of the [uture taxabile income aganst which the deferved tax assees can

be utihzed.

Evaluation of indicators for impairment of asscts — The evaluation of the applicabdity of indicators ol
tnpairment of assets requires assessment of several external and internal factors which could result in

deterioration of recoverable amount of the assets.

(i) Significant estimates
Useful lives of depreciable/amortizable assets — Management reviews its estimate of the useful lves of
depreciable/amortizable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties

in these estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence that may change the utility of assets.
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Fair value measurements — Management applies valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial
instruments (where active matket quotes are not available). This involves developing esumates and assumptions
consistent with how market participants would price the instrument. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a
biability, the Group uses market-observable data to the extent it is available. In case of non-availability of market-
observable data, Level 2 & Level 3 hierarchy is used for fair valuation.

Income Taxes — Significant estimates are involved in determining the provision for income taxes, cluding
amount expected to be paid/recovered for uncertain tax positions and also in respect of expected future
profitabdity to assess deferred tax asset.

Expected Credit Loss (‘ECL’) ~ The measurement of an expected credit loss allowance for financial assets
measured at amortized cost requires the use of complex models and significant assumptions about furure
economic conditions and credit behavior (e.g., likelihood of customers defaulting and resulting losses). The

Group makes significant judgments about the following while assessing expected credit loss to estimate ECL:

¢ Determining criteria for a significant increase in credit risk;
¢ Establishing the number and relative weightings of forward-looking scenarios for each ype of
product/market and the associated ECL; and

e Establishing groups of similar financial assets to measure ECL.
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KEC 1ransmission Frojects Lompany Limied

Notes forming part of Consolidated financial statements for the year ending 31 March 2019

(All amounts in Rupees in Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

4 Property, plant and equipment

| . Furniture & Office Computer Minor Value

L Description Fixtures Equipments Equipment Assets SIS Tocai

|Gross carrying value

|‘ As at 01 April 2017 4.15 2.50 2.84 1.54 16.58 27.61
Additons 1.88 6.49 - 1.90 23.95 3422

l Disposals - (0.55) - - {0.35) {090

[ As at 31 March 2018 6.03 8.44 2.84 3.44 40.18 60.93

' Additons 0.44 0.31 - 0.42 474 5.92
Disposals - = - - -

( As at 31 March 2019 6.47 8.76 2.84 3.86 44.92 66.35

'Accumulated depreciation

| Asac01 April 2017+ 0.95 0.64 1.00 .54 7.99 12,12
Chatge for the year 0.50 1.45 0.-45 1.5 o4 13.37

| Adjustment for disposals - {0.08) - - (0.14 (12

| As at 31 March 2018 1.46 2.01 1.45 3.44 16.92 25.28
Chatge for the year 0.57 1.59 045 042 tLis 14.21

| Adjustment for disposals 8 - -

| As at 31 March 2019 2.03 3.60 1.90 3.86 28.10 39.49

Net bloclk as at 01 April 2017* 3.19 1.86 1.84 - 8.59 15.48

Net block as at 31 March 2018 4.57 6.43 1.39 - 23.26 35.65

Net block as at 31 March 2019 4.44 5.16 0.94 16.82 27.36

* Represents deemed cost on the date of transition to Ind AS. Gross block and accumulated depreciation from the previcus

GAAP have been disclosed for the purpose of better understanding of the original cost of assets.
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Notes forming part of Consolidated (inancial statements for the year ending 31 March 2019
(All amounts in Rupees in Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

5 Other Intangible assets

Descripti Computer Total intangible
escription

Software nssets
Gross carrying value
At 01 April 2017% 0.71 0.71
Additions 0.24 0.24
Disposals ‘ . i
Balance as at 31 March 2018 0.95 0.95
Additions - -
Disposals & -
Balance as at 31 March 2019 0.95 0.95
Accumulated depreciation
At 01 April 2017* 003 03
Amortisation charge for the year L5 (15
Disposals -
Balance as at 31 March 2018 0.20 0.20
Ameortisation charge for the year 0.19 0.19
Disposals 5 -
Balance as at 31 March 2019 0.39 0.39
Net book value as at 01 April 2017* 0.66 0.66
Net book value as at 31 March 2018 0.75 0.75
Net book value as at 31 March 2019 0.56 0.56

* Represents deemed cost on the date of transition to Ind AS.
Gross block and accumulated depreciation from the previous GAAP have been disclosed for the purpose of
better understanding of the original cost of assets.
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Notes forming part of Consclidated financial statements for the year ending 31 March 2019

{All amounts in Rupees in Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

6 Investments (Non Current Financial assets )
Investmients in Government/Trust Securities
(1) Investment in tax free bonds-Quoted (at amortised cost)
REC Lud, (Holding Company)

350,000, 7.38% "l'ax Izee 15 years Secured Redeemable Mon Convertible
Bonds of face vahue of Rs. 1000/~ cacl, fully paid (31 March 2018; 350,000,
01 April 2017; 350,000)

250,000, 8.46% "I'ax Firee 15 years Secured Redeemable Men Convertible
Bonds of face value of Rs, 1000/~ cach, fully paid (31 March 2018; 250,000:
01 April 2017 250,000)

(b} Investment in tax free bonds-Quoted (a amortise cose) (in
others)

(i) Housing and Urban Development Corporation Ltd. (HUDCO)

86,798, 7.39% ‘I'ax Free 15 years Secured Redeemable Mon Convertible
Bouads of face value of Rs. 1000/~ each, fully paid (3t Macch 2018: 86,798,
01 April 2017: 86,798)

(ii) National Highway Authority of India Ltd. (NHAT)
42,855, 7.35% "Fax Free 15 years Secured Redeemable Non Convertible
Bonds of face value of Rs. 1000+ cach, fully paid {31 Mareh 2018: 42,855
01 April 2017: 42,855)

35463, 7.39% "Lax ree 15 years Seeured Redecmable Non Convertible
Bands of face value of Rs. 1000/~ cach, fully paid (31 Aarch 2008: 35463
01 Apwil 2017: 35463)

(iii) Indian Renewable Energy Development Agency (IREDA)
61,308, 7.-19% Tux lree 15 years Secured Redeemable Non Convertitsie
Bonds of fice value of Rs. #0000/ - cach, filly paid (31 Macch 2018: 61,30,
01 April 2017: 61,308)

(iv) Indian Raitway Finance Corpuration (IRFC)

22,338, 7.35% "l'ax I'ree 15 years Sccured Redeemable Non Convertible
Bonds of face value of Rs. 1000/ ¢ach, fully paid (31 Maech 2018: 22,338,
01 April 2017: 22,338)

(v) National Bank for Agriculture and Rural Development (NABARD)

14,028, 7.35% Tax Free 15 years Seewred Redeemable Non Convertible
liemdds of face value of Rs. 1000/- cach, fully paid (31 March 2018: 14,028;
O Al 2007: 14,028}

Total

Aggregate market value of quoted investment

7 Loans (Non Current )
Unsecured, considered good
Seeuty deposies *

* Refer note 36 for fair value disclosures.
8 Other financial assets (Non Current)

Term Deposits cemaining maturity more than 12 months*

As at As ai As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 01 April 2017
5.585.03 3.585.03 35856
257000 2,570,101 AT
281,30 5a1.30 KL, S
450,79 459,58 450,84
357 55 36755 .03
G270 62176 G2
23085 25064 IMLae
1HL5] 140,51 141,51
8,857.50 8,857.63 3,857.70
9,633.27 9,697.51 9,768.24
3rm 12 E7 o8
37.01 3287 978
80.38 3 3023
86.38 3141 30.23

* TR has been placed on lien with Canaea Bank as collateral seeurity For issue of BG for Mizosm and Goa Project.

CHARTERED

* ACCOUNTANTS
&
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KEL LrnsNuUSsion Frojecis Lompany Linuted
Notes forming part of Consolidated financiul statements for the year ending 31 March 2019
(Al amaeunes in Rupees i Lakhs, unless seated otherwise)

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

Other non-current assets

Prepaid Expenses 3.69 253
- 3.69 2,53
[nvesuments (Current)
Investments in Corporate Deposits**
Unquoted, at amorsised cost
(0 L1C T ousing inance Limited . - 1.750.34
(ii} PINB [Housing Finance Limired 6,483.36 1.750.34
Aggregute cost of unquoted current investment - 6,483.56 3,500.68
** There is no investment in Corporate Deposits as 31 March 2019
Trade receivables
Unsecured, considered good-Receivable 2,290.29 1.716.88 58.42
Unzecured, considered doubtful- Receivable - . 5
2,290.29 1,716.88 58.42
bLess: AMlowanee for expected eredit loss (Refee wate & below) -
2,290.29 1,716.88 58.42
Cash and cash equivalents
Bakwnces with banks:
- with seheduled banks in curvent arconsts 11080 218.06 3130
Varmarked Bakances with Banks
- with Goverseanent Faieed aceonnis 14.800.08 1563441
Cheague in hands 36.23
14,947.11 15,883.08 3130
Otlier bank balances
Deprosits wath origmal mataeity more thag 3 months bur kess than 12 3364 LOLA 3.039.31
monthes
33.64 10L.08 3,039.31
Ouher financial assets (Current)
Recoverable from Goverment of India
Amount speat on Feeder Monitoring Scheme MIT.56 A0.06T
Amuoune spent on Urga Mira Scheme 195,45 176.11 5. 7H
Retennion money reccivable .12 -
Remmbursement from Mol? for REMS - A5 -
Clther Trade/Commercial Advances* 26.57 LTU 0.67
852.13 595.91 96.08

" Rampur Sambhal Transco bid is in the process of Incorporation however RIGQ was issued in March 2019 1herefore expense have been

allocated to the SPY,

Other current asseis

Advance to Suppliers 195.93 334.76 267.06
Balances with statutory and government authonities 197.21 3206 12.93
Prepaid Fxpenses 3.69 3.96 1.30
396.83 371.38 281.29
Disposal group
Assets classified as held for sale
(A} Investment (refer note 16.1) 50.00 1ol 2R
(B) Loans to associates {refer note 16.2) 905.49 75177 288410
Total (A+B) 955.49 767.77 308.40
Liabilities directly associated with assests classified as held for sale
{C)Payable to associates {refer note 16.3) 7.89 -
Total(C) 7.89 - -
7y
Disposal gronp -Net assets (A+B-C) figﬁﬁqtn 947.60 761.77 308.46
t Alirg
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Notes forming part of Consolidated financial statements for the year ending 31 March 2019
(All amounts in Rupees in Takhs, unless stated othenwise)

As at As at As e
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 01 April 2017
16.1 Invesunents in associates®*
Invesunents in Equity Instrumeunts of associates (fully paid up)
Dinchang T'ransmisston Limited * - 5400 EXLY]
50,000 cyuty shares of T 10/- cach (31 Maech 2018; 50,000 ; 01 April 2017:
50,000 )
Gharampur ‘T'eansmission Limired . Sl 3008
Nil equity shares of T 10/~ each (31 Macch 2018; 50,000 ; 01 Aprl 2017;
50,000) :
LRSS XXT Transimission Limited . S}
Nil equity shares of € 10/- cach (31 AMarch 2018; Nil ; 01 April 2017,
50,000)
WR-NR Power Transmisston Lamired " . 5000
Nil equity shares of T 107+ each (31 March 2018; Nil, 01 April 2017; 50,000)
Ajmer Phagi ‘I'ransco Limited 5,00
50000 equity shares of T 10/- each (31 Macch 2018: Nil; 01 April 2017; Nil)
Bhindguua Transmission Limited .00}
OO0 equity shares of T10/- cach (31 March 2018; Nil: 01 Apul 2017; NiT)
Chandil Transmission Ltd S0
50000 equity shares of T 10/- cach (31 Macch 2018 Nik; 01 April 2017; Nil)
Dumka Teansmission L. S0
50000 cquity shares of T 10/- each (31 March 2018; Nil 01 April 2017; Nil)
Jam Khambaliya I'eanseo Limited 500
30000 equity shaces of T 10/ - cach (31 Macch 2018; Nil; 01 April 2017; N
Khetel Teswseo Limited 5.00
50000 cquity shares of T 10/~ cach (31 AMarch 2018; Nil; 01 April 2007; Nil)
Roderma T'rnnsmission | 5.00
50000 eepuity shares of T 10/- each (31 AMarch 208; Nil: 01 April 2017; Nily
Lakadia Bamaskantha Transeo Limited 5.0
S0000 equicy shares of T 10/- cach (31 March 2018; Nil; 01 April 2017; Nil)
Manclar Transmssion 1Ld. &.00
30000 cyuaty shaves of TI10/- each (31 March 2018; Nil: 01 April 2017; Nil)
Udupi Kasaggode 'T'vans. ). 5.00
30000 equity shares of T10/- each (31 March 2018 Nil; 01 Apel 2017: Nil)
50.00 10.00 20.00

* Dinchang Transmission Lid was denotified vide MoP letter dated 25 March 2019 and subsquettly invesinent was weitteolT .

128



» © 0 00 00000000000 00COCO®OOOGDLOEOGPNOOOOPO*T®TO®*ODOOOOD OO

ALL L CANSMISSION 1rojects Lompany Lunited
Notes forming part of Consolidated financial statements for the year ending 31 March 2019
(Al amounts in Rupees in Lakhs, unless stared otherwise)

16.2 Loans to Associates

16.3

Dinclang Transmission Limited * 106.0-+ 8195
Ghatmpur Transmission Limited** : Moo 124,02
LRSS XX Transmission [amited ; - 42,149
WR-NR Power Lransmission |amired . 40,15
Chandil F'eansmission Limired 198.6-4 80.10
Dumka “I'ransmission Limited 193.57 84.66
Mandar "I'eansmission [imated 171.25 BGO
Koderma Transmission Limited 175.74 8406
Amer Phag T'eansco Lid ¢ 18.14
Bhindguna Cransmission PLamted 38.05 -
UDUPT Kasargode Transmission . 2504 - -
WRSS XXT{A) Transco Jad ™ 34.96

905.49 757.77 288.40

" Expenditure was meurred on the said project since 1Y 2015-16 and later on the projece was pur on hold by the Gove of Tadia in 10
August 2016 . Ducing 1Y 2018419 the expenses of Rs. 1,07,60,661,/- were written off on the basis of the letter dared 25 Maeeh 2019
recerved from Minstry of Power,

" Ghammpur Cransmission Lid was teanstereed to Adani Tansmission 1td on 21th June 019

*** WRSS XXI{A) transco Ltd is incorporated in 27th March 2019 share capital was introduced after 31.03.2019 however RFQ was
issued in March 2019 therefore as per expenses allocation policy, expense have been allocated.

Liabilities dircetly agsocisted with assests classified as beld for sale
Jam Khambaliya Teanseo )ad 0.34
Kher Transco Lamited (advance} 3.57
Lakadia Banaskantha Transco bid 398 .
Total 7.89 . -
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KL Lransnussion Frojects Lompany Linuted
Notes forming part of Consolidated financial statements for the year ending 31 March 2019
{All ameunts in Rupees in Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

17 Equity share capital As at As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2013 01 April 2017

Authorised equity share capital
50,000 (31 Maxch 2018 : 50,000 ; 01 April 2017 : 50,000} Equity shares of R 500 500 < 00
10 each

5.00 5.00 5.00
Issued, subscribed and paid up equity share capital
50,000 (31 Alarch 2018 : 50,000; 01 Apcil 2017 . 50,000) Equity shares of Rs 5.00 5.00
10 each 5.00

5.00 5.00 5.00

i} Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares:

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs.10 per share. Each holder of equity shares 15 entitled 1o oge vote per
share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian T. The dividend proposed by the Board of Dicectors 1s subject o the approval of the

shareholders i the ensuing Annual General Meenng,

In the event of liqudarion of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled o receive remaining assets of the Company, after
distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

ii) Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the &
31 March 2019

31 March 2018

No. of shares (Rs lakhs)

No. of shares {Rs lakis)

Equity share capital of Rs. 10 each fully paid up

Balance at the beginning of the year 50,000 5.00 30,000 5.00
Add: Tssued duging the year - o
Balance at the end of the year 50,000 5.00 50,000 5.00

iii) Shareholders holding more than 5% of shares of the Company as at balance sheet date:
As on 31 Muarch 2019 As on 31 March 2018

As on 01 April 2017

No. of shar% llolding No. of shares % holding

Nao. of shares Y holding

49,994 Lquity Shares held by REC
Limited (formerly known as Rural
Elecuitication  Corporation Lied)
(Holding Company} And Balance 6
Equity  Shares  through  other
nonunee of REC Lid.

50,000 100.00% 50,000 100.00%

iv) Shares held by holding company:
As on 31 March 2019 As on 31 March 2018

S0000 # [O01LARIY,

As on 01 April 2017

No. of shan®% holding  No. of sharcs % holding

No. of shares % holding

49,994 Equity Shares hekl by REC
Linuted (formerly known as Rural
Electrification  Corporation Lrd.)
{Holding Company} And Balance 6
Equty  Shares  through  other
nonunee of REC Ltd.

50,000  100.00% 50,000 100.00%

50,000 # 160,00

vl The Company has neither issued equity shares pursuant to conteact without payment being received in cash orany bonus shares nor has

there been any buy-back of shares in the current year and five years inmediately precedmy the halance sheet date.

18  Other equity As at As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 01 April 2017
General reserve 1,325.00 1,325.00 1,325.00
Statement of profit and loss* 10,513.99 16,286.72 14443603

Note: General reserve 15 created from time to tinwe by way of tansfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes. General

reserve 18 created by a wansfer from one component of equity to another

*The board of directozs of the Company have approved and disbursed an interim dividend @ 6600% of the face value of Rs.10 each equity
share amounting to Rs. 6600 per shace for the year ended 31 March 2019 which will be approved in forthcoming Annual General Meeting of

the Company.

CHARTERED

ACCOUNTANTS
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Notes forming part of Consolidated financial statements for the year ending 31 March 2019

{All amounts in Rupees in Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

19 Provisions (Non Current)
Provision for Employee Benefits(refer note 35)
Provision for Loyalty Bonus
Provision for compensated absences

20 Deferred tax liabilities (net)

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment: Impact of difference between
depreciation as per income tax act and depreciation charged in
the books
Financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost

Total deferred tax liabilities

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets:
Financial assets and Labilites measured ar amortized cost*
Total deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assers /(liabilities) (net)

Net Deffered Tax Charge for the Year
For the year ended 31 March 2018
For the year ended 31 March 2019

As at
31 March 2019

As at
31 Muarch 2018

As at

01 April 2017

3.27 221 0.57
3.03 2.25 Q.46
6.30 4.46 1.03
0.20 148 1.4
0.29 1.48 1.42
0.12 [ERN+ LT
012 0.1t .00
0.17 1.37 1.42
(0.05)
(1.20)

Note: The Movement between years represents addition only and there is no deletion reversal in current or previous year. Additions during

the year has been charged to profit and loss account dunng the year.

¥The anronnts has heen reunded off to swevo.

2

f—

Other financial liabilities
Earnest Money Deposits®
Expenses Payables
Rerention money payables
Payable to related parties
Employee related payables
Government Fund for Schemes**
PAIDP fund - J&N
DDUG]Y FUND
PSDF Fund for REMS

12,50 8.79 6.03
42191 587.28 7196
36.78 -
35.53 26.53 2742
1.54 (.64 2.80
14,541.28 13,610.15 .
79.28 .
285.56 1,714.59
15,414.38 15,948.03 108.21

*Earnest Money Deposit is of curreat in nature and to be refunded to bidders on demand after the completion of bidding process,

LEd

PMDP fund - J&K
Funds Recerved from Govt, of India

Add: Interest on Funds
Less: Dishursed ro Beneficiaries
Undisbursed Funds to be disbursed

DDUG]Y FUND
Funds Recerved from Govt. of India

Add: Interest on Funds
Less: Disbursed o Beneficiaries
Undisbursed Funds to be disbursed

13,610.15

935.30
#.17)

13,454.00

156.15

14,541.28

13,610.15

164.88

8.33
(93.93)

79.28
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KEG Lransmussion Frojects Lompany Limited
Notes forming part of Consolidated financial statements for the year ending 31 March 2019
(All amounts in Rupees in Lakhs, unless stated othenwvise)

PSDF Fund for RFM$S
Funds Received from Govt. of India 1,714.59 2,178.00
Add: Interest on Funds 208.71 29.17
Less: Disbursed to Beneficiaries (1,637.74) (492.58)
Undisbursed Funds to be disbuesed
285.56 1,714.59 -
22 Orher current liabilities
Advance from REC (Holding Company) 1,059.67 38170 230.00
Mobilisation Advance to be received from JRPDD-UDAY 4273 7121 -
Deffered income 7146 5 ' -
Starutory Dues payable 182.95 806.37 0.1
1,356.82 1,259.29 280.11
23 Provisions (Current)
Provision for Employee Benefits (refer note 35)
Provision for Loayality bonus* 0.00 = -
Provision for compensated absences 0.19 0.05 0.01
0.19 0.05 0.01
24 Current tax liabilities (ne¢)(Current tax assets {net))
Prowvision for Income tax 349074 273251 409474
Less: Advance Income Tax and TDS (3,640.18) (2.680.56) (-1,039.63)
E::::Tm tor income tax [net of advance tax and raxes deducted at (145.43) 5175 55.07
{145.43) 51.75 55.07

CHARTERED
ACCOuNTATS
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Notes forming part of Consalidated financial statements for the year ending 31 March 2019
{All amounts in Rupees in Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

25

26

27

28

Revenue from operations

Sale of services
Execution of Transmission Projects
Professional Charges
Agency Fees

Other Operating Revenue
Documenration fees

refer note !’“..for disclosures under ind As 115

Other income

Interest Income on Term/ Corporate Deposits

Interest Income on Tax Free Bonds

Laterest Income from SPVs

Interest Income on financial assets measured at amortised cost
Miscellaneous Income

Cost of services rendered
Survey Charges
Consulrancy Charges
Advertisemenr Expenses

Meeting & Conference Expenses

Employce benelits expense
Salaries and Wages

For the year ended

For the year ended

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
946.43 1,663.93
1,827.01 242477
16.95 2512
79,14 58.93
2,869.53 4,173.06
43043 398,29
063.91 664.63
77.35 6043
3.94 3.21
0.0t 745
1,175.64 1,140.00
70.75 8.74
49.36 27047
13.16 2106
0.67 246
133.93 302.83
169.67 43.72
169.67 43.72

Note: For disclosures related to provision for employee benefits, refer note 35- Employee benefit obligations

29 Finance costs

(7} [nterest Expenses

Workiag capiral loan from bank
Income rax
Others

{b) Bank Charges

30 Depreciation and amortisation expense

Deprecianon (also refer note 4)
Amortisation (also refer note 5)

0.71 .35
43,97 1498
5.36 (JEED
30.04 26.82
1.57 0.2
31.61 20.84
14.21 13.37
0.19 0.15
14.40 13.52

0

£
i
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Notes forming part of Consolidated financial statements for the year ending 31 March 2019
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31 Other expenses

P O © 29 0000000020 0QC0QD0COCDOCQOODOPOCOOOPOIOPDOODOSTTOSOPOPOOEDTS

Manpower Expenses 149.71 12644
Travelling and Conveyance 3246 24.31
Rental Charges 73.38 931
Rates and Taxes 0.63 15
Power & Fuel 5.78 0.33
Postage, Telegram and Telephene 3.63 0.61
Auditors' Remuneration® 2,350 R
Legal & Professional Charges 30.8Y 760
Otfice Expenses 17.62 545
Technical / IT Services Expenses 1.36 5.4z
Tender Processing Charges .34
Miscellaneous Expenses 16.50 0.7
334.26 183.99

*Auditors' Remuneranon

Audit Fee 1.70 1.7

Tax Audit Fee (L.60 it

Ovther Services/Certification fee = 1,14

2.30 348
@A)
CHARTERED
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Notes forming part of Consolidated financial statements for the year ending 31 March 2019
(Al amounts in Rupees in Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

For the year ended  For the year ended

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
32 Tax expense
()) Current tax (including taxes earlier years)
Tax: on current year profits 76243 1,191.35
Earlier Year Tavef (Refiends) g 1.37
(1) Detfered tax 1.20 (1.06)
761.23 1,192.67

Applicable tax rate has increased from 28.84% to 29.12% in the current financial year due to increase in Education Cess tace from
3% to 4%.

The major components of income tax expense and the reconciliation of expense based on the domestic effective tax rate of 29.17" .
and the reported tax expense in profit or loss are as follows:

Accounting profit before income tax 3,221.23 4,684.29
s . . s
At country’s statutory income tax rate {(applicable to the Company) of 29.12%; 938.02 1,350.95
(31 March 2018: 28.84%)
Adjustments in respect of taxes earlier years : 137
Tax effect of Non-deductible expenses for tax purposes 16.54 32.26
Tax effect of ncome of tax free bonds (193.33) {191.68)
Tax cfiect of rate change 0.00 4,24
761.23 1,192.67
33 Eamings per share (in Rupees)
Net profir lor the year 259,99 3,491.63
Weighted average number of equity shares for EPS 50,000 50,000
Par value per share ) b
Earnings per share - Basic and diluted (in rapecs) 4,919.98 6,983.26
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Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2019

(Al amounts in Rupees in Lakhs, unloss seated otherwise)

34 Related Party transactions

In 2ecordance with the sequirements of Indian Accounting Standard — 24 the names of the rebared partics where contralfabiliy t excecise sigmiicant influence exists, along
with the aggregaee amount of transactions and year end balanees with them as identificd and cernfied by the management e given below:

a. Details of related parties:

Description of relationship

Names of related parties

Ultimate holding company
Holding company
Subsidiary of holding /ultimate holding company

Associate Companies

Key manzgement persouncl (KMP)
[\

e Ajeer Kumar Agarwal

r. PV, Ramesh

Mr. Sanjeey Kemar Gupia

Power Finance Corporation Jad, (we.t 28cth Mareh 2019

RIZC Timited

REC Power Distriburtion Company Limited

PIEC Consulting Limited

Dingchang Transmission Limited (denonficd by Mol on 25.03.2019)
Ghatampur Transmission Limuted (sold on 19 June 2015

ERSS NXL Transmission Limited {sold on 12 Janurary 20H8)
WIR-NR Tranzsmisston Limited (sold on 27 Macch 2018)
Lumka Teansmission Limited (w.e.f 2503201 8)

Chandil Transmission Limited (woell 14.03.2018)

Mandar Transmission Limited (w.e.f 26.03.2018)

Kederma Teansmission Limited (w.e. £ [9.03.21H 5]

Fawaharpur Firnzabad Transoussion Linited (sold on 21 Pecembor 255
Bhind Guna Transmussion Limied fw.ef 1RO9.2018)

Udupt Kasaggosle Teansmission Limited (wee.f 29112018

Jam Khambalyz T'eanseo Limited (wee o LLO3.2019)

| akadia Bamasdaniha “Lranseo Bimited (w.ef, [9.03.20149)

Kheted T'ranzsco Linuted {wel. 12403.2009)

Apmer Phag Teanseo Bimdted (weedl 1RA03.20149)

WRSS XN (A} Transeo Bimied (wel 26.03.20049)

Rampur Samblhal Transco Limited (In process of Incarpocaion)

Claicman cum Diveenoe IHLAL20N Yt 05,03 200 1)
+ Chateman cun Dhirecior Charrman wee.l 6032014

¢ Dircgtor

Mr. V.K.Singh : Pircetor w.ed 1803.2019
b. Transuctions with REC Limited and KMP are as under:
REC Limited Key Management Personne|
31 Macch 2019 31 March 2018 31 March 2019 31 darch 2008
(i} Transacuons during the year

Dvidend paid to REC 1imired 6,829.00 1,310 g

Advance reeeved for government schemes 1,135.00 PR1.50 -

;tg::::;::uncm of imployee Benefits & Other 43856 3 )

By REC ncluding Scrvice Fax/GS 1 as apphieable} -

Interest Income from Investment in Tax Fee Bonds 469,580 AGILED

Tnetme feom Other Serviee Conreact 75.00

(i) Owstanding Balunces at Year End

Invesiment in Tax Free Bonds

Apportonment of Fmployee Benefits & Other Expenses
Interest Accrued but not due from Investment in Tax e Bonds
Advangy received for government schemes

REC Limited

As at As al As it
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 01 April 2017
G,1HEL00 f.EWI0.00 GLRIELLI
35.53 26.53
155,74 15574 155
1,155.00 S0

Cost of employees on secondment basis are reimbursed 1o REC Limited , Compuny vwes nothing to employees on secondment basis.

N

CHARTERED
ALCCUNTANTS
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REC Transmission Projects Company Limited

Notes forming pare of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2019

LA amoents in Rapees in Lakhs, ealess stated othenvise)

¢. Transactions with Ultimate Holding Company and its subsidiary:
Transactions during the year

Closing balances during the yeur

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

As ar 31 March 2019

As at 31 Mare h 2018 As acl Apnl 201°

Orther Trade/Commereal Advances (11°C Consuliing J.td.) =

d Transactions with Associates are as under:

(1) Dingehang Transmission Limited (denotified by MoP on 25.03.2019)
Interest Fxpenses
Reimburseaent/ lixpense: Reimburseme
Amount Writtenoff
(i) Ghatampur Transmission Limited (sold on 19 June 2018)
Toterese Lixpenses
Reimbuesement/ Lxpunies Rewbursement
(i) Dumka Transmission Limited (w.c.f. 25.03.2018)
luteeest Bxpenses
Rembuesement/ Expeases Reimbursement
Advanee Recived From Pactics
(iv) Chandil Transmission Limited {w.c.f. 14.03,2018)
Iaterest Mxpenses
Reimbursement/ Bxpenses Rambursonsent
Advance Recived From Panies
(v} Mandar Transmission Limited (w.e.f. 26.03.2018)
Iaerest Fxpenses
Rambursement/ Fxpenses Reimbursement
Advance Rectved From Partics
(vi) Koderma Transmission Limited (w.e.f. 19.03.2018)
Toterust Bxpenses
Reambursement/ Fxpenses Reimbussomen
Aadvancy Revived From Pagties
vii ERSS XXI Transmission Limited (sold on 12
Janurary 2018)
{oiurest Vspenses
Crnasultaney Nee
Riimbursement/  Fuponses Reimbursoiment
(viii) WR-NR Power Transmission Limited
Interest Lxpenses
Ceanzultaney Fee
Reimbursement/ Hxpeoses Rembursemant
(ix) Bhind Guna Transmission Limited
Interest lixpenses
Conzulancy ey
Heimbursement/  Expenses Reimbursement
Advance Recived From Pactics
(ix) Udupi Kasargode Transmission Limited
Interest Lxpenses
Ceonsultancy Fee
Reimbursement/ lixpenscs Romburscimens
Advance Recived From Parties
{x) Jam Khambaliya Transco Limited
Tnterest Bxpenses
Consulaney Fee
Reimbursement/ Vspenses Rembuesement
Advance Recived From Partivs
(xi) Lakadia Banaslantha Transco Limited
Interese Hapenses
Consultancy Fee
Reimbursement/ Expenses Reimbursement
Advanee Recived From Partics

=
CIARTERED
ACCOUNTANTS -

f 1.7% 63

Transac tions during the year

31 Mareh 2019 31 March 2015
5 1.0t
[ 1435

7.6l
11.55 2306
50.51 185,75
15.78 240
12451 8250
3480
16,12 2.0
127.84 K393
280
13.65 2
1111 K250
-1.800
[RAIR ha1{]
833 825
k0
817
1.541.30
18336
[EEID)
1266093
22100
342
s0.77
4.80
07
76,34
5195
4
3380
350
105
3514
420
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REC Transmission Projects Company Limited

Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statemeats for the year ending 31 March 2019

AP amounts in Rupces in Lakhs, unless stated othenwisc)

(xii) Khetri Transco Limited
Feerest Nxpense: [
Consultaney l'ee -
Reimbursement/ ltspenses Reimbuescmont 3502
Advance Recived From Parties 41120

(xiii} Ajmer Phagi Transco Limited
Interest Lxpenses 2y
Consultancy Feg -
Reimbursement/ Lixpenses Reimbursement . M4y
Aalvance Recived Feom Partics 16.01
(xiv) WRSS XXI (A) Transco Limited
Interest Lixpenses nAG
Comsultancy lee .
Reimbursements” Expenses Reinibirsement 454

(xv) Rampur Sambhal Transco Limited
Interest Bxpenses 0,27
Consultancy Fee
Reimbursemnent/ Vixpenses Ramlursement

OQutstanding balces w.r.t. associates are as under

As ar
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 01 April 2017

Receivahle from associates/(Payable to associates)

Dischang Teansmission ) imited 100 LR
Ghammpar Pransmission Limited - 3La6 12442
FERES XNY Transmission Fimired - - 12,19
WR-NR Power Transmission Lumited - s
Chandil Transmission Limited 194,64

Dumka Transmission Limieed 193,57

Mandar Fransmission Limited 171.25

Kadenma Fransmission ]ined 175.74

Ajmer Phagi Teanseo ) od 1814

Bhindyuna Transmission Linned HY.05

Tam Khambatiya T'ransco Ll (0.34)

Iehetai Transeo Limited (advance) (3.57)

Lakadin Banaskantha "I'ansco 3.ed (398

UDUPM Kasargode T'ransinvssion 1.td 25.14

Rampur sambhal Project 20.57

CHARTERED
ACCCUNTANTS
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IS LIANSIIISSION IOJECTS LOmpany Limead
Notes forming part of Consolidated financial statements for the year ending 31 March 2019
(Allamounts in Rupees in Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

36 Financial instruments
i) Financial instcuments by category measured at amottised cost;

A)

B)

As at As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 01 April 2017
Financial assets
Investments® 8,857.50 15.341.20 12,358.39
Loans 37.01 32.87 9.7§
Trade receivables . 2,290.29 1,716.838 38,42
Cash and cash equivalents 14,947.11 15,883.08 31.30
Orther bank balances 33.64 101.08 3.039.31
Other fnancial assers 938.51 627.33 126.31
Total 27,104.07 33,702.43 15,623.51
Financial liabilities
Orther financial habilides 15414.38 15,948.03 108.21t
Total 15,414.38 15,948.03 108.21

The carrying amounts of current financial assets and liabilities are considered a reasonalle ; approxinacon ol their fir values. Except
for the below:

Investment in tax free bonds (Qouted market 9,633.27 9.697.51 9,768.24
Investments in corporate deposits®* - 6,483.50 3,500.68
Total fair value of investments 9,633.27 16,181.07 13,268.92

" Fair value is equivalent to carrying value.

Fair values hierarchy

The proup does not have any financial assets or fnancial labilities carried at fair value.

Financial risk management

Risk management

The Group is exposed to vartous risks in relation to financial instruments. The Group’s financial assets and linbilirics by category e
summatised it Note 36, The main types of risks are credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk.

The Group’s risk management is coordinated in close co-operation with the Board of Dircciors, and focuses on securing the
Group’s short to medium term eash flows. The Group does not engage in trading of financial assets for specularive purposes.

Credit risk

The Group does not have any significant or material history of credit losses hence the credit visk for all the fnancial assets has been
considered to be negligible by the management as at the closing date.

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Board of Directors. The Grou ap munages liguidine risk by
maintining acdequate reserves, back-up facilities such as deposits and by conrtinuously monttoting (orecast and acrual cash fows, and
by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities. Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Group’s hquidiry
pposition and c¢ash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows.
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LA L TANSNUSSION I'foJects Lompany Limited
Notes forming part of Consolidated financial statements for the year ending 31 March 2019
(Allamounts in Rupees in Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

C

S—

38

Maturities of financial liabilities
All the financial linbiliries of the Group are current in nature and are maturing within 12 monrhs period.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will Huctuace because of changes 111 marker
prices. [t comprises of currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk.

Currency risk:
The Group does not have any foreign currency transactions, hence, it is not exposed to currency risk.

Interest rate risk
As the Group does not have any borrowings outstanding, it is not exposed to interest rate risk.

Price risk:
The Group does not have any financial instrument which exposes it to price risk.

Capital management policies and procedures

The Group’s capital includes issued share capital and all other distributable reserves. The prumary objective of the Group's capiral
management is to maximise shareholder value and ro maintain an optimal capial structure o reduce the cost of capital. The Group
does not have any long-term borrowings and all its capital needs are met by capital or sharcholders only.
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KBU Iransmission Projects Company Limited
Notes forming part of Consolidated financial statements for the year ending 31 Macch 2019
(All 2amounts in Rupees in Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

39 Entities considered for consolidation

Place of

Name of associates % ofholding  incorporation/Principle place
of business
Dinchang Transmission Limited 100% India
Ghatampur Transmission Limited 100% India
ERSS XXI Transmission Limited 100% India
WR-NR Power Transmission Limited 100% Inctia
Ajmer Phagi Transco Limited 100% India
Bhindguna Transmission Limited 100% India
Chandit Transmission Ltd 100% India
Dumbka Teansmission Ltd. 100% India
Jam Khambaliya Transco Limited 100% India
INhetri Transco Limited 100% Indha
Kodeema Transmission Lid 100% India
Lakadia Banaskantha Transco Limited 100% India
Mandar Transmission Ltd. 100% India
Udupi Kasarpode Trans, Ltd. 100% India

Note: Management incorporates these entities and invest in them with a view to sell them off as per the
guidelines of Ministry of power, through the bid process prescribed by ministry of power. There is no
possibility that managemnt will have benefits from these entitics other than selling them off, hence all these
investment (along with the related assets and liabilities) has been classilied as held For sale.

Note: The above investments are managed as per the mandate from Government of India (Gol) and the
Company does not have the practical ability to direct the relevant activitics of these Companies unilatecally.

The Company therefore, considers its investment in respective Companies as assoctates having significant
influence despite the Company holding 100% of their paid-up equity share capital.

CHARTERED
ACCOUNTALTS,
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REC Transmission Projects Company Limited
Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2019

(All amounts in Rupees in Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

40 Qther notes to accounts

There were six opening associate companies (SPVs), incorporated in the previous vears of REC Transmission Company Led (hevein after referred
as RECTPCL), namely Dinchang Transnussion Limited, Ghatampur Transmission Limited, Koderma Transmission Limited, Chanchl
Transmission Limited, Dumka Transmission Limited and Mandar Transmission Limiced. Eight associates (5PVs) were incorporated during the
Financial Year 2018-19 by RECTPCL, thus there were total Fousteen associates during the year.Out of the Fourteen associates, Two assoctares
mmely Jawaharpue Firozabad Transmission Limited and Glatampur Transmission Limited were tonsferced on 21.12.2018 and 19.06.2018
respectively. )
At the year end, there are Twelve associates (SPVs) in hand of which one associate namely Dinchang Transmission Limited was denortitied by
MoP, for which the faic value has been tken as zero. .

Jamkhambaliya Transco Limited, Khetrt Teansco Limited, Ajmer Phagi Transco Limited, Lakadiya Banaskantha Teansco Limited and WRSS NXI
Transco Limited have been incorporated in the month of March 2019 by RECTPCL. As per section 2(41) of Companies Act, 2013 “every
company ncorpoeated on or after the 1st day of January of a year, the period ending, interalia, on the 3 st day of March of the Foll wing financl
vear will be the financial year of the company”. Henge, the first financial year of the company will be from the date of incorporation to 31 March
2020,

Government of Jhackhand vide its letter dated 21.08.2017 had nominated RECTPCL as the Bid Process Coordinaror for the developmenr of [noe
State transmssion elements of Jharkhand State through Tanff Based Competitive Bidding route, As per the directions of Jhackhand Urja
Sancharan Nigam Limited (Stare Transmission Utility of Jhackhand), the transmission elements were divided into 5 projects and che RFtY provess
was initiated. Subsequently, Jharkhand Urja Sancharan Nigam Limited in consultation with Centeal Electricity Authority & Central Transnussion
Unlity tnalized the revised transmisston elements of Jharkhand State to be developed through Tanift Based Comperitive Bidding vente,
Atrenwards, based on the dicections of Jharkhand Urja Sanchaan Nigam Limited the revised scope of work has been divided in 4 packages
Therefare, Expenditure which was allocated to five projects was re-allocated to four projects

The RECTPCL 1 a wholly owaed subsidizry of REC Lik, a Gove. of India Enterpeise. The Key Managerial Personnel of the RECTPCL are
employees of the Holding Company (REC Lrd) deployed on pact time basis. No managerial remuneration is paid o such personnel by 1l
RECTPCL. The details of such Key Managesial Personnel are as tollows: -

Name Designation Duate of Davte of
Appeointiment | Separation

Sh. P.V. Raunesh Clairman & upto 05.03.2049
Direcror

Sh. Ajeet Kumae Agacwal Drector 27122008 upre 05.03.2019
Chairman & from Comninning,
Director 06.03.2019

Sh. Saajeev Kunuar Gupta Divector 26.10.2015 Continuing

Sh. V.. Smgh Director 18.03.2019 Comnnuing,

P O 0O O 0 0 ©® 90 00 000 000C0COCDOIEOIOSOIOSTIOSOSEOCOONODOCSTODPODTDT ®*YXOSOOD OGO T
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REC Transmission Projects Company Limited
Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2019

(All amounts in Rupees in Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

VI

[VIIL

All other personnel working for the RECTPCL are also from the Holding Company (REC Ltd). The salary and estabLishment eXpenses m respect
of the personnel working for the company are paid by the Holding Company (REC Ltd) and recovered at cost from the RECTPCL.

Wherever, any expenditure is incurred or payment made by the Holding Company (REC L) on behalf of the RECTPCL, procedural and

stagutory requirements with regard to deducnon of Tax at Source and other starutory compliances, as applicable, are complicd by the Holdyg
Company (REC Lid).

1) As per the approved policy, REC Ltd, the holding company is charging the salary, other establishment expenses and defined Labihties as a
percentage of the basic salary for the seconded employees as follows:

4} Basic Salary- On actual basis on the basis of estimated tme speat for the company.
bl Dearness Allowance - at actual.

¢} HRA/Lrase Accommodation charges- @30% of basic salary.

d}  Perquisites at acrual as per the entitlement of the concerned employee.

) Performance related pay - at actual as per the masimum ceiting provided by DPE
) Eamed Leave- for 30 days in a year,

g)  Aledical Leave - tor 10 days in a year.

h)  Detined Contribution - 30% of the Basic phus DA, towards PF, Gratuity, Superannuation beneits and post ceteement medical facilivy ere.

u) Tnfecest on cost incurred by the company for the associate Companies (SPVs) is charged on the basis of general market interest rate of T&D
schemes of the ultimate holding company (REC Ltd) for ungeaded organisations, presently @ 1275 % pa as on the begtining of the Financial
Year. No interest is paid to REC Lid, the holding company for the cost incurred by it as the pavment 15 made within one month of rising of]
nvoice.

Stnce the RECTPCL is incureing expenses mainly for its project specific associates (called SPVs), the expenses have been allocated an the year cnd
to these SPVs. Dicect expenses have been booked to the respective SPV for which the expenditure has been incurred. Al lndicect/Commin
Expenses have been allocated only o the SPVs i proportion of salary of 1100 StafF deployed on the SPY from the nnth of issue of RIFC} e
meorporation of SPV, whichever is eartier, tll the month in which tenth day From the date of issue of Letter of Tntenr (1.0 MY fo the transter of the
SPV falls, Pact of the mondh, if any, is considered as full manth for cost allocation. The RECTPCL has charged interest on the funds deployed by
it. For diceet expenses, interest is charged from the month in which the expenditure is incurred whereas for indiveet expenses intecest is charged
for the average period of deployment of Funds. Such interest is caleulated on monthly basis but recognised ar the end of 1he year,

Annual and peciodical alloeation of expenditure by the RECTPCL to SPVs il the completion of service is accumulated and debited 10 SPVs

account (invoice inclusive of GST is raised) and the same is treated as advance to SPVs reflected undee the head Cugrent Asser. The amount of
advance ks transferred 10 Debtors and is realized, during acquisition of the SP'V by tie successtful bidder,

as per the information available with the Group, there are 1o dues to Micro, Small and Medium Eaterpascs.
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REC Transmission Projects Company Limited
Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2019

(All amounts in Rupees in Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

X Details of expenditure and earnings in foreign cucrency is as under

For the Year For the Year
ended ended
31 March 2019 31 AMacch 218

Expendimre NIL NIL
Eamings . . NIL NIL

X Impaivment tor financial instraments has been made for an amount of Rs.112.43 lakh (P.Y. NIL) as per Ind A% 109.

XL Balances in partes accounts, advances, trade receivables and sundry payables are subject 1o confirmation/reconcilliation and consequential

acjustment that may arise on reconcilliation if any.

NIL - Provision and Contingencies are as under:

A) Details of Provisions

QOpening Addition during Amounts Closing
Balance the year paicd/utilised Balance
during the year

() Proposed Dividend 5 - B
Previous Year e 1,380.00 £,380.00 .

(1) Corporate Dividend Tax - - -
Previous Year - 250.93 280,93

B) Details of Contingent Liabilitics
[. Contingent Liabilities not provided for

As at As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 01 April 2017

Cliims against the group not acknowledged as

NIL NIl MNIL
debis
Others 11418 2954 NIL
IT.  Commitments not provided for
CSR Commnutiments 115.63 42.86 100.71
Capital Commitments 10.00 20.00 (.0t}
XIIL. A) Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Direct Expenditure 27.65 57.65
Overhieads
Testal 27.65 37.65

CHARTERED
ACCOUNTANTS
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REC Transmission Projects Company Limited
Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2019

{All amounts in Rupees in Lakh, uniess stated atherwise)

B) Disclosure in respect of CSR Expenses:

4l Grross amount required o be spent by the company during the financial vear, Rs. 93.00lakh (Previous year Rs, 108,13 lakh).
b} Ameoune spent during the vear.

2018-19 2017-18
Yet to be .
In cash paid Total In cash Yet to be paid Total

Consreuction/acquisition of the any asst e - o . -
Other than (@) above: spend through
Fuscka Forbs Institute of Faviconment 10.06 e 10.06 -
Artificral Limb Manufacturing Comaornation of
India (ALIMCO) 17.59 > 17.59 - .
NIT, Meghalaya S 5 3785 5 57.85
Toral 27.65 - 27.65 57.85 - 57.85

NIV, RECTPCL hag got an assignment under UIIAY Scheme from JKPDLY against which commencement of the contract is to he recopnised from the
date of receipr of mobilisarion advance or the date of sipning of ageeement whichever is later. on mutual consent basis, the commencement of
contract has been recognised from the date of signing of agreement.

XA The Company s opeeating in a single scpment e, providing consultancy services and therctore disclosure reguicements of Ind AS 108 s not
applicabile.

NVL - Duritg Y 2017-18, Assessment for the 1Y 2014-15 was completed. and demand rsed by Income Tax Department tor Rs. 14,220/~ which is paid
m Y 2018-19.

NV During 'Y 2017-18, interest expenses of Re 3004456/ constitures Rs. 607,307/ paid 1o Tanks and Rs. 2368911 /-paid under section 234C of
Il Ace, 1961 and Re 14,2200 /s 220 and RS.13.958/7- for inteeest on DY During previous year, interest expenses of Rs. 1534827 /- constitutes
Rs 34,851/~ paid to hanks and Ra. 1497903/ paid under seetion 234C of 11 Aet, 1961,

NVII In the opinion of the management the value of the current assets and loans and advances on realisation in ordinary course of business will not be
less than value at which these are stated in the financial statements,

NIN  Previous years figures have been cegrouped/ eearcanged / recast, wherever neeessary, to make them comparable with the cureent year’s figures.

For P.Jain & Compuany IFor and on behalf of Board of Directors of

REC Transmission Projects Company Limited

Chartered \ccountants
IFRIN:0007 1 1¢C
-~

-
.-"f
(Sh. Sa}nie'é';r..Kumar Gupta) (Sh. Vijay Kumar Singh)
Pactner f cc;nr Director
MRN:Q97279 DTN No.: 003464342 IDIN N 02772733
Place: New Dethi Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi
Date: Date: 17-05-2019 Dace: 17-05-2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF REC TRANSMISSION PROJECTS COMPANY LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Finanecial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of REC Transmission Projects
Company Limited(“the Company™) and its associates (the Company and its associates together
referred to as “the Group™), which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019, the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income) for year ended
on that date, the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view in conformity with the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act®) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the
consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2019, the consolidated profit and
consolidated total comprehensive income for the year ended on that date, consolidated changes in
equity and the consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for QOpinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities
under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the ICAI together with the independence requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Act
and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtainedand the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of their report referred to in the
other matters paragraph below are sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the consolidated financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter
We draw attention to the following matters in the Notes to Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements:

Reference is invited to note no. 40(XI) regarding non confirmation of balances from parties other than
banks and related parties, and consequential adjustment that may arise on reconciliation. In this it is
explained by the management that necessary letter for obtaining the balance confirmation has been
sent to the parties and confirmation are awaited.

Reference is invited to Note No. 16(1) regarding denotification of one of the associate company (i.e
Dinchang Transmission Ltd) and accordingly the management has taken the decision to dissolve the
said company.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed
in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. On the basis of

Audit Report received for Dinchang Transmission Limited, Bhind Guna Transmission Limited,
Dumka Transmission Limited, Chandil Transmission Limited, Mandar Transmission Limited and

KodermaTransmission Limited, and letter received from auditor of Udupi Kasargode Transmission
Limited.

we have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report.
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Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis,
Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report and
Corporate Governance, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position,
consolidated financial performance, consolidated total comprehensive income, consolidated changes
in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the requirements of the
Companies Act, 2013 and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
accounting standards specified under section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of the adequate accounting records
for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error which
have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the
Directors of the Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group are responsible for assessing the company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the company or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible for
overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Contd......
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e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery. intentional omissions, misrepresentations, ot the
override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

s Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of such entity included in the consolidated finrancial statements of which we
are independent auditor. For the other entities included in the consolidated financial statements,
which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the audit carried out by them. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative
materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the
results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial
statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Company of which we are the
independent auditor regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.
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Other Matters

(a) The consolidated financial statements also include the Group’s share of net profit/loss of Rs. Nil
and investments at carrying amount of Rs. 30 lakh for the year ended 3 1*'March, 2019, as considered
in the consolidated financial statements, in respect of seven associate companies, whose financial
statements have not been audited by us. These financial statements have been audited by other
auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the
consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in
respect of these associates, and our report in terms of sub-sections (3) and (11) of Section 143 of the
Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid associates, is based solely on the reports of the other
auditors.

(b) The consolidated financial statements also include the Group’s share of net profit/loss of Rs. Nil
and investments at carrying amount of Rs. 20 lakh for the year ended 31%*March, 2019, as considered
in the consolidated financial statements, in respect of four associate companies i.e. Jam Khambaliya
Transco Ltd., Lakadia Banaskantha Transco Ltd., Khetri Transco Ltd. and Ajmer Phagi Transco Ltd.,
whose financial statements have not been prepared as these associate companies are incorporated
after1® January, 2019. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us
by the Management, these financial statements are not material to the Group.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on
the work done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial statements certified by the
Management,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors.

(¢) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, and the
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant

books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
Statements.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the IND AS
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

(e) Vide notification no. G.S.R.463(E) dated 05.06.2015 issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs,
Government Companies have been exempted from applicability of provision of section 164(2)
of the Companies Act, 2013.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Group and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in
Annexure-A.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. As per the information and explanation given to us, the Company does not have any
pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

ii. The Group does have any such long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there are any material foreseeable losses.

153




) O 020000 0000000000009 090 000

Q0 00900 OO0 OCOO®GOG

=

-5

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts. required to be transferred. to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company and its associate companies incorporated
in India.

For P. Jain & Company
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 000711C)

Place : New Delhi
Date : 17.05.2019 Partner

Embership No. 097279)
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON CONSOLIDATED
ACCOUNTS

(Referred to in paragraph I1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ sect_iop of
our report on consolidated accounts to the Members of REC Transmission Projects Company Limited
of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (*the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for
the year ended 31st March 2019, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of REC Transmission Projects Company Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Company™)
and its associate companies (the Company and its associate companies collectively referred as
“Group™), which are companies incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Company and its associate companies, which are companies
incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Group considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI)”.
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting

records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Group based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the
ICAI and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls,
both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. Our audit
involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk.

The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls
system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Group’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
Group internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that;

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detaj aesarately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Group;
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(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations
of management and directors of the Group ; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the Group assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internai
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Group has, in all material aspects, an adequate internal financial controls system
except improvement in the system of allocation of common expenses to associates (SPVs), procedure
to obtain periodical balance confirmation and timely obtaining Internal Audit Report and compliances
thereon, over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as of 31st March 2019, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Group considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. ;

We have considered the areas of improvement identified which needs further strengthening as
reported above in determining the nature, timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the
31st March 2019 of Consolidated financial statements of the Group. However, these areas of
improvement do not affect our opinion on the operating effectiveness of the Internal Financial Control
over financial reporting of the Group .

Other Matters

Our aforesaid reports under Section 143(3) (i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating Effectiveness
of the internal financial controls over financial reporting insofar as it relates to seven associate
companies, which are companies incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding reports of the
auditors of such companies incorporated in India.

The system of internal financial controls over financial reporting, with regard to four associate
companies i.e. Jam Khambaliya Transco Ltd., Lakadia Banaskantha Transco Ltd., Khetri Transco Lid.
and Ajmer Phagi Transco Ltd., being unaudited, have not been provided to us to determine whether
the company has established adequate internal financial control over financial reporting at the
aforesaid four associate companies and whether such internal financial controls were operating
effectively as at 31st March 2019. The contribution of the four associate companies to the total assets
of the group is not material.

Further, we have considered the disclosure reported above in determining the nature, timing and
extent of audit tests applied in our report of the financial statements of the Group , and the above
disclosure does not affect our opinion on the operating effectiveness of the Internal Financial Control
over financial reporting of the Group .

For P. Jain & Company
Chartered Accountants
. 0007110

ra

Place : New Delhi | Agg:ﬁ,ﬁfﬁ” (PAW} JAIN)
Partner

Date : 17.05.2019 embership No. 097279)
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA
UNDER SECTION 143(6) (b) READ WITH SECTION 129 (4) OF THE COMPANIES
ACT, 2013 ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF REC
TRANSMISSION PROJECTS COMPANY LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2019

The preparation of consolidated financial statements of REC Transmission Projects
Company Limited for the year ended 31 March 2019 in accordance with the financial reporting
framework prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) is the responsibility of the
management of the company. The statutory auditor appointed by the Comptreller and Auditor
General of India under section 139 (5) read with section 129 (4) of the Act is responsible for
expressing opinion on the financial statements under section 143 read with section 129 (4) of the
Act based on independent audit in accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed under
section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide their Audit Report
dated 17.05.2019.

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a
supplementary audit of the consolidated financial statements of REC Transmission Projects
Company Limited for the year ended 31 March 2019 under section 143(6)(a) read with section
129(4) of the Act. We conducted a supplementary audit of the financial statements of REC
Transmission Projects Company Limited, but did not conduct supplementary audit of the
financial statements of subsidiaries, associate companies and jointly controlled entities listed in
Annexure 1. This supplementary audit has been carried out independently without access to the
working papers of the statutory auditor and is limited primarily to inquiries of the statutory
auditor and company personnel and a selective examination of some of the accounting records.

On the basis of my supplementary audit nothing significant has come to my knowledge
which would give rise to any comment upon or supplement to statutory auditor’s report under

section 143(6)(b) of the Act.

For and on behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

Moaulisls
Place: New Delhi (Rina Akoijam)
Date:2s /g 7// 2,0/5 Principal Director of Commercial Audit &
Ex-officio Member, Audit Board — 111,

New Delhi
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ANNEXURE I

List of subsidiaries, associate companies and jointly controlled entities whose financial
statements were not audited by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India

Associate Companies

Dinchang Transmission Limited
Ghatampur Transmission Limited
ERSS XXI Transmission Limited
WR-NR Power Transmission Limited
Ajmer Phagi Transco Limited
Bhindguna Transmission Limited
Chandil Transmission Limited

Dumka Transmission Limited

Jam Khambaliya Transco Limited

. Khetri Transco Limited

. Koderma Transmission Limited

. Lakadia Banaskantha Transco Limited
. Mandar Transmission Limited

. Udupi Kasargode Transmission Limited
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REC TRANSMISSION PROJECTS COMPANY LIMITED

Regd. Office: Core-4, SCOPE Complex, 7, Lodhi Road, New Delhi-110003
CIN: U40101DL2007GOI157558 Website: www.rectpcl.com

PROXY FORM (Form no. MGT-11)

[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014]

Name of the Member (s): Folio No./
Registered Address:
No. of Shares held: Email ID:

1/We, being the member (s) of

............. shares of the above named company, hereby appoint:

1. Name:
Address: Signature:-
E-mail Id:
or failing him / her
2. Name:
Address: Signature:-
E-mail Id:
or failing him / her
3. Name:
Address: Signature:-
E-mail Id:

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the
12™ Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Tuesday, August 27, 2019 at
3:30 P.M. at Core 4, SCOPE Complex, 7, Lodhi Road, New Delhi — 110 003 and at any adjournment
thereof in respect of such businesses as are indicated below:

SI.No. |

Particulars

Ordinary Business

1. To receive, consider, approve and adopt the audited financial statements of the Company
for the financial year ended March 31, 2019 along with the Reports of the Board of
Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To confirm the payment of Interim Dividend for the financial year 2018-19

3. To appoint a Director in place of Shri Sanjeev Kumar Gupta (DIN: 03464342), who retires
by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

4, To fix the remuneration of Statutory Auditors for the financial year 2019-20.

Special Business

5. | To appoint Shri Vijay Kumar Singh (DIN: 02772733), as Director of the Company.
Affix
Signed this...............cvvvenn. day of...cooeeeeeeeeenl, 2019 Revenue
Stamp of
Signature of Shareholder ..................... Signature of Proxy holder(s) ................... 1/-




REC TRANSMISSION PROJECTS COMPANY LIMITED
Regd. Office: Core-4, SCOPE Complex, 7, Lodhi Road, New Delhi-110003
CIN: U40101DL2007GOI157558 Website: www.rectpcl.com

ATTENDANCE SLIP

12™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING TO BE HELD ON TUESDAY, AUGUST 27, 2019
AT 3:30 P.M. AT THE REGISTERED OFICE OF THE COMPANY AT CORE 4, SCOPE
COMPLEX, 7, LODHI ROAD, NEW DELHI - 110 003.

NAME OF THE ATTENDING MEMBER
(IN BLOCK LETTERS)

Folio No.

DP ID No.

No. of Shares held

NAME OF PROXY (IN BLOCK
LETTERS)
to be filled in, if the proxy attends instead of
the member

I/We, hereby record my/our presence at the 12™ Annual General Meeting of the Company held
on Tuesday, August 27, 2019 at 3:30 P.M. at the Registered Office of the Company at Core-4,
Scope Complex, 7, Lodhi Road, New Delhi-110003.

Signature of Member/ Proxy
NOTES:

1. The attendance slip should be signed as per the specimen signature registered with Company. Such
duly completed and signed Attendance Slip(s) should be handed over at the venue of AGM. Members
in person and Proxy holders may please carry photo-ID card for identification/ verification purposes.

2. Shareholder(s) present in person or through registered proxy shall only be entertained.

3. Due to strict security reasons mobile phones, brief cases, eatables and other belongings are not
allowed inside the venue. Shareholder(s)/proxy holder(s) will be required to take care of their
belonging(s).

4. No gifts/ coupons will be distributed at the Annual General Meeting.






